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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERB|E

Dear shareholders

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Energy International Investments Holdings Limited (the “Company”), |
am pleased to present to you the annual report of the Company and
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2023.

As at 31 March 2023, the principal activities of the Group include: (1) oil
and liquefied chemical terminal representing the businesses of leasing of
oil and liquefied chemical terminal, together with its storage and logistics
facilities (the “Port and Storage Facilities”), and provision of agency services
and trading of oil and liquefied chemical products in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC"); and (2) insurance brokerage service representing the
business of providing insurance brokerage service in Hong Kong.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Oil and liquefied chemical terminal

Following all requisite licenses and regulatory approvals for operation have
been obtained, the Port and Storage Facilities located at Dongying Port
Economic Development Zone, Shandong Province, the PRC has achieved
full-scale operation in May 2018. According to a lease agreement entered in
December 2020, starting from January 2021, the Port and Storage Facilities
were rented to an independent third party (the “Present Operator”). The
annual rent receivable from the Present Operator (value-added tax included)
was initially amounted to RMB140 million until 31 March 2022 and has
further increased to RMB150 million from 1 April 2022 to 19 May 2023.
On 18 May 2023, Shandong Shundong Port Services Company Limited
("Shundong Port”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, entered
into a short-term lease agreement (the “Short-term Lease Agreement”)
with the Present Operator, pursuant to which Shundong Port agreed
to continue to lease the whole Port and Storage Facilities to the Present
Operator up to 31 July 2023 at a monthly rent of RMB12.5 million.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group recorded a revenue
of approximately HK$367 million (2022: HK$521 million), representing
a decrease of approximately HK$154 million as compared to last year.
The gross profit for the year decreased by approximately HK$3 million to
approximately HK$162 million (2022: HK$165 million).
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The Group recorded a profit of approximately HK$126 million for the year
(2022: HK$42 million), such increase was mainly attributable to the net
gain on the derecognition of financial assets and liabilities of approximately
HK$63 million and the decrease in fair value loss on preferred shares of
approximately HK$19 million.

PROSPECTS

Since the commencement of trial operation in September 2017 and full
operation in May 2018, the rental income from the Port and Storage
Facilities has started to contribute a significant and consistent operating
cash inflow and revenue to the Group going forward.

Upon the expiry of the Short-term Lease Agreement, the Company expects
to re-possess and self-operate at least part of the Port and Storage Facilities.
Leveraging on the ample experience of the Group’s specialist team, and
barring the unforeseen circumstances, the Company anticipates that the
Port and Storage Facilities will continue to contribute significant income to
the Group whether through leasing or self-operation.

Further, since June 2023, the Group has been in negotiation with the
Present Operator with the view to entering into a five-year contract in
relation to the leasing of the Port and Storage Facilities (with the exception
of 14 gas tanks which are proposed to be repossessed by the Group). Based
on the present status of negotiation, the Group is confident to be able to
conclude the contract with the Present Operator in July 2023.

With the lifting of COVID-19 related restrictions in China in December
2022, the economy of China is expected to return to faster growth. The
Group is optimistic of the investment environment and will continue to
explore opportunities in expanding our existing business and different
industries in order to drive the Group’s sustainable growth and strengthen
its financial position.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere appreciation to
our shareholders, business partners, colleagues and my fellow Directors
who have continuously supported the Group.

Cao Sheng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 June 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE DT

OPERATING RESULTS

The Group is principally engaged in the leasing of the Port and Storage
Facilities, and provision of agency service and trading of oil and liquefied
chemical products and insurance brokerage service.

0]

(i)

(iii)

Revenue

During the year, the Group’s record revenue was approximately
HK$367 million (2022: HK$521 million). The Group’s revenue is
mainly contributed from the rental income of the Port and Storage
Facilities of approximately HK$157 million (2022: HK$156 million)
and provision of agency services and trading of oil and liquefied
chemical products of approximately HK$209 million (2022: HK$364
million) in aggregate.

Gross profit

During the year, the Group’s record gross profit was approximately
HK$162 million (2022: HK$165 million). The Board believes that the
stable rental income generated from the leasing of Port and Storage
Facilities enables the Group to maintain the gross profit position.

Net gain on the derecognition of financial
assets and liabilities

In late 2019, the Group completed its acquisition of Ever Rosy
Ventures Limited (“Ever Rosy"), through which the Group held 28%
effective interest of Tai'an Wanyue Real Estate Company Limited
("Tai’an Wanyue”), which is engaged in a real estate property
project situated at Daiyue District, Tai‘an City, Shandong Province,
the PRC (the "Acquisition”). The Group classified such investment
as equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive
income upon completion.
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(iv)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

After completion, the financial and operational performance of
Tai'an Wanyue was under-performed as compared to the Group’s
expectation, as the property project experienced construction
delay due to the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic. In September
2021, the Group commenced legal action in the High Court of
Hong Kong against (inter alia) the vendor (the “Litigation”) of the
Acquisition (the “Vendor”) to apply for (inter alia) an Order to have
the acquisition agreement set aside and any consideration already
paid to be fully refunded.

On 17 June 2022, the Vendor surrendered the promissory notes
in the aggregate face value of RMB110,500,000 to the Group for
cancellation, thereby reducing the consideration of the Acquisition.
Further details of the Litigation and the adjustment of consideration
were set out in the Company’s announcement dated 17 June 2022.

On 24 June 2022, the Group, the Vendor and Ever Rosy agreed
on the settlement proposal of the Litigation (the “Settlement
Proposal”) on non-admission of liabilities basis and in full and final
settlement of all claims under the proceedings of the Litigation.
Further details of the Settlement Proposal were set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 24 June 2022.

As a results of the implementation of the Settlement Proposal, the
Group derecognised the equity instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income and the promissory notes and
recorded a net gain of approximately HK$63 million.

Profit for the Year

The Group recorded a profit for the year of approximately HK$126
million (2022: HK$42 million), such increase was mainly attributable
to the net gain on the derecognition of financial assets and
liabilities of approximately HK$63 million as mentioned above and
the decrease in fair value loss on preferred share of approximately
HK$19 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERBNWR DM

BUSINESS REVIEW

Operation of liquid chemical terminal, storage and
logistics facilities business

In 2015, the Group acquired 51% equity interest in Shundong Port,
which owns two sea area use rights covering an aggregate area available
for land-forming and reclamation construction of approximately 31.59
hectares in Dongying Port, Shandong Province, the PRC and permitting the
construction of reclamation and land-forming for use in sea transportation
and port facilities for a 50-years’ period running from 13 November 2014 to
12 November 2064 and 23 February 2016 to 22 February 2066 respectively.
Shundong Port has completed the construction and commenced leasing
of its Port and Storage Facilities since 2017, with full commercial operation
having been achieved in May 2018. Approximately HK$157 million rental
income was generated during the year.

In June 2020, two independent investors (the “Investors”) entered into
a funding agreement (the “Funding Agreement”) with Shundong Port
pursuant to which the Investors agreed to provide funding of RMB360
million to Shundong Port by way of non-voting, fixed-interest preferred
shares. As at the date of this report, RMB270 million has been drawn down
from the Investors pursuant to the Funding Agreement and the remaining
sum has yet to be drawn down. Since the Funding Agreement involves no
dilution of the Group’s voting right, profit sharing and return of capital in
Shundong Port and the funding provided by the Investors are essentially by
way of debt instrument in nature. Shundong Port remains as a subsidiary
of the Company and its results continue to be consolidated in the Group’s
financial statements.

In June 2022, the Group further acquired RMB18,958,403 of the registered
capital of Shundong Port, representing 8.50% of the voting right and right
to profit-based variable dividend, at a consideration of RMB86,000,000.
The acquisition was completed in July 2022 and the Group’s interest in
Shundong Port has been increased from 46.67% to 55.17%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had total assets of approximately
HK$1,999 million (2022: HK$2,349 million), total liabilities of approximately
HK$826 million (2022: HK$1,109 million), indicating a gearing ratio of 0.41
(2022: 0.47) on the basis of total liabilities over total assets. The current
ratio of the Group as at 31 March 2023 was 1.95 (2022: 0.73) on basis of
current assets over current liabilities.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had bank and other borrowings of
approximately HK$175 million and HK$11 million respectively (2022:
HK$299 million and HK$12 million respectively). The aggregate bank
deposits and cash in hand of the Group were approximately HK$83 million
(2022: HK$58 million).

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 March 2023, the Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities.

Capital and other commitments

The Group had capital commitments contracted but not provided for of
approximately HK$113 million as at 31 March 2023 (2022: HK$51 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERBNWR DM

Charges on assets

As at 31 March 2023, the entire investment properties of approximately
HK$1,565 million (2022: HK$1,666 million) were pledged for the Group’s
bank borrowings.

Exchange exposure

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and the PRC and the exposure
in exchange rate risks mainly arises from fluctuations in the HK$ and RMB
exchange rates. Exchange rate fluctuations and market trends have always
been the concern of the Group. The policy of the Group for its operating
entities operates in their corresponding local currencies to minimise
currency risks. The Group, after reviewing its exposure for the time being,
did not enter into any derivative contracts aimed at minimising exchange
rate risks during the reporting period. However, management will monitor
foreign currency exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure if necessary.

Employee information

As at 31 March 2023, the Group employed 58 full-time employees (2022:
71). The Group’'s emolument policies are formulated on the performance
of individual employees and are reviewed annually in line with industry
practice. The Group also provides provident fund schemes (as the case may
be) to its employees depending on the location of such employees.

Dividends

The Board did not recommend the payment of any dividend for the year
(2022: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FUTURE PLAN AND PROSPECTS

Operation of liquid chemical terminal, storage and
logistics facilities business

Since the completion of the acquisition of 51% effective interest in
Shundong Port by the Group in December 2015, the Group had been
proactively promoting the continual construction of the Port and Storage
Facilities. The original design of the Port and Storage Facilities anticipated
four berths for chemical tankers of 10,000 tonnage and two berths for
chemical tankers of 5,000 tonnage. The construction was completed in late
September 2017, and the terminal had commenced partial operation in late
September 2017 and full operation in May 2018.

On 24 October 2016, Shundong Port entered into a lease agreement
(the "Lease Agreement”) to lease the Port and Storage Facilities to an
independent third party (the “Original Lessee”). The rent payable by the
Original Lessee to Shundong Port for the Port and Storage Facilities under
the Lease Agreement including value-added tax is RMB125 million per
annum, which shall be payable in twelve equal instalments on monthly
basis in advance. The Lease Agreement became effective in May 2018.

In December 2020, the Lease Agreement was terminated such that the
Original Lessee was released from the continual performance of the
Lease Agreement with effect from 1 January 2021 by the payment of a
liquidated damages. In this regards, Shundong Port entered into a new
lease agreement (the “Novated Port Lease Agreement”) with the Present
Operator whereby Shundong Port continued to lease the Port and Storage
Facilities to the Present Operator with effect from 1 January 2021 and for
the remainder of the lease period until 19 May 2023. The gross annual rent
(including value-added tax) has increased from RMB125 million to RMB140
million with effect from 1 January 2021 until 31 March 2022, and has
further increased to RMB150 million with effect from 1 April 2022 until 19
May 2023. Details was disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 30 December 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERBNWR DM

Upon the expiry of the Novated Port Lease Agreement, the Company
expects to re-possess and self-operate at least part of the Port and Storage
Facilities. As affected by the lockdown measures and COVID-19, the
recruitment and training of the Group’s own specialist team was delayed
in 2022, as a result of which the Group has not yet obtained all necessary
licenses for the self-operation of part of the Port and Storage Facilities
before the expiry of the Novated Port Lease Agreement. To ensure the
undisrupted services of the end customers of the Port and Storage Facilities,
Shundong Port entered into a short-term lease agreement (the “Short-
term Lease Agreement”) with the Present Operator on 18 May 2023,
pursuant to which Shundong Port agreed to continue to lease the whole
Port and Storage Facilities to the Present Operator up to 31 July 2023 at a
monthly rent of RMB12.5 million (including value-added tax). Leveraging
on the ample experience of the Group’s specialist team, and barring the
unforeseen circumstances, the Company anticipates that the Port and
Storage Facilities will continue to contribute significant income to the Group
whether through leasing or self-operation.

Pursuant to the Work Safety Law of the PRC, the key responsible officer
of Shundong Port should obtain the Certificate of Qualification on Safety
Production Knowledge and Management Capability (Key Responsible
Officer) (the "Safety Certificate (RO)") issued by Ministry of Emergency
Management of the PRC for the self-operation of certain gas tanks in the
Group’s Port and Storage Facilities. In June 2023, the legal representative
of Shundong Port has obtained the Safety Certificate (RO) in order to
fulfill the regulatory requirement for the self-operation of certain gas tanks
in the Group’s Port and Storage Facilities. Further, since June 2023, the
Group has been in negotiation with the Present Operator with the view to
entering into a five-year contract in relation to the leasing of the Port and
Storage Facilities (with the exception of 14 gas tanks which are proposed
to be repossessed by the Group). Although the Present Operator is also
prepared to take up the lease for the entire Port and Storage Facilities, it
was the Group who insisted on the re-possession of 14 gas tanks out of 56
gas, refined oil and petrochemical tanks comprising the Port and Storage
Facilities to maximise its profits, due to the Company’s confidence on being
able to secure market rental through self-operation which is estimated to be
higher than the rental obtainable through leasing to the Present Operator.
Based on the present status of negotiation, the Group is confident to be
able to conclude the contract with the Present Operator in July 2023.

Insurance brokerage business

Following the completion of the acquisition of an insurance brokerage
entity (as detailed in the Company’s announcement dated 7 May 2018),
the Group creates an independent business segment in August 2018. The
Board believes that the Group can benefit from the diversification of its
operations into this industry and through better deployment of available
resources, can bring values to the Group and the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”) as a whole.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cao Sheng, aged 50, was appointed as an executive Director in March
2018 and as the Chairman of the Board in April 2022. He graduated from
Shandong Academy of Governance in 1999 majoring in Economics and
Management. Mr. Cao has many years of management experience in China
in the industries of vessel and offshore platform engineering and business
consultancy.

Mr. Liu Yong, aged 48, was appointed as an executive Director and
the chief executive officer of the Company in April 2022. He studied a
correspondence course in Transportation Financial Accounting with Xi'an
Highway University (now known as Chang’an University) in 1994 to 1997.
Mr. Liu has extensive financial and management experiences in government
authorities and privately owned enterprises in the PRC.

Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral, aged 50, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in March 2012 and was re-designated
as an executive Director in November 2013. He was also appointed as the
company secretary of the Company from November 2016 to August 2022.
He holds a Bachelor of Arts (Honours) in Accountancy from City University
of Hong Kong. Mr. Chan is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He has extensive experience in the accounting
and auditing fields. Mr. Chan is an independent non-executive director of
Zhong Ao Home Group Limited (stock code: 1538), which is listed on the
Main Board (“Main Board”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). He was an independent non-executive director
of each of China Water Affairs Group Limited (stock code: 855), which is
listed on the Main Board, from January 2020 to November 2022; SFund
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1367), which was listed on the
Main Board, from November 2016 to August 2022; and Century Energy
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 8132), which is listed on GEM
("GEM") of the Stock Exchange, from March 2020 to August 2021.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

ESBEFE

Mr. Lan Yongqiang, aged 55, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in July 2014 and was re-designated as an executive
Director in December 2014. Mr. Lan was the Chairman of the Board from
March 2018 to April 2022. He holds a Bachelor of Laws Degree from
Lanzhou University. Mr. Lan has extensive experience in investment, mergers
and acquisitions as well as in the business of public listing laws. Mr. Lan was
a director of Jinhui Liquor Co., Ltd. (stock code: 603919), which is listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange from October 2012 to October 2020.
Mr. Lan was a director and the chairman of Guangdong Golden Dragon
Development Inc. (stock code: 000712), which is listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange from July 2016 to June 2018; an independent director of
Top Score Fashion Co., Ltd. (stock code: 603608), which is listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange, from May 2015 to May 2018; and a director of
Shenzhen Kangmei Biotechnology Co., Ltd. (stock code: 835541), which is
quoted on the National Equities Exchange and Quotations System (the New
Third Board) from May 2008 to May 2020.

Mr. Shi Jun, aged 52, was appointed as an executive Director in April
2022. He studied Chemical Equipment and Machinery and obtained a
bachelor’s degree from Shandong University of Technology (now known
as Shandong University) in 1993. Mr. Shi is an entrepreneur investing in
automobile 4S stores in Dongying City, Shandong Province, the PRC. He
was a member of the Dongying Committee of Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference from 2006 to 2017. Mr. Shi is also the vice
president of Dongying Automobile Dealers Association since December
2010.

Mr. Luo Yingnan, aged 33, was appointed as an executive Director in April
2023. He obtained a degree of Master of Finance in 2015 and a degree of
Bachelor of Business Administration in 2013, both from the University of
Cincinnati, the United States. After his graduation, Mr. Luo worked as a
manager at a fund management company in China. He then worked as a
business manager of the strategic customer department of one of the big-
four state-owned asset management company in China. In 2019, Mr. Luo
joined a sizeable enterprise in China accredited as Top 500 Enterprise in
China in 2022 principally engaged in petrochemical and energy businesses,
during which Mr. Luo acted as a director and was primarily responsible for
overseeing its business in Singapore and top-level corporate management.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tang Qingbin, aged 59, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in January 2019. He holds a Bachelor of Economics
degree from Shandong Economics College. Mr. Tang is registered as a
member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has
over 20 years of experience in the accounting and auditing field in China.
He is currently an independent non-executive director of Shandong Molong
Petroleum Machinery Company Limited (stock code: 568), a company listed
on the Main Board. He is also an independent director of Luxin Venture
Capital Group Co., Ltd. (stock code: 600783), a company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange.

Mr. Wang Jinghua, aged 41, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in July 2011. He graduated from University of Exeter,
the United Kingdom. He holds two Bachelor of Arts degrees with major
in Internet Computing and Economics & Finance and a Master of Science
degree with International Management. From 2009, Mr. Wang acted as
a General Manager Assistant in China Western Holdings Co., Ltd. He has
most experience in the investment program and contract in the urban
construction project.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

ESBEFE

Mr. Fung Nam Shan, aged 46, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in May 2015. Mr. Fung holds a bachelor’s degree in
commerce awarded by the University of Newcastle, Australia. Mr. Fung
has become a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since February 2010 and a Certified Practising
Accountant of CPA Australia since October 2003.

Currently, Mr. Fung is an independent non-executive director of JH
Educational Technology INC. (currently listed on the Main Board (stock
code: 1935)). He is the company secretary of Seamless Green China
(Holdings) Limited, a company listed on GEM (stock code: 8150). He is the
company secretary of Thelloy Development Group Limited (currently listed
on the Main Board (stock code: 1546)). Mr. Fung was an independent non-
executive director of China Fortune Investments (Holding) Limited, which
was listed on GEM (stock code: 8116), during the period from August 2021
to September 2021. He was the joint company secretary of Future Bright
Mining Holdings Limited (currently listed on the Main Board (stock code:
2212)), during the period from November 2015 to October 2016 and the
company secretary and authorised representative of each of China Ocean
Group Development Limited (currently listed on GEM (stock code: 8047)),
during the period from May 2015 to May 2017, MH Development Limited,
which was listed on the Main Board (stock code: 2662), during the period
from February 2016 to August 2021, China Supply Chain Holdings Limited
(currently listed on the Main Board (stock code: 3708)), during the period
from March 2016 to July 2021, and Yues International Holdings Group
Limited (currently listed on the Main Board (stock code: 1529)), during the
period from June 2021 to June 2022.

Mr. Fung was employed as financial controller and company secretary of
South China Assets Holdings Limited, which was listed on GEM (stock code:
8155) from February 2011 to April 2013. Mr. Fung served for a reputable
property development group as financial controller from 2009 to 2011. He
worked for PricewaterhouseCoopers as an audit manager for several years
which he accumulated experience in auditing, accounting and taxation in
Hong Kong and the PRC. He has been one of the marketing committee
members of The Hong Kong Youth Hostels Association and also a member
of its charity walk organising committee since 2012.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance, holding the beliefs of transparency, honesty and accountability.
The Board considers that sound corporate management and governance
practices are essential to the Company’s healthy growth under all business
environments. Therefore, we continuously review and improve our
corporate governance standards to ensure maximum compliance with the
relevant laws and codes.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company and the Board have applied the principles in the code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) by
adopting the code provisions of the CG Code.

During the year, the Board has adopted and complied with the code
provisions of the CG Code in so far they are applicable with the exception
of the deviation from Code Provision C.1.6 of the CG Code.

Under Code Provision C.1.6 of the CG Code, independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors should attend general meetings
and develop a balanced understanding of the views of the Shareholders.
Mr. Wang Jinghua, the independent non-executive Director, was unable
to attend the annual general meeting (the “AGM") and an extraordinary
general meeting (the “EGM") of the Company both held on 13 September
2022 due to his other prior engagement. That having said, the majority
of independent non-executive Directors, including the chairmen of all the
Board committees, were available to respond to questions and enquiries of
the Shareholders at general meetings, and any Directors who were absent
from the meeting were able to obtain an understanding of views expressed
by Shareholders (if any) at the meeting from the attending Directors.

CULTURE

The Board believes that a healthy corporate culture underpins the long-term
business, economic success and sustainable growth of the Group. A strong
culture enables the Company to deliver long-term sustainable performance
and fulfil its role as a responsible corporate citizen. The Company is
committed to developing a positive and progressive culture that is built on
its purpose, vision, mission and values. The followings are the key features
of the Company’s culture:
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CHEABE

Integrity

The Group is committed to achieving high standards of business ethics
and corporate governance across all our activities and operations. The
Directors, management and staff are all required to act lawfully, ethically
and responsibly, and the required standards and norms are set out in the
training materials for all new staff and embedded in the Group’s employee
handbook, code of conduct and internal policies, including the anti-fraud
and anti-corruption policy and the whistle-blowing policy of the Group.

Commitment

The Group believes that the culture of commitment to workforce
development, workplace safety and health, diversity, and sustainability
is one where people have a feeling of commitment and emotional
engagement with the Group’s mission. This sets the tone for a strong,
productive workforce that attracts, develops, and retains the best talent and
produces the highest quality work. Moreover, the Company’s strategy in
business development and management is to achieve long-term, steady and
sustainable growth, while having due considerations from environment,
social and governance aspects.

The Board sets and promotes corporate culture and expects and requires
all employees to reinforce their awareness of our corporate culture through
training and other activities. All of our new employees are required
to attend orientation and training programs so that they may better
understand our corporate culture, structure and policies, learn relevant
laws and regulations, and raise their quality awareness. In addition, from
time to time, the Company will invite external experts to provide training
to our management personnel to improve their relevant knowledge and
management skills.

The Board considers that the corporate culture and the purpose, values and
strategy of the Group are aligned.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules. The Company has made specific enquiries with all Directors
and all of them confirmed that they had complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code throughout the year.

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2022/23

I

AEEBNRABRBRRETEHFKFNE
XEBREEER-EF BEERBINHAN
B AFERMRBBEENRENTE MABR
EREINGHENAAHFBETHEIER - AEA
AEEETFM BRTITRRABEEK (BELX
SEZREFEREBSBEEARBREE) -

EIE

REBRE BOREBIER THESAEER
- ZRtEABAERROUL  BEAEE
BEINERREHREEEGOBRIRA BT
ERAAN SRMWBIKRMOEETER KEhHALXE
BEs  BEYREREFHOAT  XNTREE
BTAR o WO ARBMNEBERLEE T E
REAEREY BERAKENER RABE
RE HERERTEFEHEENZE -

ExgHEREBHECEX  WHEREXRME
BIFEREIIREMEED LR FEEHBRMEEX
ILERRE - HPINFTE FIE B E KBS INARE
IR IBFNETE - NEREE T TRERMOEE
XAk BREREBGR  BEBBEEERER AR
BEEMNEEEH LI - AR BB TEEB I
HERERMPNEEABETEI  UIERHE
A AN AN B IR AR RE o

EFERRERNELEAEENRE
B AR — 2

CBERK

EEZRSERS

RAB DR ETHRAM S PIE EH#ITAE
FETESFRHHEEST A (MELESFRD) - A2
FIEAMEERFELARETH REHEHERK
ENBEFE -BETRETAMSHZREER -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board determines and keeps under review the objectives of the
Group. It makes decisions on overall strategies and actions necessary for
achieving these objectives, monitors and controls financial and operating
performance, formulates appropriate policies, and identifies and ensures
best practices of corporate governance. The Board members are fully
committed to their roles and have acted in good faith to maximise the
Shareholders’ value in the long run, and have aligned the Group’s goals
and directions with the prevailing economic and market conditions. Daily
operations and administration are delegated to the management. It has
given clear directions as to the powers of management, in particular, with
respect to the circumstances where management should report back and
obtain prior approval from the Board before making decisions or entering
into any commitments on behalf of the Company.

Board Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises nine members,
including six executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors (“INEDs"). The Board members during the year and up to the
date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Cao Sheng (Chairman)

Mr. Liu Yong (Chief Executive Officer) (Appointed on 7 April 2022)
Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral

Mr. Lan Yonggiang

Mr. Shi Jun (Appointed on 7 April 2022)

Mr. Luo Yingnan (Appointed on 4 April 2023)

Mr. Yu Zhiyong (Resigned on 7 April 2022)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Tang Qingbin
Mr. Wang Jinghua
Mr. Fung Nam Shan

Biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this annual report are
set out in the “Biographical Details of Directors” section on pages 13 to 16
of this annual report. Save as disclosed therein, none of the Directors has
any financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationships
with other members of the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence from
each of its independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. Based on the contents of such confirmation, the Company
considers that all the independent non-executive Directors are independent
and that they have met the specific independence guidelines as set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Appointment, Re-election and Rotation of Directors

All Directors were not appointed for any specific terms except for Mr.
Luo Yingnan who was appointed for an initial term of one year, which is
automatically renewed for successive periods of one year. All Directors are
subject to re-election by the Shareholders at the AGM and at least once
every three years on a rotation basis in accordance with Article 108 of the
articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”). A retiring Director
shall be eligible for re-election at the AGM and shall continue to act as a
Director throughout the meeting which he retires. Where vacancies arise
at the Board, candidates are proposed and put forward to the Board by
the nomination committee of the Company as more fully explained below
under the section headed “Nomination Policy”.

Board Independence

The Board should establish mechanisms to ensure independent views
and input are available to the Board and such mechanisms should be
reviewed annually by the Board. During the year, the Board has reviewed
the implementation and effectiveness of such mechanisms and made the
following observations:

(a) Three out of nine Directors are INEDs, satisfying the requirement of
the Listing Rules that at least one-third of the Board are INEDs;

(b) INEDs are encouraged to join Board committees to ensure
independent views are available at committee levels;

(©) The nomination committee will assess the independence of a
candidate who is nominated to be a new INED before appointment.
The nomination committee will also assess the continued
independence of the long-serving INEDs on an annual basis;

(d) Each INED is required to inform the Company as soon as practicable
if there is any change in his/her own personal particulars that may

materially affect his/her independence;

(e) All INEDs are required to submit a written confirmation to the
Company annually to confirm their independence;
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(f) All Directors are encouraged to seek further information and
documentation from the management on the matters to be
discussed at or outside Board and Board committee meetings;

(9) All Directors are aware of their right to seek assistance from the
Company's management and company secretary and, where
necessary, to seek independent advice from external professional
advisers at the Company’s expense;

(h) All Directors are encouraged to express their views in an open and
candid manner at or outside Board and Board committee meetings;
and

(i) All Directors are reminded at Board and Board committee
meetings to disclose any material interest in contract, transaction
or arrangement and where such material interest does exist, shall
abstain from voting and not be counted in the quorum on any
Board or committee resolution approving the same.

Directors’ Training

In compliance with Code Provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, the Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge, skills and understanding of the Group and its
business or to update their skills and knowledge on the latest development
or changes in the relevant regulations, the Listing Rules and corporate
governance practices. The Company will also update the Directors of
any material changes in the rules and regulations from time to time.
According to the confirmations provided by the Directors, all Directors have
participated in the continuous professional developments during the year.

Board Diversity Policy

On 29 August 2013, the Company adopted the board diversity policy
(the “Board Diversity Policy”) in accordance with the requirements set
out in the CG Code. The Company recognises that Board diversity is an
essential element contributing to the sustainable development of the
Company. In designing the Board’s composition, the Board diversity has
been considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited to
the skills, knowledge, gender, age, cultural and educational background or
professional experience. All Board appointments are based on merits and
considered against a variety of objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.
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Currently, there is no female Director on the Board. To enhance gender
diversity, the nomination committee will recommend and nominate at least
one female Director to the Board by 31 December 2024. The Board and the
nomination committee will stay vigilant in identifying a pipeline of potential
successors to the Board. The Company constantly implement recruitment
and promotion policies which encourage and attract qualified incumbents
to take up senior managerial and board roles.

During the year, the Board reviewed the implementation and effectiveness
of the Board Diversity Policy and is satisfied that the Board Diversity Policy
has been properly implemented and is effective.

Workforce diversity

The gender ratio of male to female in the workforce (including senior
management) for the year is 43:15. Oil and Liquefied Chemical Terminal
industry has generally been short of female talents due to social and culture
traditions. Against such industry background, the Group will do its best to
strive for gender diversity in workforce, by seeking to achieve at least 20%
female workforce. Under such criterion, the total gender diversity of the
Group is acceptable at present.

Nomination Policy

The Company has a nomination policy of having a board of directors with a
diversity of skills and experience. The selection and proposed appointment
of the Directors are submitted to the nomination committee of the
Company for consideration prior to Board approval, and the re-election
of Directors is conducted in accordance with the Articles. The criteria
of assessing a candidate include his/her ability to devote sufficient time
and attention to participate in the affairs of the Company including the
attendance of Board meetings and serving on committees, to bring business
experience to the Board and to contribute to the Board diversity. If the
candidate is proposed to be appointed as an independent non-executive
Director, his/her independence shall be assessed in accordance with
the requirements under the Listing Rules. The totality of the candidate’s
education, qualifications and experience shall be evaluated in assessing his/
her suitability.
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Attendance of Meetings

During the year, the Company held 7 Board meetings, 2 remuneration
committee meetings, 2 nomination committee meetings, 4 audit committee
meetings and 2 general meetings (including 1 AGM and 1 EGM both held
on 13 September 2022). The attendance records of the Directors at such
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meetings are as follows:

AAE) BEEHEZSTERNTHEHINWT

Number of meetings
attended/eligible to attend

HE/REREREBNY
Remuneration Nomination Audit
Board committee committee committee
meetings meetings meetings meetings AGM/EGM
FHZzES REZE® ENZEE RREEARE/
Ezges L= ] g8 REBHXE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Cao Sheng EREE 77 N/ATE A N/A TN F N/ANE F 22
Mr. Liu Yong (Appointed on 7 April 2022)  ZIB% 4
(R-F——%
MA+BEZRE) 4/6 NAT & NATER NATER 0
Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral BEELE 77 22 22 N/ANEF 22
Mr. Lan Yonggiang Bk 77 N/ANE A NATE R N/ANEF 212
Mr. Shi Jun (Appointed on 7 April 2022) RELE
(R=%==
MA+BEZE) 6/6 NAT &R N/ATE R NATER 22
Mr. Yu Zhiyong (Resigned on 7 April 2022)  FEHEERLAE 0/0 N/AiE A N/ATEF N/AZNE B 0/0
0t k-2
mA+AEE)
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYFHITER
Mr. Tang Qingbin BEREE 17 22 22 4/4 22
Mr. Wang Jinghua FHELRE 377 072 072 1/4 02
Mr. Fung Nam Shan BrEILEE 717 M Wi 3/4 M

BUEFENEITEELBEREHNEETS

Every Board member has full and timely access to Board papers and related
materials and has unrestricted access to the advice and services of the
company secretary of the Company, and has the liberty to seek external
professional advice if so required.

Insurance

The Company has attached much importance to the risk management
about Directors’ liabilities and has arranged appropriate liability insurance
for the Directors and senior management of the Company. The insurance
coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee, established in compliance with the CG
Code, currently comprises three independent non-executive Directors and
one executive Director, is responsible for reviewing and evaluating the
remuneration packages of the Directors and senior management of the
Company and making recommendations to the Board from time to time,
and reviewing and/or approving matters relating to share option schemes
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. During the year ended 31 March
2023, no share option was granted under the share option scheme of the
Company, and no share award scheme was in effect.

The remuneration committee has adopted written terms of reference
prepared by reference to the suggested terms of reference stated under
the relevant code provisions of the CG Code. The terms of reference of the
remuneration committee has been uploaded to the Stock Exchange’s and
the Company’s websites.

Directors’ Remuneration Policy

A directors’ remuneration policy has been adopted. It aims to set out the
Company’s policy in respect of remuneration paid to executive Directors
and non-executive Directors.

The Directors’ remuneration policy sets out the remuneration structure
that allows the Company to attract, motivate and retain qualified Directors
who can manage and lead the Company in achieving its strategic objective
and contribute to the Company’s performance and sustainable growth,
and to provide Directors with a balanced and competitive remuneration.
The remuneration policy is, therefore, aiming at being competitive but
not excessive. To achieve this, remuneration package is determined with
reference to a matrix of factors, including the individual performance,
qualification and experience of Directors concerned and prevailing industry
practice. It will be reviewed and, if necessary, updated from time to time to
ensure its continued effectiveness.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee, established in compliance with the CG Code,
currently comprises three independent non-executive Directors and one
executive Director, is responsible for making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment of Directors and management of the Board succession.

The nomination committee has adopted written terms of reference
prepared by reference to the suggested terms of reference stated under
the relevant code provisions of the CG Code. The terms of reference of the
nomination committee has been uploaded to the Stock Exchange’s and the
Company’s websites.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company was established with written terms
of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the
suggested terms of reference stated under the relevant code provisions of
the CG Code. The audit committee currently comprises three independent
non-executive Directors and is chaired by Mr. Tang Qingbin. The audit
committee is responsible for review of the Group’s accounting principles,
practices internal control procedures and financial reporting matters
including the review of the interim and final results of the Group prior to
recommending to the Board for approval.

The terms of reference of the audit committee has been uploaded to the
Stock Exchange’s and the Company’s websites.

Four meetings of the audit committee were held during the year to review
and approve the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 March 2022 and the six months ended 30 September 2022, to make
recommendation to the Board on the selection of the auditor of the
Company and to review the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The audit committee reviews and monitors the independent auditor’s
independence and objectivity and effectiveness of the audit process. It
holds meetings with representatives of the independent auditor to consider
the scope of its audit, approve its fees, and the scope and appropriateness
of non-audit services, if any, to be provided by it. The audit committee also
makes recommendations to the Board on the appointment and retention of
the independent auditor.

During the year, Crowe (HK) CPA Limited (“Crowe") was re-appointed as
the auditor of the Company and to hold office until the conclusion of the
next AGM.
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The following table sets forth the types of, and estimated fees for, the
principal audit services and non-audit services provided by Crowe to the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2023:

TREIEEEERHEEZE T _=ZF=A=+—
BIEFERMASEERENEZZERBE RIEZE
AR7E &R R REET B -

Fees paid/payable

e ENER

HK$'000

Services rendered P i 1 AR 7% FET
Audit services ZERTE 1,000
Non-audit services IERZ BBRTS -
Total FE 1,000

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk management and
internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has delegated its responsibilities of (i) reviewing risk management
and internal control to the audit committee; and (ii) designing,
implementing and monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems to the management. The Group’s internal audit staff is responsible
for analysing and appraising the adequacy and effectiveness of risk
management and internal control systems.

The Board, through the audit committee, performs annual review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group, including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management function. Having performed such review, the Board considers
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems in place for the
year ended 31 March 2023 are effective and adequate, and no material
internal control failings, weaknesses or deficiencies have been identified
during the course of the review.

The management shall report to the Board as soon as practicable for any

event which may constitute inside information, and the Board shall decide
to make relevant disclosure in a timely manner, if required.
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Anti-Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy

In compliance with Code Provision D.2.7 of the CG Code, the Board
adopted an anti-fraud and anti-corruption policy setting out guidelines and
the minimum standards of conducts, the applicable laws and regulation,
the responsibilities of employees to resist fraud, to help the Group defend
against corrupt practices and to report any reasonably suspected case
of fraud and corruption or any attempts thereof, to the management
or through an appropriate reporting channel. The Group adopts a zero
tolerance policy on any forms of fraud and corruption among all employees
and those acting in an agency or fiduciary capacity on behalf of the Group,
and in its business dealing with third parties. The Board will review the anti-
fraud and anti-corruption policy and mechanism periodically to ensure its
effectiveness and enforce the commitment of the Group to the prevention,
deterrence, detection and investigation of all forms of fraud and corruption.

Whistle-blowing Policy

In compliance with Code Provision D.2.6 of the CG Code, the Board
adopted a whistle-blowing policy providing employees and relevant third
parties who deal with the Group (e.g. customers, suppliers, creditors and
debtors) with guidance and reporting channels to the designated person. A
separate email account (whistle-blowing@energyintl.com.hk) has been set
up for this purpose. All reported matters will be investigated independently
and, in the meantime, all information received from a whistle-blower and
its identity will be kept confidential. The Board will regularly review the
whistle-blowing policy and mechanism to improve its effectiveness.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chong Ching Hoi was appointed as the company secretary of the
Company in August 2022. Mr. Chong is a fellow member of each of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants. He is responsible to the Board for
ensuring the Board procedures and all applicable laws, rules and regulations
are followed. According to the requirements of Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules, Mr. Chong had taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the year.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

Effective Communication

The Company believes that effective communication with Shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investors’ understanding of
the Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company endeavours
to maintain an ongoing dialogue with Shareholders. To ensure that the
Shareholders and potential investors are provided with ready, equal and
timely access to balanced and understandable information about the
Company, the Company has established several channels to communicate
with the Shareholders as follows:

(a) corporate communications such as annual reports, interim reports
and circulars are issued in printed form and are available on the
website of the Stock Exchange at www.hkexnews.hk and on the
website of the Company at website.energyintinv.wisdomir.com;

(b) announcements and press releases are published on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company;

(@) corporate information is made available on the Company’s website;
and

(d) AGM and EGM provide a forum for the Shareholders to make
comments and exchange views with the Directors and senior
management.

The AGM is supposed to enable the Shareholders to exchange views
with the Board. The Chairman of the Board and the Chairmen of audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee are
requested to attend the AGM to be available to answer the questions of
the Shareholders. Separate resolutions will be proposed at the forthcoming
AGM on each substantially separate issue, including the re-election of the
retiring directors. The shareholders communication policy is available on the
website of the Company. Shareholders may, at any time, direct questions,
request for publicly available information and provide comments and
suggestions to directors or management of the Company. Such questions,
requests and comments can be addressed to the Board of Directors of the
Company by mail to Units 4307-08, Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong or by email to info@energyintl.com.hk.

During the year, the Board reviewed the implementation and effectiveness
of the shareholders communication policy and considered it to be effective.
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Procedures for Shareholders to convene an EGM

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles, an EGM shall be convened on the
written requisition of one or more Shareholders holding as at the date of
deposit of the written requisition not less than one tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company having the right of voting at general meetings, such
requisition being in writing and deposited for the attention of the Board or
the company secretary of the Company. The written requisition shall specify
the purpose of requiring the EGM and signed by the requisitionist(s). If
within 21 days of such deposit the Directors fail to proceed to convene the
EGM, the requisitionist(s) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Directors shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for putting forward proposals by
Shareholders at Shareholders’ meeting

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose new resolutions
at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law,
However, Shareholders may request the Company to convene an EGM
following the procedures under Article 64 of the Articles as set out above.

Procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director

Pursuant to Article 113 of the Articles, no person, other than a retiring
Director, shall, unless recommended by the Directors for election, be eligible
for election to the office of Director at any general meeting, unless notice
in writing of the intention to propose that person for election as a Director
and notice in writing by that person of his willingness to be elected shall
have been lodged at the head office or at the registration office at least
seven clear days before the date of the general meeting.

Accordingly, if a Shareholder wishes to nominate a person to stand for
election as a Director at the AGM, the following documents must be validly
served at the Company’s head office or the registration office within the
period specified in Article 113 of the Articles, namely, (1) his/her notice
of intention to propose a resolution to elect a nominated candidate as a
Director at the AGM; (2) a notice signed by the nominated candidate of
the candidate’s willingness to be elected; (3) the nominated candidate’s
information as required to be disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing
Rules; and (4) the nominated candidate’s written consent to the publication
of his/her personal data.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company adopts a dividend policy. The Board shall consider the
following factors before declaring or recommending dividends:

o current and prospective financial performance of the Company;
o growth and investment opportunities;

o other macro and micro economic factors; and

o other factors/events that the Board may deem as relevant.

The payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions under the
applicable laws and the Articles.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR PREPARING
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Group and for ensuring that the financial
statements are prepared in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. The Board also ensures the timely
publication of the financial statements of the Group.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company, Crowe, about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 45 to 53 of this annual
report.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders at a
general meeting must be taken by poll. As such, all the resolutions set out
in the notice of the forthcoming AGM will be voted by poll.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Save for the adoption of the amended and restated memorandum and
articles of association of the Company on 13 September 2022, there is no
significant changes in the constitutional documents of the Company during
the year. The latest version of the memorandum and articles of association
of the Company is available at the Company’s website and the website of
the Stock Exchange.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements of
the Group for the year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its principal
subsidiaries are engaged in the leasing of oil and liquefied chemical terminal
together with its storage and logistics facilities and the provision of agency
services and trading of oil and liquefied chemical products, and insurance
brokerage service. Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
March 2023 are set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by Schedule
5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a description of
the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and an indication
of likely future development in the Group’s business, can be found in the
sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” set out on pages 4 to 5 and pages 6 to 12 respectively of this
annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the Consolidated Income
Statement and Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income on pages
54 and 55.

The state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2023 is set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position on pages 56 to 57.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividends in respect
of the year.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following is a summary of the published consolidated results of the
Group for years 2018 and 2019, the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021,
years 2021/22 and 2022/23, and the assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interests of the Group as at each of the reporting dates.
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EEERS

Results E 4
Fifteen
Year ended 31 March months ended Year ended 31 December
2023 2022 2021 2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HE
—E-—F
=A=+—-H
—E-=F% —ToCF F+AaEA “T-NEF —T-N\F
TER TR FET THT TAT
Revenue Wezs 366,770 520,579 193,148 129,838 115,081
Profit/(loss) attribute to: FEIEEF/ (BE)
Owners of the Company NI Z=DN 89,308 12,762 6,726 31,310 (76,478)
Non-controlling interests Mk 36,955 29,174 52,133 15,545 2,631
126,263 41,936 58,859 46,855 (73,847)
Assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests BEE BERFEERES
As at 31 March As at 31 December
R=A=1—-8 R+-A=+—H
2023 2022 2021 2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-=H& —E-—F —E-—F “2-NF —2-N\F
TET THL THL TEL TAL
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,572,184 1,983,897 1,832,565 1,779,158 1,687,493
Current assets REEE 426,617 365,373 431,568 294,318 529,038
Total assets BEAE 1,998,801 2,349,270 2,264,133 2,073,476 2,216,531
Current liabilities VoEIN= 219,185 500,724 342,254 583,701 757,964
Non-current liabilities ERBER 606,477 608,678 756,550 463,398 529,296
Total liabilities BEBE 825,662 1,109,402 1,098,804 1,047,099 1,287,260
Net assets BEFE 1,173,139 1,239,868 1,165,329 1,026,377 929,271
Non-controlling interests BB ER 304,025 337,920 300,532 238,743 165,946
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements during the year in the investment properties of
the Group are set out in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital during the year are set out in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CONSOLIDATION, SHARE PREMIUM
REDUCTION AND CAPITAL REORGANISATION

On 29 July 2022, the Board proposed that (amongst others):

(i) every ten (10) issued and unissued existing shares of the Company
of par value HK$0.10 each in the share capital of the Company
would be consolidated into one (1) consolidated share of par value
HK$1.00 each in the share capital of the Company (the “Share
Consolidation”);

(ii) the reduction of the share premium account of the Company to
nil and to apply such amount towards offsetting the accumulated
losses of the Company as at the effective date of the Share
Consolidation (the “Share Premium Reduction”); and

(iii) the capital reorganisation of the Company (the “Capital
Reorganisation”), comprising (1) the reduction of the issued
share capital of the Company by (a) eliminating any fraction of a
Consolidated Share in the issued share capital of the Company
arising from the Share Consolidation in order to round down the
total number of Consolidated Shares to a whole number and (b)
cancelling the paid-up capital of the Company to the extent of
HK$0.99 on each of the then issued Consolidated Shares such that
the par value of each issued share of the Company will be reduced
from HK$1.00 to HK$0.01; and (2) sub-division of each of the
authorised but unissued Consolidated Shares of HK$1.00 each into
one hundred unissued new shares of HK$0.01 each.
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The Share Consolidation, Share Premium Reduction and Capital
Reorganisation were approved by the Shareholders at the EGM on 13
September 2022. The Share Consolidation and Share Premium Reduction
became effective on 15 September 2022 and the Capital Reorganisation
became effect on 19 December 2022. Immediately after the Capital
Reorganisation becoming effective, the authorised share capital of the
Company became HK$1,500,000,000 divided into 150,000,000,000 shares
of par value HK$0.01 each, of which 720,562,890 shares are in issue which
are fully paid or credited as fully paid. For details of the Share Consolidation,
Share Premium Reduction and Capital Reorganisation, please refer to the
Company’s announcements dated 29 July 2022, 13 September 2022, 10
November 2022 and 19 December 2022 and the Company’s circular dated
15 August 2022.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION INVOLVING
SUBSCRIPTION OF NEW SHARES UNDER SPECIFIC
MANDATE

Subsequent the end of the reporting period, the Company and the
Subscriber, namely Cosmic Shine International Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and legally and beneficially owned
as to 50% by Mr. Cao Sheng and 20% by Mr. Liu Yong, who are the
executive Directors, entered into a subscription agreement on 28 April
2023, pursuant to which the Subscriber conditionally agreed to subscribe
for 360,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company at the subscription price
of HK$0.416 per share (“Subscription Shares”) for a total consideration of
approximately HK$149.8 million in cash; and the Company has conditionally
agreed to allot and issue the Subscription Shares to the Subscriber under
the specific mandate and the whitewash waiver (the “Subscription”).

Details of the Subscription were set out in the Company’s announcements
dated 28 April 2023, 9 May 2023, 16 May 2023, 16 June 2023 and 21
June 2023.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the laws
of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company was
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the Group
during the year are set out in note 37(b) to the consolidated financial
statements and in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
respectively. As at 31 March 2023, the Company’s reserve available
for distribution to the shareholders, calculated in accordance with the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands amounted to approximately
HK$577,881,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted
for 100% of the Group’s total sales for the year and sales to the largest
customer included therein amounted to approximately 42.9%.

During the year, the purchase from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 98.2% of the Group’s total purchase for the
year and purchase from the largest supplier included therein amounted to
approximately 65.9%.

None of the Directors, any of their associates or Shareholders (which, to
the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital), had any beneficial interests in the Group’s five largest
customers and/or suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company Board members during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Cao Sheng (Chairman)

Mr. Liu Yong (Chief executive officer)
(Appointed on 7 April 2022)

Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral

Mr. Lan Yonggiang

Mr. Shi Jun (Appointed on 7 April 2022)

Mr. Luo Yingnan (Appointed on 4 April 2023)

Mr. Yu Zhiyong (Resigned on 7 April 2022)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tang Qingbin
Mr. Wang Jinghua
Mr. Fung Nam Shan

Pursuant to the Articles, Directors retiring at the upcoming AGM will be
eligible for re-election. Further details of the Directors’ retirement and re-
election will be set out in a circular of the Company dispatched together
with the notice of the AGM.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 13 to 16 of the
annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Luo Yingnan has entered into a service agreement with the Company
for a term of one year from 4 April 2023, subject to further renewal, and
will continue thereafter unless and until terminated by the Company or the
Director has not been re-elected as a director of the Company or has been
removed by shareholders of the Company at any of its general meeting or
is disqualified from acting as a director of the Company in accordance with
the Articles.

Saved as disclosed above, none of the Directors proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming AGM of the Company has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

Details of the remuneration of the Directors during the year are set out in
note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision that provides for indemnity against liability
incurred by Directors and officers of the Group is currently in force and was
in force throughout the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, no Director had a
significant beneficial interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance to the business of the Group to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or were in existence during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2023, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which had been notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were required to be entered in the register referred to therein
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, are set out below:
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Approximate

percentage of

the issued share

Number of capital of the

Name of Directors Capacity Shares held Company

HEAT

2EITRAK

EEsA 145 RS EE BHABEDE

Mr. Cao Sheng (“Mr. Cao”) Interest of controlled corporation 215,431,372* 29.90%
BERAE(EEXRED AR

Mr. Liu Yong (“Mr. Liu") Interest of controlled corporation 215,431,372* 29.90%

ZIBEE(RIEED REEE R

* According to the filings under Disclosure of Interest (the “DI Filings”) under
Part XV of the SFO retrieved by the Company from public records, these
215,431,372 ordinary shares of the Company (the “Shares”) were held by
Giant Crystal Limited (”Giant Crystal”). Giant Crystal is 100% legally and
beneficially owned by Cosmic Shine International Limited (“Cosmic Shine”),
which is in turn legally and beneficially owned as to 50% by Mr. Cao and
20% by Mr. Liu, both being executive Directors. Cosmic Shine and Giant
Crystal are regarded as controlled corporations of Mr. Cao and Mr. Liu and
therefore, Mr. Cao and Mr. Liu are deemed to be interested in 215,431,372
Shares interested in Cosmic Shine and Giant Crystal. The deemed interest
under Part XV of the SFO of Mr. Cao and Mr. Liu duplicate with each other
completely.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
Director or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or
were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire
such rights in any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2023, so far as any Directors are aware based on the
DI Filings, persons (other than the Directors or chief executives of the
Company) who have interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares which were required to be disclosed to the Company under Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were required to be recorded in the
register of the Company required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO
were as follows:
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Long positions

i)

Approximate

percentage of

issued share capital

Name of Shareholders Capacity Shares of the Company
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EEITRA

RERER &4 IR BRBEDTHL

Giant Crystal Beneficial owner 215,431,372* 29.90%

5 & EnEAA

Cosmic Shine Interest of controlled corporation 215,431,372* 29.90%
Cosmic Shine REEE R

* Based on the DI Filings, Giant Crystal is 100% legally and beneficially owned @ BEE = B R AR + 66 & ) Cosmic Shine & A &

by Cosmic Shine. Giant Crystal is regarded as controlled corporation of
Cosmic Shine and therefore, Cosmic Shine is deemed to be interested in
215,431,372 Shares interested in by Giant Crystal. The deemed interest
under Part XV of the SFO of Cosmic Shine and Giant Crystal duplicate with
each other completely.
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All the interests stated above represent long positions in the Shares. As at
31 March 2023, no short positions were recorded in the register maintained
by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, so far as the Directors are aware up to 31 March
2023, no other person had an interest or short position in the Shares or
underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of the Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which was
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the EGM held on 24 June
2013, the Company adopted its current share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”). The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
incentives and rewards to Director, employee, consultant, customer,
supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or contractor of the Group or an
affiliate corporation, or trustee of trust related to or controlled corporation
of any of the foregoing (the “Eligible Participants”) and providing the
Eligible Participants with an opportunity to have a personal stake in the
Company with the view to achieving the following objectives, namely: (i)
motivate the Eligible Persons to optimise their performance and efficiency
for the benefit of the Group; and (ii) attract and retain or otherwise
maintain ongoing business relationship with the Eligible Persons whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the long term growth of the
Group. A summary of the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme can
be founded on pages 7 to 16 of the Company’s circular dated 28 May
2013.

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2022/23

LR ESERA TR - R-_BE-=F= A
S+—B RADAREE SRS G E 336
EEE L B R ML R D -

BIALFRBEEN  REEFM BEE-FT-=
FSAS+—B - HEmE A LRRA SRR
Ao EABREES RSO EXBE2R3
2 HEXAADTHERD BHEAEAFRE
BERBEGENE6HEATE L BEM 28
R -

fBRESHE

BEAR_E—=F~A-+tHABTZRELET
ARe BB ERAZESR  ARRCHEMEEZA
H R S (TRE Rt E]) - BRI E
EREREEAEENAR B CES - EE -
BAABPE HER REB ABA EM
SARE R - AT —IEEREETER AR
REEE([FERSEE])  UAAERSESE
REERARAIFHEEEARRNEE  UERNU
TEZ: ()HEEERALUELEERRBE -
FAREE S &)W KR sk LAE 75 = 4
HHEAGERATZHEXBBER MZEFEER
ATZEREREHAEE REERET B
HERESSEIZRACRHE  BF2HAREAH
HA-—Z—=FRA-+ \BHNBRFTIEESF
168 °



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Share Option Scheme had a life span of ten years running from 24
June 2013 to 23 June 2023. Under the terms of the Share Option Scheme,
the Board may, at its discretion, grant options to the Eligible Participants
to subscribe for Shares. Initially, the maximum number of Shares which
may be issued upon the exercise of all options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”) was 1,746,849,212
Shares, being 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of approval of
the Share Option Scheme on 24 June 2013, which have been adjusted to
174,684,921 Shares after the share consolidation on 8 October 2014 and
further adjusted to 17,468,492 Shares after the Share Consolidation on
15 September 2022. The maximum entitlement of each Eligible Participant
in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue,
provided that the maximum entitlement for any grantee being a substantial
Shareholder or an independent non-executive Director or their associates
shall be capped at 0.1% of the Shares in issue (or HK$5 million in value
based on the closing price of the Shares underlying the options, whichever
is higher). Any grant exceeding these individual limits shall be subject to
Shareholders’ approval, with the relevant grantees and their associates
abstaining from voting. The overall limit on the number of Shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from
time to time.

Unless otherwise determined by the Directors at their sole discretion, there
is no general requirement of a minimum period for which an option must
be held or any performance target which must be satisfied or achieved
before such an option can be exercised. An option shall be exercisable
at any time during an exercise period to be notified by the Board to each
grantee, provided that no option shall be exercisable later than ten years
after its date of grant. The subscription price of the options must be at
least the highest of: (a) the closing price of a Share as stated in the daily
quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant which must be
a business day; (b) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as shown
on the daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) the nominal value of
a Share. HK$1.00 is payable by each Eligible Participant to the Company
on acceptance of an offer of an option, which shall be paid within 14 days
from the date of offer.

No share option was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the year
under review and there was no outstanding share option as at 31 March
2023 and 2022. No share option grant was effectively made and accepted
under the Share Option Scheme since its adoption on 24 June 2013, nor
has the Scheme Mandate Limit has ever been refreshed. As at the date of
this report, the Share Option Scheme was lapsed.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

For the year, save for the Share Option Scheme as previously mentioned,
the Company has not entered into any equity-linked agreements, and there
did not subsist any equity-linked agreement entered into by the Company
as at 31 March 2023.

CONNECTED AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the year, there were no transactions required to be disclosed as
connected or continuing connected transactions in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

Mr. Luo Yingnan was appointed as an executive Director with effect from
4 April 2023. Since his date of appointment and up to the date of this
report, Mr. Luo held majority shareholding and directorship in Fuhai Group
New Energy Holdings Co., Ltd. (B /8% E# LR IZ AR 2 7)) (“Fuhai
Group”), an enterprise in China which is engaged in petrochemical and
energy businesses, and Fuhai Oil Pte. Ltd. (“Fuhai Singapore”), an enterprise
in Singapore which is also engaged in petrochemical and energy businesses.
In this regard, the Company was notified by Mr. Luo that his role in Fuhai
Group is supervisory in nature and he did not take part in daily operations.
Regarding Fuhai Singapore, as the Company does not operate any business
in Singapore, the Company is of the view that Mr. Luo’s shareholding and
directorship in Fuhai Singapore is unlikely to result in any actual competition
with the Group’s businesses. That having said, the Company has obtained
an undertaking from Mr. Luo, under which he undertook to notify the
Company of potential conflict of interest if it ever arises, and that he will
refer any relevant business opportunity to the Group in priority to any other
party including Fuhai Group or Fuhai Singapore for so long he occupies
directorship in the Company.

Save as disclosed above, no other Directors are considered to have an
interest in a business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the business of the Group, as defined by the Listing Rules,
other than those businesses of which the Directors have been appointed as
Directors to represent the interests of the Company and/or of the Group.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability of the
environment and maintaining a high standard of corporate social
governance essential for creating a framework for motivating staff and
contributes to the community in which we conduct our businesses and
creating a sustainable return to the Group.

Particulars of the Company’s corporate governance practices and principles
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 17 to 30 of this
annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirm that the Company
maintained the amount of public float as required under the Listing Rules
during the year.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

Details of the events after the reporting date are set out in note 46 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group is committed to operate in a sustainable manner while balancing
the interests of its various stakeholders including customers, suppliers
and employees. Through regular stakeholder engagement via different
channels, the stakeholders are encouraged to give their opinions regarding
the environmental, social and governance policies of the Group.

This includes providing quality services to customers, developing effective
and mutual beneficial working relationships with its suppliers, and offering
competitive remuneration package with safety working environments to
employees.

The details of environmental, social and governance policies and
performance of the Group will be disclosed in a standalone Environmental,
Social and Governance Report, which will be issued in due course.
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CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

The change in Directors’ information since the published date of the
2022/23 interim report of the Company which are required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules are disclosed below:

Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral resigned as an independent non-executive
director of China Water Affairs Group Limited (stock code: 855), a company
listed on the Main Board, with effect from 1 December 2022.

Mr. Fung Nam Shan resigned as an authorised representative of Seamless
Green China (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 8150), a company listed on
GEM, with effect from 26 April 2023.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company has reviewed with management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, and discussed
internal controls and financial reporting matters including a review of
the audited financial statements of the Company for the year. The audit
committee of the Company comprises three independent non-executive
Directors.

AUDITOR

On 20 August 2021, ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited (“Zhonghui”)
resigned as the auditor of the Company. The Board appointed Crowe on
14 September 2021 to fill the causal vacancy following the resignation of
Zhonghui.

Saved as disclosed above, there was no other change in auditor of the
Company during the past three years.

The financial statements for the year were audited by Crowe. Crowe will
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment. A resolution
will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM to re-appoint Crowe as auditor

of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Cao Sheng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 June 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Crowe

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ENERGY INTERNATIONAL INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Energy
International Investments Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 54 to
204, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2023, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Valuation of investment properties

Refer to note 19 to the consolidated financial statements and the
accounting policies in note 4(e) to the consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

HEEKRER

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a key audit matter
due to the key source of estimation uncertainty and the significant
assumptions and judgements involved in the valuation.

B REMEZHEBRNREREZTIE - ARG IHEEESN
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As disclosed in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group’s investment properties amounted to HK$1,565,499,000 as at 31
March 2023. Gain on changes in fair value of investment properties of
HK$12,964,000 was recognised in the consolidated income statement for
the year.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNERNAEERREERSEE

Our procedures in relation to assessing the
appropriateness of the carrying values of the
investment properties included:

BT EREMEREABCEEECAEETE
i

- Reviewing the valuation report from
the Valuer and holding discussion with
management and the Valuer to understand
the valuation basis, methodology used and
underlying assumptions applied,;
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Key audit matter

HRERER

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties was determined by
adopting the valuation techniques with significant unobservable inputs,
assumptions of market conditions and judgements. The Group also worked
closely with the independent qualified valuers (the “Valuer”) to establish
and determine the appropriate valuation techniques.
EREREMENXTEDRAAEAEANATEER ABIRAHERI -
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNERNTEERRERER

- Evaluating management’s process in respect

of reviewing the valuation performed by the
Valuer;

- MBI E RN B EMET 2 E R
|52

- Evaluating the competence, capabilities and

objectivity of the Valuer;
- S EM 2 ER BB REEHE

- Obtaining the underlying data used by

the Valuer and assessing whether they are

appropriate;
- BISEERMAT A 2 B BRI T hZ SR
BEAEA

- Checking arithmetical accuracy of the

valuation model; and

- mEMEELER FMERIE: R

- Performing market research and analysis

to assess whether the changes in fair value
of investment properties resulted from the
valuation was reasonable and consistent
with market trends to our knowledge.
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Fair value measurement of preferred shares
classified as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

Refer to note 31 to the consolidated financial statements and the
accounting policies in note 4(n) to the consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

HEELEAE

Shandong Shundong Port Services Company Limited (“Shundong Port”), an
indirect-owned subsidiary of the Company, had issued a series of preferred
shares to two independent third parties. In accordance with HKFRS 9, they
are accounted for as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL") as at 31 March 2023.
ERFIHEHEANMNBARILRIER BB ER LR ([NIEREK]) EM
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As of 31 March 2023, the fair values of the preferred shares are
HK$378,234,000. Loss on changes in fair value of the preferred shares of
HK$19,453,000 was recognised in the consolidated income statement for
the year.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNERNAEERREREE

Our procedures in relation to the fair value
measurement of preferred shares classified as
financial liabilities at FVTPL included:
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- Understanding the key controls over the
fair value measurement and evaluating
the design and implementation of these
controls;
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Key audit matter

HRERER

The determination of the fair value of these financial liabilities at FVTPL
involves significant estimates made by management.
BEZERATEAABRZMBEGEZATESLHAEREEELD
EPNER

Therefore, we identify the fair value measurement of these financial
liabilities at reporting date as a key audit matter.

Bt R ZEVBRERN RS B2 AV EFEIFIRBEREREE -

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

R Y R

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNERNTEERRERER

- Assessing the objectivity, independence and
competence of the Valuer;

- AHEEEM N F B B REE

- With the assistance of our internal valuation
specialists, evaluating the valuation
techniques and methodologies applied in
the circumstances, reviewing management's
key inputs with supporting evidence such as
market data obtained independently; and
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- Examining the adequacy and
appropriateness of the disclosure of the fair
value measurement of the financial liabilities
at FVTPL.
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2022/23

REMBEZGAMBHREME  RMANEEREH
HEHMEM  EUBES EEHMENEL R
RABHRERRBMERZRES Tﬁ?ﬂ’]'liiﬂﬁ
EEAEEAUFFEERERRANE

ERBMEETHIE HRMABBZEMER
FEEAERRL  HMAFEREZEFE it
mE - BB ERRE

ESHGAMBBRRARKENER

EXERRARBERESHMAGSHEMNTENS
BERARBERRGINEERERHREEM
RNFNEEFBRE  YHERRBRELRAME

#&ﬁﬁ’]iﬁ%TfﬁﬁﬂﬁAﬁku‘F‘ma&ﬁﬁ HEOERX
SRR TR AR B B

=&

EREGAMBERRE EFARRTE EF
BFELEMED  YHEERBL T RERRSE
REBMNER URERBELERGER
RIFEREEN EXREFBRIFLELE L5
BHOBBERNBERTR-

EEREZZEEHIBETREES
BRERFZEET-

=
=g

i

1



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of agreements, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
R TR

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2022/23
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 30 June 2023

Chan Wing Fai
Practising Certificate Number P07327
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
mElER

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HILtFE

2023 2022
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
—E=-= —E-
Bt 3 FExT FHET
Revenue & 8 366,770 520,579
Cost of sales and services rendered SHE MR RIS IR AR (204,489) (355,566)
Gross profit EF 162,281 165,013
Interest revenue FE W= 9(a) 3,983 8,957
Other income and other gains/(losses), net  E b U A & H AU zs,~
(E518) % 9(b) (31,479) (29,264)

Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAX (9,403) (14,657)
Administrative expenses THF X (33,704) (39,725)
Fair value gain on investment properties wEMENFEW = 19 12,964 8,986
Net gain on derecognition of financial assets X IFERFFEER BB

and liabilities W F58 22 63,010 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB R Rz ks 43(d) 1,955 -
Finance costs B RS ARAR 1 (16,455) (25,531)
Profit before income tax R it 45 B3 A% F 153,152 73,779
Income tax expenses Friefim s 12 (26,889) (31,843)
Profit for the year FREA 13 126,263 41,936
Profit attributable to : TH S EERER
Owners of the Company VINNEIEZ RSN 89,308 12,762
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR I A 36,955 29,174

126,263 41,936
(Restated)
(F&E5)

Earnings per share BREF
Basic and diluted (HK cents per share) AR #SE (FRREWL) 15 12.39 1.77

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2022/23




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEEEBAR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
Note —=E=-= —E-F
ihr=g FET FET
Profit for the year FREF 126,263 41,936
Other comprehensive (expenses)/income, HMEE (X)), WA -
net of tax HkRBiE
Items that may be reclassified RENJEFAEE B
subsequently to profit or loss: ZHEE -
Exchange differences on translation BREGINEBI BT 2
of financial statements of foreign fEHZ5
operations (86,357) 51,162
Reclassification of cumulative exchange RSB ARERERN
reserve upon disposal of subsidiaries DI REE R FHE 43(d) (685) =
Item that will not be reclassified to B TEETHEE
profit or loss: BmiyEE -
Fair value changes of equity BATEGFAEMEZE
instruments at fair value through other WARERTA
comprehensive income NFEZH (6,104) (18,522)
Other comprehensive (expense)/income FREMZE (BAX)
for the year, net of tax WA HIBRBIE (93,146) 32,640
Total comprehensive income FRE2EBALRE
for the year 33,117 74,576
Total comprehensive income THEEEEZEKRALE:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEE RSN 12,506 37,192
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR 20,611 37,384
33,117 74,576
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e M BARRE

At31 March2023 R=F-_=F=A=+—H

2023 2022
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
—E=-= —E=-=
Bt 3 FHET FHET
Non-current assets FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BB REE 18(a) 5,652 1,002
Right-of-use assets FREEE 18(b) 1,033 8,556
Investment properties LAY 19 1,565,499 1,666,170
Goodwill EES 20 - -
Investment in an associate REtZ RN aHIRE 21 = -
Equity instruments at fair value through RATER AEMEE KA
other comprehensive income S TR 22 - 203,890
Deposits and other receivables & &E e UGRIE 24 - 104,279
1,572,184 1,983,897
Current assets REBEE
Trade, bills and lease receivables EoRWER  BRERR
JE W A8 & KA 23 190,338 156,869
Prepayments, deposits and TERRIE - e REM
other receivables JE Wk A 24 140,250 126,778
Loan receivable JEW & 5K 25 - 3,099
Financial assets at fair value through BAFERABRZ
profit or loss HBEE 26 12,937 20,712
Cash and bank balances Re RIRITET 27 83,092 57,915
426,617 365,373
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 e~ BR 5 I A At FE T K 28 54,764 76,503
Bank borrowings RITER 29 154,265 276,461
Other borrowings EfbfEmm 30 = 1,828
Lease liabilities HEARE 32 1,160 4,496
Promissory notes A ER 33 5,138 137,269
Tax payables FERHLIR 3,858 4,167
219,185 500,724
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEE(AE) FE 207,432 (135,351)
Total assets less current liabilities EERERRBESE 1,779,616 1,848,546
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ma BRI &

At31March2023 R =—Z=-_=F=HA=+—H

2023 2022
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
—=E=-= —E-F
ihr=g F#ET FET
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Bank borrowings RITERK 29 20,569 22,216
Other borrowings EMER 30 10,652 10,652
Preferred shares Bk 31 378,234 387,539
Lease liabilities HEBE 32 2,133 6,777
Deferred tax liabilities RIENIEEE 34 194,889 181,494
606,477 608,678
Net assets BEFE 1,173,139 1,239,868
Capital and reserves BARG#E
Share capital fi& 2 35 7,206 720,563
Reserves & 861,908 181,385
Equity attributable to owners AAREEABEER
of the Company 869,114 901,948
Non-controlling interests FERRER 304,025 337,920
Total equity R 1,173,139 1,239,868
The consolidated financial statements on pages 54 to 204 were approved BEEF4EMEBHREMBHRERER T

and authorised for issue by the board of directors (the “Directors”) on 30

June 2023 and are signed on its behalf by:

Cao Sheng
BR
Director

BE

[ 3
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Liu Yong
25
Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEERBER

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B EZE=F —_=F=A=+—HILFE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

KARREARGRE
Fair value
through other
comprehensive (Accumulated
Share Gapitl ~ Exchange  Revaluation income Other losses)/ Non-
Share premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve retained controlling Total
apital  (Note38i)  (Note38(i))  (Note38(ii))  (Note38(v))  (Note3(y)) (Note38(vi)) eamings Total interests equity
HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RAVE
HAER2RE
RBEE  EAEE  ERRE  EREE  WABE  EHRE  (ZHER)
BE (R0  (REe) (WM (K0 (REssn)  (KEds)  /REEA & FERER L3
Tin Tin T T T Tk Tk T T Thn Thn
Balance at 1 April 2021 W-F--EMA-REH 720563 3,087,641 171007 10,931 33865 (3,648) 18743 3,180,329 864,797 300532 1,165,329
Changes inequityfor the year EmEaRY:
Profit for the ear Ef ) - - - - - - - 12762 12762 21174 41,93
Other comprehensive incomel(expenses) for ~ EAEH2EHA/ (BF)
the year
Exchange differences on translztion of
financil statements of foreign operafions - - - £95) - - - - 495 8210 51,162
Fair value changes of equity nstruments
at fairvalue through other comprehensive
income - - - - - (18522) - - (18522) - (18522)
Total comprehensive income/(expenses) ER2ERA/ (B3 48
for the year - - - 4952 - (18522) - 12,762 319 3734 74576
Change in non-<ortroling interests withoutlossof -~ &5 % 241 03 5%
control ote 43(e) (a8 Sl GRTEC) - - - - - - 9 (140 (41) 4 B7)
Balance at 31 March 2022 e
t-REk 720563 3,087,641 171027 53,883 33865 2170 18842 (3,167,703) 901,948 3790 1,139,868
Balance at 1 April 2022 HA-E-ZEmA-H
&8 70563 3,087,641 11,07 53,883 33,865 (22170) 18802 (3,167,703 901,948 B0 1239868
Changes n equty for the er: ERERRY:
Profit fo the year ERiF - - - - - - - 89,308 89,308 36,955 126,263
Other comprehensive expenses for the year ~ EREH2EHR
xchange diferences on tanslton offnancil $HIBEEL
staterents of foreign operations - - - (10013) - - - - (10,013) (16,344) (86,357)
Reclasifcation of cumulative exchange resere
upon disposal of subsidiares (note 43(d)) - - - (685) - - - - (685) - (685)
Fair value changes of equity nstruments at far
value through other comprehensive income
- - - - - (6,108) - - (6,104) - (6,104)
Total comprehensive (expenses)/income for ~ ER2T (B%) /HALE
the year - - - (70,698) - (6,108) - 89,308 12506 20,611 B
Change in non-<ontroling interests withoutlossof -~ T % % 251 Be0t 8%
control (ote 43) 8 (2 ) - - - - - - (¢5340) - (530) (54508 (9986)
Release upon derecognition of financial assets i
(note 22) - - - - - 8204 - (28.274) - - -
Share premium reduction (note 38() - (3,087,641) - - - - - 3,087,641 - - -
Share reorganisation (note 35) (113357) - 451,607 - - - - 261,660 - - -
Balance at 31 March 2023 W-§ZZEZ3
Zr-Bik 7,206 - 628,724 (16815) 33865 - (54%) w6 869,114 005 1113
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
n-K1%?1$1:§25ﬁii§iéi%

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BiZE =T —_=F=A=+—HILFE

2023 2022
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
—E=-= —E-F
i3 FExT FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETDHRESRE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before income tax R BT 1S B A s A 153,152 73,779
Adjustments for: HTIIBE (EHFE -
Depreciation of property, plant and M WERZRENE
equipment 13, 18(a) 498 1,398
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREESENE 13, 18(b) 3,485 4,982
Impairment loss under expected credit loss & 5 & U BR 2 I fiE W 72 & 5%
model on trade and lease receivables, HRNBHEEBEELXT
net ZREEEFER 6(a), 9(b) 3,911 8,632
Reversal of impairment loss under expected &< + H b I U5k B K FE Uk
credit loss model on deposit, other BERREAEEES
receivables and loan receivables, net BT ZREBEELFE  6), 9b) (1,789) (1,325)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - WE REREEE
equipment 13 1 -
Fair value loss/(gain) on financial assets at BRATFEFABRZHBE
fair value through profit or loss, net EZ A NFERE, (k)
R 9(b) 7,753 (7,973)
Fair value gain on investment properties BWEWMEQNFERE 19 (12,964) (8,986)
Fair value loss on promissory notes EEEBRNTEEE 9(b), 33 524 3,236
Fair value loss on preferred shares EBrERATEESE 9(b) 19,453 38,800
Loss on termination of lease BIFMHE 2 BB - 269
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR 2 W= 43(d) (1,955) =
Gain on lease modification HEBEm s B 9(b) (89) =
Net gain on derecognition of financial RIIRVBEERBEZ
assets and liabilities Wz 558 22 (63,010) =
Interest income PSRN 9(a) (3,983) (8,957)
Interest expenses FERXZ 11 16,455 25,531
Operating profit before working capital &E&E&#E a2 S HER
changes 121,452 129,386
Increase in trade, bills and lease receivables & 5 E W ARk « FEUR 2 1% K &
WAl & R IEE N (49,072) (146,374)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, deposits  TE A « o R H b fE Uk
and other receivables R, (3 m) 43,065 (411)
Decrease in trade and other payables B Z) FE A BR 3R EL fh FE 5 5RIE
e (13,815) (87,402)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEERME (A Z2HE
operating activities B 101,630 (104,801)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

rERERER
For the year ended 31 March 2023 # & =A==+ —HLEEE
2023 2022
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
—E—-= —ZF-—
ihr=g FET FHT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING BRETHRESARE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and equipment FEE % - BE &R E 18(a) (5,237) (584)
Additions to investment properties LI E Y 19 (9,922) (15,264)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at ~ H &L A FET ABE 2 B
fair value through profit or loss BEZFTSRIA 86 483
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BEERATEFABR B
through profit or loss BE (64) (56)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests W SRR AR A 25 (6,013) (37)
Net cash inflow from the disposal of HEMBATMERESRA
subsidiaries FEE 43(d) 1,592 -
Payment of refundable deposits of SAAREREREFHE
investments, net - (25,821)
Proceeds from rescission of contracts FEBR & 2 TS RUA 22 73,334 -
Repayment of loans from third parties E=HEEER 1,144 219,305
Repayment from an associate iR NCTE = — 2,425
Interest received B Y F B 134 8,957
Net cash generated from investing RETZBFEBZREFHE
activities 55,054 189,408
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RMETHRERE
ACTIVITIES
New bank borrowings raised MEE ZRITER - 169,750
Repayments of bank borrowings BEERITER (101,843) (56,988)
Repayments of other borrowings BEEEAMER (1,698) (9,264)
Repayments of lease liabilities, including BEHEERE B&E
related interests AN E (3,713) (5,497)
Repayments of non-controlling shareholders’ {& & FF#2 Hxﬂﬁﬁfﬁ b7
loans - (131,863)
Repayment of promissory notes BEELERE 33 (6,000) (1,000)
Interest paid EAHE (14,840) (11,707)
Net cash used in financing activities MEETHFFACREFE (128,094) (46,569)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReRESZEEBEMFHE
EQUIVALENTS 28,590 38,038
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EREE) 25 (3.413) 6,197
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FHRERREZEEE
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 57,915 13,680
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRASRREZEEE -
AT END OF YEAR, REPRESENTED BY ERERBITHET
CASH AND BANK BALANCES 27 83,092 57,915

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2022/23




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
is a limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in the
Cayman lIslands. Its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands
and its principal place of business is Units 4307-08, Office Tower,
Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The
Company'’s shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

During the year, the principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) include:

- Oil and liquefied chemical terminal (the “Oil and Liquefied
Chemical Terminal”) representing the business of leasing of
oil and liquefied chemical terminal, together with its storage
and logistics facilities (the “Port and Storage Facilities”), and
provision of agency services and trading of oil and liquefied
chemical products; and

- Insurance brokerage service (the “Insurance Brokerage
Service"”) representing the business of providing insurance
brokerage service.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 43(a).

1.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

2.

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2022/23

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"), which collective term includes all applicable
individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the "Listing Rules”). Significant accounting policies

adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRSs
which are first effective or available for early adoption for
the current accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current
accounting period reflected in these financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency
of the Company and all values are rounded to the nearest

thousand (“HK$'000"”) except when otherwise stated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(b)

Loss of controls over assets of Qinghai
Forest Source Mining Industry Developing
Company Limited (“QHFSMI”) and Inner
Mongolia Forest Source Mining Industry
Developing Company Limited (“IMFSMI")
and deconsolidating QHFSMI and IMFSMI

Z

Ms Leung Lai Ching (“Ms Leung”)’s legal status as
director and legal representative in QHFSMI and
IMFSMI remained unchanged in the absence of her
cooperation

Ms Leung was a director and legal representative of
both QHFSMI and IMFSMI. In September 2009, the sole
shareholder of QHFSMI and IMFSMI (i.e. a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) resolved to remove Ms Leung’s
capacity as director and legal representative of both QHFSMI
and IMFSMI with immediate effect. However, the respective
members of the board of directors and legal representative
of QHFSMI and IMFSMI were not officially changed up to
the date of authorisation for issue of the Group’s financial
statements as Ms Leung, being the legal representative,
was not cooperative and failed to provide the requested
documents and corporate seals.

Transfer of exploration licence without the Company’s
acknowledgments, consent or approval

The Group acquired QHFSMI from Ms Leung in 2007.
QHFSMI was the holder of an exploration licence, which
conferred QHFSMI the rights to conduct exploration work
for the mineral resources in the titanium mine at Xiao Hong
Shan in Inner Mongolia, the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”). In 2010, the board of directors discovered that the
exploration licence held by QHFSMI was transferred to a
company known as A & /NALILRREEER QA (in
English, for identification purpose only, Inner Mongolia Xiao
Hong Shan Yuen Xian Mining Industry Company Limited)
("Yuen Xian Company”) at a consideration of Renminbi
("RMB") 8,000,000 (the “Change of Exploration Right
Agreement”) without the Company’s acknowledgment,
consent or approval. Ms Leung is one of the directors and
the legal representative of Yuen Xian Company. Without
the exploration licence, QHFSMI no longer had the rights
to, among other things, carry out exploration of the mineral
resources of the titanium mine, access to the titanium mine
and neighbouring areas and has no priority in obtaining the
mining rights of the titanium mine.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(b)

Loss of controls over assets of Qinghai
Forest Source Mining Industry Developing
Company Limited (“QHFSMI”) and Inner
Mongolia Forest Source Mining Industry
Developing Company Limited (“IMFSMI")
and deconsolidating QHFSMI and IMFSMI
(Continued)

Final decision on the Change of Exploration Right
Agreement

As soon as the Group had discovered the loss of QHFSMI's
exploration licence, the Group commenced the legal
proceedings against Ms Leung for getting back the
exploration licence. In March 2016, the Company received
the final decision letter from the Qinghai Procuratorate that
the Change of Exploration Right Agreement was invalid.
As Yuen Xian Company had already obtained the mining
licence on the titanium mine at Xiao Hong Shan in Inner
Mongolia, the PRC, the Group is now seeking for the legal
advice to resolve this matter.

De-consolidating QHFSMI and IMFSMI

Given that (i) the discovery of the loss of significant assets
of QHFSMI; (ii) Ms Leung’ s legal status as director and
legal representative in QHFSMI and IMFSMI remained
unchanged; and (iii) the Group was unable to obtain the
financial information of QHFSMI and IMFSMI, the Directors
considered that the Group had no power over QHFSMI
and IMFSMI, exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
QHFSMI and IMFSMI and the ability to use its power to
affect those variable returns. The Group appointed the PRC
lawyers to handle the matters in regaining its controlling
power over QHFSMI and IMFSMI. In the opinion of the
Directors, the aforesaid legal proceedings have no material
impact on the financial position and operations of the
Group as the Group is still in the process of regaining the
controlling power over QHFSMI and IMFSMI which had
already been deconsolidated since 2010.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

2. WwREBEEE@m)

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2023 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries and
the Group’s interest in an associate.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that
the following assets and liabilities are stated at their fair
value as explained in the accounting policies set out below:

- investment properties;
- equity instruments at fair value through other

comprehensive income (“FVOCI");

- financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL"); and

- financial liabilities at FVTPL.

(9]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(o)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other factors that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 5.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO 3. ERAKEBIEEBMBREE

HKFRSs 2l

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily RAEAFEREERZLBITER

effective for the current year B % 5% & 22 A

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs issued REEBERA G HEEZEHREMBR

by the HKICPA to these consolidated financial statements for the KERMBESHAASEMHN TILE

current accounting period: HESG ek

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual BEMBWE HELSERM R
Framework AR E 3 5%

CEHIEN)

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: BBEEFHER WM -HWERZE
Proceeds before Intended F165% (1BEIAR) BMEREMOME
Use FRIE

Amendments to HKAS 37 Provision, Contingent Liabilities BB ER BE IRBERK
and Contingent Assets: FE37BEIAR) REE: BEESH—
Onerous Contracts — Cost of B1TE R KR
Fulfilling a Contract

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to EARUEMELER BEYBREELER =
HKFRSs 2018-2020 (BETZA) E-NEFE_ZT_

TEMFEE

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation N B R E AR A E ST AE R A

that is not yet effective for the current accounting period. The MEFTET RS R - RAFEERLE

application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year A ABMGEREENTESRNEEBRNAF

had no material impact on the Group’s financial positions and ERBEFERNMBRIRRE R $Z

performance for the current year and prior years and/or on the ERAVBRRAERBEELEMEANY

disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements. Z .
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

3.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO

HKFRSs (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but

not yet effective

The Group has not early adopted the following new and
amendments to HKFRS that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and

HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Issuance Contracts and the
Related Amendments'

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback®

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-Current and
Related Amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies!

Definition of Accounting
Estimates’

Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction’

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

B Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the

impact of these developments is expected to be in the period of

initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial

statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

4. EARGFHEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra- group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to
the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interest's proportionate
share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

(a)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to owners of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated income statement and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling interests and
owners of the Company. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. Loans from
holders of non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as financial
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset or, when appropriate, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate
or joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, BEARETTEE@)

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 4(i)(ii)), unless the investment is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).

Associate

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over its management, including participation in the financial
and operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method,
unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale). Under the equity
method, the investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted
for any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-date
fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the
cost of the investment (if any). The cost of the investment
includes purchase price, other costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of the investment, and any direct investment
into the associate that forms part of the Group’s equity
investment. Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for
the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to the
investment (note 4(i)(ii)). At each reporting date, the Group
assesses whether there is any objective evidence that the
investment is impaired. Any acquisition-date excess over
cost, the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax
results of the investees and any impairment losses for the
year are recognised in the consolidated income statement,
whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-
tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive income
is recognised in the consolidated income statement and
statement of other comprehensive income.

(a)

(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

Associate (Continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying amount of
the investment under the equity method, together with any
other long-term interests that in substance form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate (after applying the
expected credit loss (“ECL") model to such other long-term
interests where applicable (see note 4(i)(i)).

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest
retained in that former investee at the date when significant
influence is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
Group's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree; over

(ii) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 4(i)ii)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in
the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Other investments in equity securities

The Group's policies for investments in equity securities,
other than investments in subsidiaries and associates, are
set out follows:

Investments in equity securities are recognised/derecognised
on the date the Group commits to purchase/sell the
investment. The investments are initially stated at fair value
plus directly attributable transaction costs, except for those
investments measured at FVTPL for which transaction costs
are recognised directly in profit or loss. For an explanation
of how the Group determines fair value of financial
instruments, see note 7. These investments are subsequently
accounted for as follows, depending on their classification.

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading purposes
and on initial recognition of the investment the Group
makes an irrevocable election to designate the investment
at FVOCI (non-recycling) such that subsequent changes in
fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on an instrument-by-instrument
basis, but may only be made if the investment meets the
definition of equity from the issuer’s perspective. Where
such an election is made, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income remains in the fair value reserve
(non-recycling) until the investment is disposed of. At the
time of disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to retained earnings/
accumulated losses. It is not recycled through profit or
loss. Dividends from an investment in equity securities,
irrespective of whether classified as at FVTPL or FVOCI, are
recognised in profit or loss as other income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

()

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 4(g)) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These
include land held for a currently undetermined future use
and property that is being constructed or developed for
future use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value, unless they
are still in the course of construction or development at the
end of the reporting period and their fair value cannot be
reliably measured at that time. Any gain or loss arising from
a change in fair value or from the retirement or disposal of
an investment property is recognised in profit or loss. Rental
income from investment properties is accounted for as
described in note 4(s)(ii).

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see note 4(i)(ii)):

- right-of-use assets arising from leases over leasehold
properties where the Group is not the registered
owner of the property interest; and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

- items of plant and equipment, including right-of-
use assets arising from leases of underlying plant
and equipment (see note 4(g)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Shorter of the term of
the lease or 3 years

— Leasehold improvements

— Furniture and office 20%
equipment
— Motor vehicles 25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and
its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9)

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that
use.

(i) As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s)
and non-lease component(s), the Group has elected
not to separate non-lease components and accounts
for each lease component and any associated non-
lease components as a single lease component for
all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets.
When the Group enters into a lease in respect of
a low-value asset, the Group decides whether to
capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The
lease payments associated with those leases which
are not capitalised are recognised as an expense on
a systematic basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(9)

Leased assets (Continued)

()

As a lessee (Continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset
is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, except for the
following types of right-or-use asset.

- right-of-use assets that meet the definition
of investment property are carried at fair
value in accordance with note 4(e); and

- right-of-use assets related to leasehold
land and buildings where the Group is the
registered owner of the leasehold interest
are carried at cost in accordance with note
4(f).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(g) Leased assets (Continued)

()

As a lessee (Continued)

The initial fair value of refundable rental deposits
is accounted for separately from the right-of-use
assets in accordance with the accounting policy
applicable to investments in debt securities carried
at amortised cost. Any difference between the initial
fair value and the nominal value of the deposits is
accounted for as additional lease payments made
and is included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in
the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be
payable under a residual value guarantee, or there is
a change arising from the reassessment of whether
the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a
purchase, extension or termination option. When
the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration
for a lease that is not originally provided for in
the lease contract (“lease modification”) that
is not accounted for as a separate lease. In this
case the lease liability is remeasured based on the
revised lease payments and lease term using a
revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(9)

Leased assets (Continued)

()

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

In the consolidated statement of financial position,
the current portion of long-term lease liabilities
is determined as the present value of contractual
payments that are due to be settled within twelve
months after the reporting date.

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at
lease inception whether each lease is a finance
lease or an operating lease. A lease is classified as
a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of
an underlying assets to the lessee. If this is not the
case, the lease is classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non- lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. The rental income
from operating leases is recognised in accordance

with note 4(s)(ii).

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the
sub-leases are classified as a finance lease or as an
operating lease with reference to the right-of-use
asset arising from the head lease. If the head lease
is a short-term lease to which the Group applies the
exemption described in note 4(g)(i), then the Group
classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

4. EBERGFTTHEm@

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Financial assets and financial liabilities

()

Recognition and initial measurement

The Group classifies its financial assets into the
following measurement categories: amortised
cost; FVOCI and FVTPL. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value
plus transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets, except in the
case of financial assets recorded at FVTPL for which
transaction costs are recognised directly in profit or
loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is, the
date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at its
fair value net of directly attributable transaction
costs except in the case of financial liabilities
measured at FVTPL, for which transaction cost are
recognised directly in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= by E S E kS

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4., ERXEFTBE#®
(Continued)
(h) Financial assets and financial liabilities (h) BIBREERMKEE@®
(Continued)
(i) Classification (i) ok

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as
measured at: amortised cost, FVOCI or FVTPL.

Financial asset measured at amortised cost or at
FVOCI

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it
has contractual terms that give rise to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest
("SPPI characteristics”). Principal is the fair value of
the financial asset at initial recognition but this may
change over the life of the instrument as amounts
are repaid. Interest consists of consideration for the
time value of money, for the credit risk associated
with the principal amount outstanding during a
particular period and for other basic lending risks
and costs, as well as profit margin.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4., ERETEHR@
(Continued)
(h) Financial assets and financial liabilities (h)y BHREERMKEE @
(Continued)
(i) Classification (Continued) (i) HHE(E)
Financial asset measured at amortised cost or at 1R AN BT
FVOCI (Continued) AR M2 EUAGEZ A
FEE (&)
Whether financial assets are held at amortised Mg EERBHEKASIZ
cost or at FVOCI depend on the objectives of NEEEAEAMEERA
the business models under which the assets are BE BIEBEEEZE
held. A business model refers to how the Group BEREABEME - EHE
manages financial assets to generate cash flows. ANEASEERYBEE
The Group makes an assessment of the objective NELBRERENAR -
of a business model in which an asset is held at a AEBHEBEANERZ
portfolio level because this best reflects the way the HATRME c REBEAA
business is managed and information is provided to EENEAGERRESR R
management. The information considered includes: R T & A R R R

EEMIERAEEER
HEENTR - ZEHIE

BEE:

- how the performance of the portfolio is - WAl Yk 4 & B 3R
evaluated and reported to the Group’s B MAERNE
management; BB RS

- the risks that affect the performance of the - HEEBEN (RZ
business model (and the financial assets held *¥BEEATHEDY
within that business model) and its strategy MEEE)RRHE
for how those risks are managed; Bx IA Ko B 38 5% 55 R

B 75 0%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Financial assets and financial liabilities

(Continued)

(ii)

Classification (Continued)

Financial asset measured at amortised cost or at
FVOCI (Continued)

how managers of the business are
compensated (e.g. whether compensation
is based on the fair value of the assets
managed or the contractual cash flows
collected); and

the frequency, volume and timing of sales in
prior periods, the reasons for such sales and
its expectations about future sales activity.
However, information about sales activity
is not considered in isolation, but as part of
an overall assessment of how the Group’s
stated objective for managing the financial
assets is achieved and how cash flows are
realised.

Financial assets which have SPPI characteristics
and that are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets to collect
contractual cash flows (“hold to collect”) are
recorded at amortised cost. Conversely, financial
assets which have SPPI characteristics but are held
within a business model whose objective is achieved
by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets (“hold to collect and sell”) are
classified as held at FVOCI.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

4. EBERGFTTHEm@

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Financial assets and financial liabilities
(Continued)

(i)

Classification (Continued)

Assessment of whether contractual cash flows are
solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’
is defined as the fair value of the financial asset
on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as
consideration for the time value of money and for
the credit risk associated with the principal amount
outstanding during a particular period of time and
for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity
risk and administrative costs), as well as profit
margin. In assessing whether the contractual cash
flows are SPPI, the Group considers the contractual
terms of the instrument. This includes assessing
whether the financial asset contains a contractual
term that could change the timing or amount of
contractual cash flows such that it would not meet
this condition. In making the assessment, the Group
considers:

- contingent events that would change the

amount and timing of cash flows;

- leverage features;

- prepayment and extension terms;

- terms that limit the Group’s claim to cash
flows from specified assets; and

- features that modify consideration of the
time value of money (e.g. periodical reset of
interest rate).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Financial assets and financial liabilities

(Continued)

(ii)

Classification (Continued)

Financial asset measured at FVTPL

Financial assets which are not held at amortised cost
or not held at FVOCI are held at FVTPL. Financial
assets and financial liabilities held at FVTPL are
either mandatorily classified as FVTPL or irrevocably
designated at FVTPL at initial recognition.

Financial assets and financial liabilities which are
mandatorily held at FVTPL are split between two
sub-categories as follows:

Trading, including financial assets and
liabilities held for trading, which are those
acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the short term and derivatives.

Non-trading mandatorily at FVTPL,
including instruments (other than trading
or derivatives) in a business which has a
fair value business model, hybrid financial
assets that contain one or more embedded
derivatives, financial asset that would
otherwise be measured at amortised cost
or FVOCI but which do not have SPPI
characteristics and equity instruments that
have not been designated as held at FVOCI.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Financial assets and financial liabilities
(Continued)

(i)

Classification (Continued)

Financial asset measured at FVTPL (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities may be
designated at FVTPL when the designation
eliminates or significantly reduces measurement or
recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise
from measuring assets or liabilities on a different
basis.

Financial liabilities that are not financial guarantees
or loan commitments and that are not classified
as financial liabilities held at FVTPL are classified as
financial liabilities held at amortised cost.

The Group’s financial liabilities include other
payables and accruals, bank and other borrowings,
lease liabilities, preferred shares and promissory
notes. The Group classified its financial liabilities as
subsequently measured at amortised cost except for
preferred shares and Promissory Note A-iii (see note
33) which are measured at FVTPL.

Reclassifications

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to
their initial recognition, except in the period after
the Group changes its business model for managing
financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h)

Financial assets and financial liabilities
(Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities held at
amortised cost are subsequently carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Financial assets and liabilities mandatorily held at
FVTPL and financial assets designated at FVTPL are
subsequently carried at fair value, with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recorded in
revenue from other sources line in income statement
unless the instrument is part of a cash flow hedging
relationship. Contractual interest income on financial
assets held at FVTPL is recognised as interest income
in the income statement.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire or it transfers the rights to
receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction
in which substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset are transferred
or in which the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership and it does not retain control of the
financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Financial assets and financial liabilities
(Continued)

(iv)

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the carrying amount of the asset (or
the carrying amount allocated to the portion of
the asset derecognised) and the sum of (i) the
consideration received (including any new asset
obtained less any new liability assumed) and (ii) any
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income is recognised in profit
or loss.

The Group enters into transactions whereby
it transfers assets recognised on its statement
of financial position, but retains either all or
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
transferred assets or a portion of them. In such
cases, the transferred assets are not derecognised.
Examples of such transactions are securities lending
and sale-and-repurchase transactions.

In transactions in which the Group neither retains
nor transfers substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership of a financial asset and it
retains control over the asset, the Group continues
to recognise the asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement, determined by the extent to which it is
exposed to changes in the value of the transferred
asset.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its
contractual obligations are discharged or expired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets

()

Credit losses from financial instruments

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
the financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and bank balances, trade, bills and
lease receivables, deposits and other receivables and
loan receivables).

Other financial assets measured at fair value,
including equity securities measured at FVTPL
and equity securities designated at FVOCI (non-
recycling), are not subject to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECL

ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using
the following discount rates where the effect of
discounting is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets, trade and
other receivables: effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition or an
approximation thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets: current
effective interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

Measurement of ECL (Continued)

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECL is the maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECL, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort. This includes
information about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions.

ECL are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECL: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and

- lifetime ECL: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible default
events over the expected lives of the items
to which the ECL model applies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= by E S E kS

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

Measurement of ECL (Continued)

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.
ECL on these financial assets are estimated using
a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors and an assessment of
both the current and forecast general economic
conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-month
ECL unless there has been a significant increase in
credit risk of the financial instrument since initial
recognition, in which case the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at
the reporting date with that assessed at the date of
initial recognition. In making this reassessment, the
Group considers that a default event occurs when (i)
the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations
to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising security (if any is held);
or (ii) the financial asset is 90 days past due. The
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward- looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial instrument’s
external or internal credit rating (if available);
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

()

Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant increase
in credit risk is performed on either an individual
basis or a collective basis. When the assessment
is performed on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics, such as past due status and credit
risk ratings.

ECL is remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount
is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss. The Group recognises an impairment
gain or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount
through a loss allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note
4(s)(iii) is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial
asset is credit-impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e.
the gross carrying amount less loss allowance) of
the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
a financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset
is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

- it becoming probable that the borrower

will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

()

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

()

Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income (Continued)

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market for
a security because of financial difficulties of
the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is
written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This
is generally the case when the Group determines
that the debtor does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash flows to
repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a reversal of
impairment in profit or loss in the period in which
the recovery occurs.

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2022/23

4.

EX

()

=r
=

TBUR @)

FEEEREERE#)

(i)

KEHBTAZEEER
(4&)

FEFEWA S HE(E)

- Bl w5 K&
FERRFEZEKR
BEYPHEBAEL
TRIZE 3%

- BREBTARR
I 75 IR B 0 5k % 0%
B -

R

BBEEZHEREEIAYL
BB R E AT R S R M
(Mo 2H) » —KRIEBER
RASBEEESALE
AEARHREREER
MR 2 2R BEHW
AR Z B o

Hig WOl @ECHMEEE
ZERENBELENEZ HE
FiEAERSRERD -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

4. EBERGFTTHEm@

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;
- right-of-use assets;
- goodwill;

- investment in an associate; and

- interests in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill,
intangible assets that are not yet available for
use and intangible assets that have indefinite
useful lives, the recoverable amount is estimated
annually whether or not there is any indication of
impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4., ERXEFTBE#®
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets (i) FEFEREERE®
(Continued)
(i)  Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued) (i) FHBEEZEREE)
Calculation of recoverable amount FrERIYo] 2 FE

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a
cash-generating unit). A portion of the carrying
amount of a corporate asset (for example, head
office building) is allocated to an individual cash-
generating unit if the allocation can be done on a
reasonable and consistent basis, or to the smallest
group of cash-generating units if otherwise.

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group of
units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of units) on a
pro rata basis, except that the carrying amount of
an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value
in use (if determinable).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)
Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance
with HKAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting, in
respect of the first six months of the financial
year. At the end of the interim period, the Group
applies the same impairment testing, recognition,
and reversal criteria as it would at the end of the
financial year (see notes 4(i)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period
in respect of goodwill are not reversed in a
subsequent period. This is the case even if no loss,
or a smaller loss, would have been recognised had
the impairment been assessed only at the end of the
financial year to which the interim period relates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

(k)

)

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration is
due. If revenue has been recognised before the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount
is presented as a contract asset.

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component are initially measured at their transaction
price. Trade receivables that contain a significant financing
component and other receivables are initially measured
at fair value plus transaction costs. All receivables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method and including an allowance for credit losses
(see note 4(i)(i)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash
and cash equivalents are assessed for ECL in accordance
with the policy set out in note 4()(i).

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at
fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expenses are recognised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note 4(u)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4, BEARETTEE@)

(Continued)

(m) Trade and other payables

(n)

(o)

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value
and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at invoice amounts.

Preferred shares

Preferred shares are classified as equity if it is non-
redeemable, or redeemable only at the Company’s option,
and any dividends are discretionary. Dividends on preferred
shares classified as equity are recognised as distributions
within equity.

Preferred shares are classified as a liability if it is redeemable
on a specific date or at the option of the shareholders,
or if dividend payments are not discretionary. The liability
is recognised in accordance with the Group’s policy for
interest-bearing borrowings set out in note 4(l) and
accordingly dividends thereon are recognised on an accrual
basis in profit or loss as part of finance costs.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives (including conditional promissory notes at fair
value) are initially recognised at fair value. At the end of
each reporting period the fair value is remeasured. The
gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, except where the derivatives
qualify for cash flow hedge accounting or hedges of net
investment in a foreign operation, in which case recognition
of any resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of the
item being hedged.

(m)

(n)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. ERSFTHE@m
(Continued)
(p) Employee benefits (p) EEER
(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions (i) FHES EFIRREMRL
to defined contribution retirement plans BIKFFEIZ 7
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, e FRIED CBEFHFR -
contributions to defined contribution retirement 8T R M FOGR IR ET B 2 4
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are RRFERERNNEBANE
accrued in the year in which the associated services SRHEEERBNFE
are rendered by employees. Where payment or R MBEENFSREHE - B
settlement is deferred and the effect would be wEEAN ARBEBZ
material, these amounts are stated at their present EHBEAE -
values.
(i)  Share-based payments (i) UBRGEEBEZNH

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in a capital reserve
within equity. The fair value is measured at grant
date taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the share
options, the total estimated fair value of the share
options is spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will vest.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(p) Employee benefits (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Share-based payments (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to the profit or
loss for the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as an
asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the
actual number of share options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price
of the Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the capital reserve until either the
option is exercised (when it is included in the
amount recognised in share capital for the shares
issued) or the option expires (when it is released
directly to retained earnings/accumulated losses).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when it recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts
of tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax loses
and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 4(e),
the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using
the tax rates that would apply on sale of those assets at
their carrying value at the reporting date unless the property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred
tax recognised is measured based on the expected manner
of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the
assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that
it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= by E S E kS

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(q) Income tax (Continued)

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions
are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered, intend
to realise the current tax assets and settle
the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

4. EBERGFTTHEm@

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)

(s)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a
provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, a
separate asset is recognised for any expected reimbursement
that would be virtually certain. The amount recognised for
the reimbursement is limited to the carrying amount of the
provision.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the sale of goods, the provision of services or the use
by others of the Group’s assets under leases in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, or the lessee has
the right to use the asset, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third
parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales
taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

(r)

(s)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the customer for
more than 12 months, revenue is measured at the present
value of the amount receivable, discounted using the
discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction with the customer, and interest income is
accrued separately under the effective interest method.
Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the Group,
revenue recognised under that contract includes the interest
expense accreted on the contract liability under the effective
interest method. The Group takes advantage of the practical
expedient in paragraph 63 of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust
the consideration for any effects of a significant financing
component if the period of financing is 12 months or less.

(i) Trading business

Revenue is recognised when the customer takes
possession of and accepts the products. If the
products are a partial fulfilment of a contract
covering other goods and/or services, then the
amount of revenue recognised is an appropriate
proportion of the total transaction price under
the contract, allocated between all the goods and
services promised under the contract on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(s) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income under operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use
of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable. Variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or
a rate are recognised as income in the accounting
period in which they are earned.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues under
the effective interest method using the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.
For financial assets measured at amortised cost or
FVOCI (recycling) that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset. For credit-impaired financial
assets, the effective interest rate is applied to the
amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of
loss allowance) of the asset (see note 4(i)(i)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

(t)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

(iv) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position initially
when there is reasonable assurance that they will
be received and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as income in profit or loss on a
systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the
Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and consequently
are effectively recognised in profit or loss over
the useful life of the asset by way of reduced
depreciation expense.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss, except those
arising from foreign currency borrowings used to hedge a
net investment in a foreign operation which are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. The transaction date is the date on which the
Company initially recognises such non- monetary assets or
liabilities. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies stated at fair value are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value
was measured.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

4. EBERGFTTHEm@

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t)

(u)

Translation of foreign currencies
(Continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position items, including
goodwill arising on consolidation of foreign operations
acquired on or after 1 January 2005, are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates
at the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve. Goodwill arising on consolidation of a foreign
operation acquired before 1 January 2005 is translated
at the foreign exchange rate that applied at the date of
acquisition of the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences relating to that foreign
operation is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when
the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost
of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for
its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

(t)

(u)

SR T (@)

BINEBHEBEIENRZ 5 A BT
SN IE RNEREXME LB
T WBHARRER (BER_Z
ERFE—-A—-RBEZRKEN I
EBAMBEECEHE) RERSH
HIRR W SN EE P R IR E BB T -
FEEANERZEAEEMEEKES
e - WA LA ERT
PHARF - R_FTRF—HA—H
m%%m@%%%éﬁﬁEEZﬁ

BB R B EIERS
% PEFE R o

R EBINEFE - BRAZEINE
BOENZBE Rt ® ﬁ%%w

%ZEﬁE NHERPENDRER

(EEN2EN

NEEHEEE  REEEREA
KEREEEHEAEEEARSE D
EEEABCEBRAA HERE
BRBEZBAKA - HbERK
A E L HAR HIBR o

1ﬁi”ﬁk$§$ﬂ:{’ﬁ7%/\§¢ﬂ§@ﬁz
R—&n EREZEEELERX -

Ft/T/\EXZ’SIEEEE/_:E  REEZEE
BERGHRHE 2 /AP EEETT -

BEBHZREREEMRTERERH

EEBRETRATK - ERK

AEXLEEFHFLE
BERERREERERAT / T —=FFRH

111



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= by E S E kS

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v) Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of the Group’s
parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

(ii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

4. EBERGFTTHEm@

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

(w)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) (Continued)

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

(viii)  The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified from
the financial information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance
of, the Group’s various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect
of the nature of products and services, the nature of
production processes, the type or class of customers, the
methods used to distribute the products or provide the
services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

5.

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

(a)

Critical accounting judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
the Directors have made the following accounting
judgement:

()

Control over Shandong Shundong Port Services
Company Limited (“Shundong Port”)

Note 43(a) describes that Shundong Port is a
subsidiary of the Group although the Group has
only 46.67% equity proportion in Shundong Port as
at 31 March 2022. The Group acquired additional
8.5% equity proportion in Shundong Port during
the year ended 31 March 2023. The remaining
shareholdings are owned by several shareholders
that are unrelated to the Group. Details of
Shundong Port are set out in note 43(a).

The Directors assessed whether the Group has
control over Shundong Port based on whether
the Group has the practical ability to direct the
relevant activities of Shundong Port unilaterally. A
concert party agreement was entered between a
subsidiary of the Group and one of the shareholders
of Shundong Port (the “Shareholder A”), pursuant
to which the Shareholder A irrevocably undertook
to vote in accordance with the Group’s decisions
at shareholders’ meetings of Shundong Port.
Subsequent to the acquisition of additional
8.5% registered capital in Shundong Port by the
Group during the year ended 31 March 2023, the
Shareholder A transferred all its equity proportion in
Shundong Port to an independent third party and
such concert party agreement is ceased without
further renewal. In addition, with 66.67% voting
right in Shundong Port’s board of directors, the
Directors concluded that the Group has sufficiently
dominant voting interest to direct the relevant
activities of Shundong Port during the years ended
31 March 2023 and 2022 and therefore the Group
has control over Shundong Port.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

5. ErtHETRMA&F @

5. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(a) Critical accounting judgements (Continued)

(i)

Equity instruments at FVOCI

Note 22 describes that investment in Tai‘an Wanyue
Real Estate Company Limited (“Tai‘an Wanyue”) is
treated as an equity instruments at FVOCI although
the Group has 40% ownership interest in Supreme
Success Company Holdings Limited (“Supreme
Success”) and indirectly through Supreme Success
to hold 28% effective ownership interest in Tai'an
Wanyue. Such investment was rescinded during the
year.

Prior to the rescission of the investment in Tai'an
Wanyue, the Directors assessed whether the Group
has significant influence over Supreme Success
and Tai’an Wanyue based on whether the Group
has the practical ability to participate in policy-
making processes and the relevant activities of
Supreme Success and Tai'an Wanyue. Pursuant to
a shareholder agreement entered into with another
shareholder of Supreme Success, the Directors
concluded that the Group has no representative
on the board of directors of Supreme Success and
Tai‘an Wanyue and hence not participate in policy-
making processes and other relevant activities of
Supreme Success and Tai‘an Wanyue. Therefore, the
Group has no significant influence over Supreme
Success and Tai‘an Wanyue and accordingly, the
investment is classified as equity instruments at
FVOCI.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

5.

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (cContinued)

(a) Critical accounting judgements (Continued)

(iij)  Principal versus agent consideration (agent)

The Group is considered as an agent for its
contracts with customers relating to the sales of
oil and liquefied chemical products as the Group
did not obtain the control over oil and liquefied
chemical products before passing on to customers
taking into consideration indicators such as the
Group is not primarily responsible for fulfilling the
promise and not exposed to inventory risk. When
the Group satisfies the performance obligation, the
Group recognises an agency income in the amount
it expects to be entitled as specified in the contracts.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group
recognised agency income relating to sales of oil
and liquefied chemical products amounted to

HK$8,062,000 (2022: HK$3,091,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

5. ErtHETRMA&F @

5. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(a) Critical accounting judgements (Continued)

(iv)

Principal versus agent consideration (principal)

The Group engages in trading of oil and liquefied
chemical products. The Group concluded that the
Group acts as the principal for such transactions as
it controls the specified good before it is transferred
to the customer after taking into consideration
indicators such as the Group is primarily responsible
for fulfilling the promise to provide the goods.
The Group is also subject to inventory risk and
has discretion in establishing the price of the
goods. When the Group satisfies the performance
obligation, the Group recognises trading revenue
in the gross amount of consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled as specified in the
contracts.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the
Group recognised revenue relating to trading of
oil and liquefied chemical products amounted to
HK$201,223,000 (2022: HK$361,187,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

5.

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (cContinued)

(b)

Sources of estimation uncertainty

Note 7 contains information about the assumptions and

their risk factors relating to valuations of investment

properties, equity instruments at FVOCI and certain financial
liabilities at FVTPL. Other significant sources of estimation

uncertainty are as follows:

()

Fair values of investment properties

Investment properties are carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at 31 March 2023 at
their fair value of approximately HK$1,565,499,000
(2022: HK$1,666,170,000). The fair value was
based on valuations conducted by an independent
qualified valuer using property valuation technigques
which involve certain assumptions of market
conditions including estimates of future rental
income from investment properties using current
market rentals and yields as inputs. Favourable
or unfavourable changes to these assumptions
would result in changes in the fair value of the
Group’s investment properties and corresponding
adjustments to the amount of gain or loss reported
in the consolidated income statement. Details of the
fair value measurements of investment properties
are set out in note 7.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

5. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)
(ii) Estimation of the fair value of financial assets

and financial liabilities

Certain financial assets and financial liabilities are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period as disclosed in note 7.

The fair value of financial investments that are not
traded in an active market is determined using
valuation techniques. The Group uses its judgement
to select methods and make assumptions that are
mainly based on market conditions existing at the
end of each reporting period. Changes in these
assumptions and estimates could materially affect
the respective fair value of these financial assets.
Further details are included in note 7.

The preferred shares issued by the Shundong
Port are not traded in an active market and the
respective fair value is determined by using valuation
techniques. The Group applied the discounted cash
flow method to determine the underlying equity
value of Shundong Port and the fair value of the
preferred shares. Key assumptions such as the
timing of the declarations of dividends were based
on the Group’s best estimation. Further details are
included in note 31.

The promissory notes issued by the Group are not
traded in an active market and the respective fair
value is determined by using valuation techniques.
The Group applied the scenario probability
analysis method to determine the fair value of the
promissory notes. Key assumptions such as the
probability of fulfilment of conditions were based
on the Group's best estimation. Further details are
included in note 33.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

5.

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (cContinued)

(b)

Sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(iii)

ECL of receivables

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses (i.e. the present value of all cash shortfalls)
over the expected life of receivables. Receivables
are categorised by individual characteristics of each
customer. The Group estimates the loss allowance
at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
losses for receivables based on the ageing of
overdue balances, repayment history of individual
debtors, debtor creditworthiness, historical write-off
experience, existing customer-specific and market
conditions and forward-looking information.

The Group considers the following indicators when
assessing the credit risks, such as the changes in
macroeconomic conditions, probabilities of default
and internal or external credit ratings, or expected
operating performance of the customer, etc. At
every reporting date the historical observed default
rates are updated and changes in the forward
looking information are analysed. Such assessment
involves a significant degree of judgement by the
Directors.

Further details are included in note 6(a).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

5. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)
(iv) Impairment losses of non-financial assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of a non-financial asset may not be recoverable,
the asset may be considered “impaired”, and
an impairment loss may be recognised. The
carrying amounts of non- financial assets are
reviewed periodically in order to assess whether
the recoverable amounts have declined below
the carrying amounts. These assets are tested
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their recorded carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. Goodwill is tested
annually for impairment. When such a decline
has occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of
the cash- generating unit containing goodwill is the
greater of the fair value less costs to sell and the
value in use. It is difficult to precisely estimate selling
price because quoted market prices for these assets
or cash-generating units are not readily available. In
determining the value in use, expected cash flows
generated by the asset or the cash-generating unit
are discounted to their present value, which requires
significant judgement relating to level of revenue
and amount of operating costs. The Directors use
all readily available information in determining
an amount that is a reasonable approximation of
recoverable amount, including estimates based
on reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections of revenue and amount of operating
costs.
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EEWE - ZEBEESE
HMEAR -FAEEFETIU
BRI o fi 3 AERUE - BR
HESHREAWNEEZE-
BEMBREELEEMN
AR @ 5 R A T EDR 3
EXRAREREEZES
E-ANHEZRETEENR
ReELBUMNEGETS
WE WHAERMGSE
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BESREELENEL
MERRSRESHRAER
EHRE MEFTEEH W
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

5.

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (cContinued)

(b)

Sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

)

Income tax

Determining income tax provisions involves
judgement on the future tax treatment of certain
transactions. The Directors carefully evaluate tax
implications of transactions and tax provisions are
set up accordingly. The tax treatment of these
transactions is reconsidered periodically to take
into account changes in tax legislations. Deferred
tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary
differences and cumulative tax losses.

As those deferred tax assets can only be recognised
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which they can
be utilised, Directors’ judgement are required to
assess the probability of future taxable profits. The
Directors assessment are constantly reviewed and
additional deferred tax assets are recognised if it
becomes probable that future taxable profits will
allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 6.

MEEREERMEIAZ

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS NEE
Categories of financial instruments HMBITRESE
2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$'000
—E-=5F —_E_-—
FET FHBTT
Financial assets: MBEEE:
Financial assets at FVTPL BAVEFABRZMEEE 12,937 20,712
Equity instruments at FVOC| BAFEFAEMEEKRAZ
HEXTA - 203,890
Financial assets at amortised cost (including & 5 AN 71 BR 69 B 75 4
cash and cash equivalents) (BEReRALEEER) 337,112 345,119
Financial liabilities: BRasE:
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BRATEFABRZHBERE 378,234 432,858
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REERAY RN B EE 245,005 486,917

Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group has exposure to credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate

risk and currency risk. In addition, the Group also exposed to equity

price risk arising from its investments in other equity. The exposure

to these risks and the financial risk management policies and

practices used by the Group to manage these risks are described

below.

MBRREEEERBUER

AEBHERBEERR

mEBEZ AR A

R REERAR - LI - REBIRE R
HEREMBRAR 2R EMELNRERR
HHENZERBARAEERNRERZSE
RIS E R E IR R BRI AT

RRERREZERERARA / —T——
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to
the Group. The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to trade, bills and lease receivables, deposits and other
receivables, loan receivables and bank balances. The Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from bank balances and bills
receivables are limited because the counterparties are banks
and financial institutions with high credit-rating assigned
by international credit-rating agencies, for which the Group
considers to have low credit risk. The Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from rental deposit is considered to be
low, taking into account (i) the landlord’s credit rating and
(i) the remaining lease term and the period covered by the
rental deposits.

Trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers and lease receivables

The Group has established a credit risk management policy
under which individual credit evaluations are performed
on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to pay, and
take into account information specific to the customer as
well as pertaining to the economic environment in which
the customer operates. Trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers and lease receivables are normally
due within 90 days from the date of billing. Debtors with
balances that are more than 90 days past due are requested
to settle all outstanding balances before any further credit
is granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers.

Significant concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when
the Group has significant exposure to individual customers.
At 31 March 2023, 54% (2022: 99%) of the total trade
receivables arising from contracts with customers and
lease receivables was due from the Group’s single largest
customer within the Oil and Liquefied Chemical Terminal
segment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

BEEREERMEIAZ
YNSZ=RE )

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 6.
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers and lease receivables (Continued)

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers and lease receivables
at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, which is calculated
using a provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit
loss experience does not indicate significantly different loss
patterns for different customer segments, the loss allowance
based on past due status is not further distinguished
between the Group’s different customer bases.

The following table provides information about the Group’s
exposure to credit risk and ECL for trade receivables arising
from contracts with customers and lease receivables:

MEEBREEEERBR®

(a)

EER Bk ®)

REEFEHZE S BEWRRIE
W& ()

AEERERANEMEREEEE
MEBFTEREREPENZESRE
U B SR B WA B SRR 2 R 1B
B ARSBEERBREREET
AHE - ARAKREBENEEER
RBRIARTRAELDEBRREKR
TREBEBERN - ERBHRENE
BRETTERARETREFE
RZEE—FERD o

TREHEEAKBEREEFEH
Z B 5 FE YR R e WA B SR Y
EERREKEMEEERNER

2023
—E-=HF
Gross carrying
Expected loss rate amount Loss allowance
% HK$'000 HK$'000
AHERE REEAR BERE
% FTHERT THER
PRC a3
— Trade receivable arising - RARFEHNZES
from contracts with JE Ut BR 3R
customers 6.0 173,810 10,373
— Lease receivables —EWHE AR 5.8 28,568 1,667
202,378 12,040
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= by E S E kS

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(@) Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers and lease receivables (Continued)

6. HXEAMREERMEIAZ
VNS =RE ),

BEEREEEERBEX#

(a)

EER B ®)

REEFENZEZBURHIRIE
W g %R ()

2022
S

=

Gross carrying

Expected loss rate amount Loss allowance
% HK$’'000 HK$'000
BHFEX REERR BREE
% FET TiET
PRC H
— Trade receivable arising from —RERFAHNZES
contracts with customers R R X 53 164,421 8,786

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience over
the past 24 months. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the period
over which the historic data has been collected, current
conditions and the Group’s view of economic conditions
over the expected lives of the receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 6. HXEREERMEIAZ

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS YNSRIERE ),
(Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and BERREREBZEREBX @
policies (Continued)
(@) Credit risk (Continued) (a) EERB @)
Trade receivables arising from contracts with KEEFEHNZEZENRARIE
customers and lease receivables (Continued) KBS E (&)
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade RBE_Z_=ZFRK_T__F=
receivables arising from contracts with customers and lease A=+—HBIEFEERNREEFEH
receivables during the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2B S EWERF R FEWE & RIEE
2022 is as follows: BRERNZHNT :
Trade receivables
arising from
contracts with Lease
customers receivables Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
REEFEH
ZEZRBER WA ERIE it
FHET FHET FHET
Balance at 1 April 2021 RZZ=Z—F
lUE—H&& - - -
Impairment losses recognised  #E3R (B /&5 18 8,632 = 8,632
Exchange differences bE R EE 154 - 154
Balance at 31 March 2022 i
ZRA=+—B#&# 8,786 - 8,786
Balance at 1 April 2022 i ——
MmA—H#&#H 8,786 - 8,786
Impairment losses recognised  #32R A& 18 10,388 1,669 12,057
Impairment losses reversed 1 Bl (B /&5 18 (8,146) = (8,146)
2,242 1,669 3,911
Exchange differences - (655) (2) (657)
Balance at 31 March 2023 R=-Z=-=#
ZA=+—-H&&% 10,373 1,667 12,040
The origination of new trade receivables arising from NREEEREEFPENZESE
contracts with customers net of those settled resulted in U BR 5028 BB 1R #3541 2,242,000
an increase in loss allowance of HK$2,242,000 (2022: BT (ZZF =% :8,632,000%7T)
HK$8,632,000) contributed to the increase in the loss M REREAHZE S EKERER
allowance. R EELE B B B R A N -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers and lease receivables (Continued)

The origination of new lease receivables net of those settled
resulted in an increase in loss allowance of HK$1,669,000
(2022: Nil) contributed to the increase in the loss allowance.

Deposits, other receivables and loan receivables

For deposits, other receivables and loan receivables,
the Directors make periodic individual assessment on
the recoverability of deposits and other receivables and
loan receivables based on historical settlement records,
past experience, and also quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportive forward-
looking information. The Directors believe that there are
no significant increase in credit risk of these amounts since
initial recognition and the Group provided impairment
based on 12-months ECL.

The following table provides information about the
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECL for deposits, other
receivables and loan receivables as at 31 March 2023 and
2022:

6.

BERREERMEIAEZ
VNS =RE ),

BEEREEEERBEX#

(a)

EER B ®)

REEFENZEZBURHIRIE
W g %R ()

MBREEERKEERIBEHEE
BB N01,669,000/8 L (ZE ==
FE)NNMEREERENEE
S HEREEIG M -

BE - AR AUREREHS

sire - EfbRUKFRN R ERE
FME  EFRBEBEEMCE
BELR  GENTEREEER
AR AR BRI EER - &
HiS IR & N E A FE MR IR A B B IR
BRE A R m T E RIS - &

RE - ZEFENEERBRE
IR FERR DA SR AL AR I - A E
RIR12 (8 A B EEE B ERE -

TREHRBEERNEER - =_=F
—E-_FZA=Z+—HNIKEK

& HitbERGRE R EREZRNE

R RIEHREEEENER

Gross carrying amount

BREEALE
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-=E —_EF -
FET FET
Other receivables H b el 5k8 66,874 27,350
Deposits b 769 120,991
Loan receivables FEUE R - 3,099
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 6. HXEREERMEIAZ

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS YNSRIERE ),
(Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and BERREREBZEREBX @
policies (Continued)
(@) Credit risk (Continued) (a) EERB @)
Deposits, other receivables and loan receivables #E HUERSEUARERE
(Continued) (#&)
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of B AR & I E R HRRIE DA R LU
deposits and other receivables and loan receivables during BERMBERGEERNEE =S ==
the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022 is as follows: FRZFZZFZA=F+—HLF
EWEEHINT
Other Loan
receivables Deposits receivables Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000
Hit Bl F R Ee k&% @
FET FAET FAET FHET
Balance at 1 April 2021 WZEZ-FMA—-HEH - - 7,243 7,243
Impairment loss recognised ~ FAEZREEE
during the year 820 5273 - 6,093
Reversal for the year FRELD = = (7,418) (7,418)
820 5,273 (7,418) (1,325)
Exchange difference EHER 15 95 175 285

Balance at 31 March 2022 WZZE=-=—F=fA=1+—-H

Fegeis 835 5,368 - 6,203
Balance at 1 April 2022 R-ZE--_FNA—-R&H 835 5,368 - 6,203
Impairment loss recognised ~ ERHERREEE
during the year 3,916 45 - 3,961
Reversal for the year FEREE (774) (4,976) - (5,750)
3,142 (4,931) - (1,789)
Exchange difference EHER (61) (392) - (453)
Balance at 31 March 2023 RZZZ=f=HA=+—H
e 3,916 45 - 3,961
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

6.

(Continued)

(b)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 6. HMEEBEERMBIAZ
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS NEE @
Financial risk management objectives and MEEREEREBFERBXK#@)
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (b) RBELEMR
Individual operating entities within the Group are REBEZEHPCEEREEELRS
responsible for their own cash management, including the ZHESER BRECABZEH
short term investment of cash surpluses and the raising of RENREEER /Mﬁﬁii‘ﬁ HR Y
loans to cover expected cash demands, subject to the parent REF K ALY RRIEFTEH
company’s board approval. The Group’s policy is to regularly o AREBBERAEHERER
monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance with BESHFRERHEETERZHENIG
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient T RPN S HE B
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding FTESHBEAERERTENE S
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity HE NENEHEESRSES
requirements in the short and longer term. Fk o
The following table sets out the remaining contractual TR AREEIITEMBEER
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s #E:‘ZHHXZE‘?T{:\?’J BEAER - TS
non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based on REXHNRERB2RE (BER
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest é}%’ﬂﬂ%% HWF B Sl
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating, FE - BRI S BARMIR TR KA
based on rates current at the end of the reporting period) ) &$§§lmﬁ A RF A -
and the earliest date the Group can be required to pay.
Weighted Over Over Total
average Within -~ 6 months 1 year contractual
interest 6monthsor  but within ~ but within Over undiscounted  Carrying
rate ondemand 12 months 5 years 5 years cashflow  amounts
%  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000  HK$'000
&H
mE 6BARE 6EANL  1EKL REBES
THRE BER En@AR ESER O SENE RESE  BEE
% FTEx  TEr  TER  TEn T TEn
2023 t8IzE
Financial liabiiies incluced in trade and AR SENES REMER
other payables FEHBER - 51,088 - - - 51,088 51,088
Bank borrowings HlER 48 7,090 700 175511 - 189,621 174,834
Other borrowings EfpfEs 6.7 350 350 10,700 - 11,400 10,652
Lease liabilties HEaf 47 595 595 528 5020 6,738 3293
Promissory notes RAZE 40 5222 - - - 522 5138
Preferred shares (note) BRk () - - - - - - 318234
64,345 7,965 186,739 5,020 264,069 623,239
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 6. HXEREERMEIAZ

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS YNSSE=NE )]
(Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and BERREREBZEREBX @
policies (Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REBELEMK#)
Weighted Over Over Total
average Within -~ 6 months 1 year contractual
interest - 6monthsor  butwithin -~ but within Over  undiscounted ~ Carrying
rate ondemand 12 months 5 years 5 years cashflow  amounts
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
afl
Mg 6EANY 6EANLE  1EME AERRS

TaEME  BBR EnEAR  BSER SENE RBEE BAE
% TEr  TEn  TEr  TER TEL  Thn

2022 —E-CE
Finanial liabilties included in trade and P AB BB B RE ML
other payables FEEBEE - T - - - 72,537 72,537
Bank borrowings FfER 5.0 10264 113824 204,804 = 38892 298677
Other borrowings Hipfest 66 375 203 11,400 - 13978 12480
Lease liabiltes HERE 44 2447 2,448 5,445 5,564 15904 11273
Promissory notes AREE 50 13416 131748 = = 145164 137,269
Preferred shares (note) Bk () - - - - - - 381539
99,039 250,223 221,649 5,564 576,475 919,775
Note:  The Directors estimated that there is no special dividend Mzt : EEHFTIERBBRREHR
to be declared by Shundong Port in the coming three BERR=ZF (B4
years (2022: four years) from the reporting period end. P4 ) N & Bk A 55 BB ©
As at 31 March 2023, the preferred shares, of which the R-BE-_=F=A=+—8"
principal amount was RMB270,000,000 (equivalent to A& B A AR270,000,000
approximately HK$308,529,000) (2022: RMB270,000,000 7t (38 % # #1308,529,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$333,234,000)), have no BL)(ZTEZZ2F: AR
contractual maturity. # 270,000,000 (FERD
333,234,000% 7T)) & & 5 iR
ESRER -
The below table summarises the maturity analysis of bank TR AR IR ERTT 2 H 2 B E
borrowings with a repayment on demand clause based EE R EERERNAREE SR
on agreed scheduled repayments set out in the facilities EREEBRRNRITEROI S
agreements with banks. The amounts include interest e BRARARFEERE LN XS
payments computed using contractual rates. Taking into BEHH BT o 85T KA & E Bt
account the Group’s financial position, the Directors do BRR - EERABBIT T AR LR
not consider that it is probable that the bank will exercise BEER BB - WHEEZFER
its discretion to demand immediate repayment and believe 1SR IR TR E R A A HA(EE o

that these borrowings will be repaid in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 6. BMEEREERMEIAZ
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS YNSERE o)
(Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and MEEREEREBFERBXK#@)
policies (Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REBELEE)
Over 1 year Over 2 years Total Total
Within but within but within  undiscounted carrying
1 year 2 years 5 years cash flows amount
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
150 LA 2L L@ RER
15/ 28R SERN BERBAE BEREE
FHT T FET FET FHL
2023 “B-=f 14,109 29,817 145,694 189,620 174,834
2022 “E-fF 22,266 117,061 189,565 328,892 298,677
(c) Interest rate risk () F=EEM

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate bank borrowings (note 29), other
borrowings (note 30), lease liabilities (note 32), promissory
notes (note 33) and loan receivable (note 25). The Group is
also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk on bank balances
(note 27).

The Group monitors the level of its fixed rate borrowings
and manages the contractual terms of the interest-bearing
financial liabilities.

In the opinion of the Directors, the expected change in
interest rates will not have a significant impact on the
interest income or bank balances and hence sensitivity
analysis is not presented.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

BEEREERMEIAZ
YNSZ=RE )

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 6.
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and BERREREBZEREBX @

policies (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Currency risk

The Group mainly operates in the PRC and the exposure in
exchange rate risks mainly arises from fluctuations of foreign
currencies, including HK dollars and US dollars against the
functional currency of the relevant Group entities.

Exchange rate fluctuations and market trend have always
been the concern of the Group. The Directors will monitor
the foreign currency exposure closely and consider the
use of hedging instruments when the need arises. Given
the insignificant net exposure to foreign currencies, any
change in the exchange rate of foreign currencies relative
to functional currencies of the relevant Group entities is
considered to have an insignificant impact on the Group’s
profit after income tax and retained earnings (2022:
accumulated losses).

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from equity investments held for trading and non- trading
purposes. Other than unquoted securities held for strategic
purposes, all of these investments are listed.

The Group’s listed investments are listed on the Stock
Exchange. Decisions to buy or sell trading securities are
based on daily monitoring of the performance of individual
securities and the Group’s liquidity needs. Listed investments
that are not held for trading purposes have been chosen
based on their long term growth potential and are
monitored regularly for performance against expectations.
The portfolio is diversified in terms of industry distribution in
accordance with the limits set by the Group.

(d)

(e)

BE¥E R

AEBMEBRHTEKLEEY  EX
R EZBINE (BEETRET)
RBREASEEREER NS
FEESE -

REE—MELE X RE R TI5E
¥ oBFERYEEIINERRI RN
VEREZERAE S TA o FERh
By FRE MR O NEKX - SMNEE
HREAAEEEREERESX
H R AR S E AN R BIRR A5
BgEN MRERN(ZFE
RETEE) T EEM -

IR (8 /2 B

AEEHRHRFERERIFEER
MR R B PTE £ A (E 2 B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 6.

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and

MEREERMBEIAZ

NEE #)

BEEREEEERER @

policies (Continued)

(e) Equity price risk (Continued) (e) RERME®E
All of the Group’s unquoted investments are held for long AEBMBFLHREZURIRE
term strategic purposes. Their performance are assessed BB R - REANEEATES
at least bi-annually against performance of similar listed MARER  BREEAEERS
entities, based on the limited information available to the REGFTEIMMBERIENE =208+
Group, together with an assessment of their relevance to FoRFHEEAENBEULETES
the Group’s long term strategic plans. RYRE o
At 31 March 2023, it is estimated that an increase/decrease NZZB_=F=A=+—H8 fi&f
of 10% (2022: 10%) in the relevant stock price, with R ZERE I, R 10% (=
all other variables held constant, would have increased/ T F10%) BB HME
decreased the Group’s profit after income tax and the ERF[FTENBERT - HE M6
retained earnings (2022: increased/decreased the Group’s DA BERATE R E T KR E &
profit after income tax and decreased/increased the Group’s M(ZF——F EmNRPAE
accumulated losses): BB ET SR & 0w R Mo 18 bR
SERGHEE)
2023 2022
ut- St —BoCE
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in Increase/ (decrease) in (Decrease)/
profitafter  (decrease) in profit after increase in
income retained income  accumulated
tax earnings tax losses
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RAEHRA Rk
iyl REEH A 23R
gh/(H9)  #0/6) Bh/0ad) (D) /Em
Thn THR Thn FiEn
Change in the relevant equity price FERERREH
risk variable: JEY:
Increase £m 10% 1294 1,294 10% 2,07 (2,071)
Decrease ol (10%) (1,294) (1,294) (10%) b 207
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

BEEREERMEIAZ
NEE@#E)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 6.
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and MHEEAREERRREBER @)

policies (Continued)

(e)

()

Equity price risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous change in
the Group’s profit after income tax (and retained earnings/
accumulated losses) that would arise assuming that the
changes in the stock price at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose the Group
to equity price risk at the end of the reporting period. It
is also assumed that the fair values of the Group’s equity
investments would change in accordance with the historical
correlation with the relevant stock market index or the
relevant risk variables, and that all other variables remain
constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for
the year ended 31 March 2022.

Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement
of financial position approximate their respective fair values.

(e)

(f)

R B B B (4)

BRESMEARREREZZIHE
RRERELE  WERAREHN
EAEBEAFEMSAEERTK
SHREAZBRERR 2 ZEGTHL
B BEAEBEZBRITERE R T
(RIRBEF RtEB) ERZ
B - IMBERASERRRE
A FEGREEEEREMISIE
ok AR B 2 W S RBEE M
LEE  BBHMEEHRET
HFoHE_E-_—_F=H=+—H
L FETEEREEETHN -

AVE

R B BRSNS 2R P T e R S £ [ B
BEERMBABIFRHERERS
BEBZAFERE -

BERERREERERAT / T —=FFRH

135



136

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

7.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s financial
instruments and the Group’s investment properties measured at
the end of the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair
Value Measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the observability and
significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1
inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date.

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs
i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not
using significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data are not available.

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs.

Certain assets and liabilities of the Group are measured at fair
value for financial reporting purposes. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group uses market- observable data
to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available,
the Group engages third party qualified valuers to perform the
valuation. At the end of each reporting period, the Group works
closely with the qualified external valuers to establish and determine
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for Level 2 and
Level 3 fair value measurements. The Group will first consider and
adopt Level 2 inputs where inputs can be derived from observable
quoted prices in the active market. When Level 2 inputs are not
available, the Group will adopt valuation techniques that include
Level 3 inputs. Where there is a material change in the fair value
of the assets and liabilities, the causes of the fluctuations will be
reported to the Directors.

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2022/23
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 7.

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

DNEETE @

N EEHR @)

2023 categorised into

Fair value measurements as at

REBZ=EAEAUTELN

Fair value measurements s at
2022 categorised into
REBZZERERNTESN

AYEE N¥EiE
Fair Fair
value at value at
31 March 31 March
2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level3 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000 HK§'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R R
—g-= kS
= =
=t-H =t+-8
ZATE B8 £=H B8 | 0TE E-R £ 225
ThR TER Thr TER Thr  TER TR AL
Recurring fair value measurements BEATENE
Assets: BE:
Non-financial assefs: FOREE -
- Investment properties -RENX 1,565,499 - - 1565499 | 1,666,170 - - 1,666,170
Financial assefs: HEEE:
- Held for trading - listed equity secures ~ —B/EEE- mRAES 1291 1293 - - wm 0 - -
~ Equity instruments at FVOCI -ROTESARDEE
WAZERTE - - - - | 20389 - - 2038%
Liabilities: Bf:
Financial labilties HBEE
~ Promissory notes ~ERER - - - - | @319 = - (#5319
- Preferred shares -Brlk (378,234) - - (378234) | (387539 - - (387539

During the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022, there were no
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of
Level 3. The Group's policy is to recognise transfers between levels
of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which
they occur.

BE-_T_=K_T-__F=A=+—
AIEFE - F—AR8EE 4 o e
MEEANEHE=H - AEBOEREKA
REBEEZREARBERATEER 2
ROBERE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

7.

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2022/23

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value

measurements

Investment properties

REME

Equity instruments at FVOCI

T

¥

-

NFHEFAEMEZEEAZ
mTLA

AL

Promissory notes

R R

Preferred shares

Valuation techniques

fl (B 2 9

Income approach

WA

Asset-based approach

BEX

Scenario probability analysis

BRMEDH

Discounted cash flows

MERERE

7. AR EFEm@

FRE=RAFEFENEHR

Significant

unobservable inputs

BERTAEBEEWAZE

(i) Rental growth rate per
annum

() HeFER=E

(i) Discount rate

(i) REERE

(iii) Capitalisation rate

(i) EAML =

(i) Discount for lack of
marketability

(i) BRZ TR

(i) Discount for lack of control

(i) ERZIEGIET E

(i) Discount rate

(i) BRIRZE

(i) Probability of fulfilment of
conditions

(i) {& K RO BE 3R

(i) Discount rate

() BREE

Range

HE

3%

(2022: 3%)

3%

(ZZE-—%F :3%)
8%

(2022: 8%)

8%
(ZZE=-—%:8%)
5%

(2022: 5%)

5%

(ZZE - :5%)

N/A

(2022: 15.8%)
TEA

1 15.8%)
N/A

(2022: 10%)
i
ZEZ_F 1 10%)

(=3==

=

N/A

(2022: 7%)

@A
(ZBZZ%F:7%)
N/A

(2022: 95%)

i@ A

(ZF =% :95%)

5.5%

(2022: 5.5%)

5.5%

(CZ -~ :55%)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements (Continued)

Investment properties

The fair value of investment properties located in the PRC is
determined using income approach by reference to rental growth
rate per annum and capitalisation rate. The fair value measurement
is positively correlated to the rent growth rate per annum and
negatively correlated to the discount rate and capitalisation rate.

Equity instruments of FVOC/

The fair value of equity instruments at FVOCI is determined
using the asset-based approach adjusted for discount for lack
of marketability and lack of control discount. The fair value
measurement is negatively correlated to the discounts for lack
of marketability and lack of control. As at 31 March 2022, it is
estimated that: (i) with all other variables held constant, a decrease/
increase in discount for lack of marketability by 1% would have
increased/decreased the Group’s other comprehensive income
by HK$2,419,000; (ii) with all other variables held constant, a
decrease/increase in discount for lack of control by 1% would have
increased/decreased the Group’s other comprehensive income by
HK$2,419,000.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the equity instruments of
FVOCI was derecognised upon the recission of contracts. Details of
which are disclosed in note 22.

7.

RRERREZERERARA / —T——

DNEETE @

BFRE=RLFEFENEH
(&)

REWH

URPEZREMEZ X FEERBEAL
REZEPSFRERENERCEREE - A
FEFERHSFIRRRIEAR - EEER
ERENMEERE AR -

BRFPEIARMEERAZ#ELE TA

BRAFEFAEMEEBAZEZTAZ
AREEFEREELET Uz EHEN
Mz s RELAR - AFEE
AR M MR IR TR A AEE -
R-ZEBE-_—E=A=+—8 " #: )&
FEEMBEERFIAENBLT  BZE
ST DI 1% G EAREBH A
2w A I, 22,419,000 TT ¢ (i)
EABEMESRFTEZNELT R
TEIEIT R A BN % R EAERE
ftb 2 E U AL AN, 54 2,419,000 T ©

HE-_T-_=ZF=-ZA=+—HItFEE &
AFEFARMEABAZEZ TABERN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

7.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements (Continued)

Promissory notes

The fair value of promissory notes is determined using scenario
probability analysis adjusted for discount rate and probability of
fulfilment of conditions. The fair value measurement is negatively
correlated to the discount rate and positively correlated to the
probability of fulfilment of conditions. As at 31 March 2022, it is
estimated that: (i) with all other variables held constant, a decrease
and increase in discount rate by 1% would have decreased and
increased the Group’s profit after income tax by HK$308,000
and HK$303,000, respectively; and (ii) with all other variables
held constant, a decrease/increase in probability of fulfilment of
conditions by 1% would have increased/decreased the Group’s
profit after income tax by HK$477,000.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the promissory notes which
were subject to fair value measurement was derecognised upon the
recission of contracts. Details of which are disclosed in note 22.

Preferred shares

The fair value of preferred shares is determined using discount
cash flow adjusted for discount rate. The fair value measurement
is negatively correlated to the discount rate. The discount rate
adopted was the sum of the yield of the 30-year China Government
Bonds and the average credit spread of comparable bonds that are
similar to that of the relevant entity of the valuation. In addition
to the assumptions adopted above, the Company’s projections of
future performance were also factored into the determination of
the fair value of the Preferred Shares on the valuation date. As at
31 March 2023, it is estimated that with all other variables held
constant, a decrease and increase in discount rate by 1% would
have decreased and increased the Group's profit after income
tax by approximately HK$99,415,000 (2022: HK$106,141,000)
and approximately HK$67,419,000 (2022: HK$71,584,000),
respectively.

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2022/23

NEEFTE @

BFRE=RLFEHITENEH
(&)

AAERZATEERESHEONE
E o WEBAIR R RS IER R EH
2o NFEEERREARE R E K
ERMOMEERB RZTE-_=-_F=A
=+t—B @FHiOVEMBEMEERE
TEOBERT B RE D R N1% 15
B AR E B ETSFLE 5 A5 B A K 840
308,000 7T } 303,000 7T ¢ X (i) % B
BEHMBERBTENERT » E4ERK
BRI D A1 % 5 E A EE R TS
Tt 1% S R 32 00 4> 477,000 7T ©

B2 =-F=-A=+—HILFE &
EBERAFEFECALERERNERE O
WAL \FTER - BRIFFIE R E22 4 8 -

EILK

BEBRZAVECAERRSRERET
WHLAEIR KAEH AR - AFEFEHAR
KB HRE - TERMBR X R30FFHH
BEENKREXREEHERABEREL
MAELRESFNTFHEEREZM -
B A EPRER RO RER SN - R BRI AR R K
BRI RABERREBERZ AT
BEE RZT-_=F=A=+—H"

AE 3R R Rk D R I8 01 % B E AR EEBR TS
Wi 1& 5 A 9 Bl A K 3 N4 99,415,000 7
T (ZF = —4 : 106,141,000 7T) & £
67,419,000/ 70 (=Z = =4 : 71,584,000
EIL) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued) 7.

Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements (Continued)

The movements during the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022
in the balances of these Level 3 fair value measurements are as
follows:

DNEETE @

ERAE=HLAFEFENEHR
(#&)
ZEEF=RATEFEZEHRNBEC

—EFRZE-_F=ZfR=+— E|JJ:¢E
2EHMT -

Non-financial
Financial assets and liabilities assets
MHEERER FUBEE
Equity
instruments Promissory Preferred Investment
at Fvocl notes shares properties
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BATEA
Ef2ERA
LEHRIA EHEE B REME
TR TR FHEL FHAT
At 1 April 2021 RZE-—%NA—H 222,412 (42,354) (333,832) 1,574,454
Additions NE - - - 15,264
Net gain from a fair value adjustment recognised in A BREBALRENERENE
valuation gain on investment properties in profit MATERARNEFE
or loss* - - - 8,986
Total loss recognised in the consolidated income Mg aEREAZ BELEE
statement included in other income (note 9(b))* (GEAZE MM (B (b)) * = (3,236) (38,800) =
Total loss recognised in other comprehensive income  RE 2 AWMAER 2 HEEE (18,522) = = -
Exchange differences included in “exchange SARMZEYAE LRI
reserve” in other comprehensive income ELER - Al (14,907) 67,466
At 31 March 2022 W-E--F=f=1+—H 203,890 (45,319) (387,539) 1,666,170

BERERREERERAT / T —=FFRH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

7.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements (Continued)

The movements during the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022
in the balances of these Level 3 fair value measurements are as
follows: (Continued)

DN EFE @
EHE=ZRLAFENENES
(4%)

ZEEZRATENEZEBNBE =S
CEER-E--F-A=+—HLEE
ZEBWT : (E)

Non-financial
Financial assets and liabilities assets
BHEERER FUBEE
Equity
instruments Promissory Preferred Investment
atFvodi notes shares properties
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRATEGA
H2EKA
ZERTE BRAEE BER REN%E
THr TR T FEL
At 1 April 2022 RZE-—%NA—H 203,890 (45,319) (387,539) 1,666,170
Additions NE - - - 9,922
Derecognition upon rescission of contracts (note 22) Bk A & LR
(fit3¥22) (197,786) 45,831 - -
Net gain from a fair value adjustment recognised in R EEXERNR BN ERER
valuation gain on investment properties in profit A ATERRNETE
or loss* - - - 12,964
Total loss recognised in the consolidated income MreliaREAZEEEE
statement included in other income (note 9(b)* (BT AE A (B EE9(0)) * - (524) (19.453) =
Total loss recognised in other comprehensive income R E (2 ERAHER 2
FEaR (6,104) - - -
Exchange differences included in “exchange STAEA R EAE R 1R
reserve” in other comprehensive income MELES - 12 28,758 (123,557)
At 31 March 2023 RZE-=F=fA=1+-H - - (378,234) 1,565,499
3 Includes unrealised (losses)/gains recognised in profit or loss * BERRS RS EREGHERER
attributable to balances held at the end of the reporting period: HAREI (FE) W
For the year ended 31 March 2023 HE-Z--#-A=1-H
ILFE - - (19,453) 12,964
For the year ended 31 March 2022 HE-Z--#=RA=1-H
I3 - (3.236) (38,800) 8,986

Included in other comprehensive income is an amount of loss of
HK$18,522,000 relating to unlisted equity securities classified
as equity instruments at FVOCI held as at 31 March 2022 and is
reported as changes of fair value through other comprehensive
income reserve (non-recycling).

During the year ended 31 March 2023, all equity instruments of
FVOCI was disposed of due to the recission of contracts of which
the details are disclosed in note 22.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

REVENUE

8.

The principal activities of the Group are set out in note 1.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by major

Wz

AEBN T EZBHENME -

RIZEMAMBREDZKBEEZEFEH

products or service lines is as follows: 2T
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E=-= —E-—HF
FTERT FHT
Revenue from contracts with BEEMBREEAE15REAE AR
customers within the scope of BEEFAHzZWE (REEFHE)
HKFRS 15 at a point in time
Disaggregated by major products or £ E ZE R B RBEE D
service lines
— Agency income from insurance — R4 AR TS R I A
brokerage service 13 11
— Agency income from trading —EBEEdmERELEIRZ
of oil and liquefied chemical RIEBIA
products 8,062 3,091
— Sale of oil and liquefied chemical —HEBmRREI IR
products 201,223 361,187
209,298 364,289
Revenue from other sources R EHARIR 2 W=
Rental income from investment HEMEHRS A
properties 157,472 156,290
Total revenue FAl g 366,770 520,579
Geographical markets i & 135
—the PRC — 366,757 520,568
— Hong Kong —&% 13 11
366,770 520,579
HRERBREERERAR /| === —=FF#H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

8.

REVENUE (continued)

Agency income from insurance brokerage service is from contract
with customers and recognised at a point in time when the services
are completed under the terms of each service agreement and
the revenue can be measured reliably, since only by that time the
Group has a present right to charge the customers for the service
performed.

Agency income from trading of oil and liquefied chemical products
is recognised when the Group satisfies its promise to arrange
for the oil and liquefied chemical products to be provided by
the suppliers to the customers and in the amount of any fee or
commission to which the Group is entitled for arranging the oil and
liquefied chemical products to be provided to the end customers.
Performance obligations are satisfied at a point in time once control
of goods has been transferred to customers.

Sales of oil and liquefied chemical products is recognised at a point
in time when the control of oil and liquefied chemical products has
transferred, being when the oil and liquefied chemical products
have been delivered to customers’ specific location. Following
the delivery, the customer has full discretion over the manner of
distribution and price to sell the oil and liquefied chemical products,
has the primary responsibility when on selling the oil and liquefied
chemical products and bears the risks of obsolescence and loss
in relation to the oil and liquefied chemical products. The normal
credit term is up to 90 days.

Contracts with customers with unsatisfied performance obligations
on the abovementioned revenue, have original expected duration
of one year or less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction
price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

INTEREST REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME
AND OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES), NET

(a) Interest revenue

9.

MEWm R E MR A Rt
Wz, (EE)

(a) FEWsE

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000

—E-=HF —EF-=
FHET FHBTT
Bank interest income RITHBUA 82 102
Loan interest income B AU A 52 8,855
Other interest income (note) E b F) S dA (K5 3,849 =
3,983 8,957

Note:  The amount represents the accrued interest income on the
Balance Payment (as defined in note 22) recognised by the
Group during the year ended 31 March 2023.

Mizd: ZeEEAEERBEZ_F
T=F=ZA=t—HILFEH
B CESE BT iE22) R
#ERT A A -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= by E S E kS

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

9. INTEREST REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 9.
AND OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES), NET (continued)

FMERZREMBAREAA
W (B8 FE @

(b) Other income and other gains/(losses), (b) HttWwARHEMUEZE
net (B18) 38
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
—=E=-= —E-F
FET FAET
Exchange (loss)/gain, net &N (BE) et F58 (2,218) 407
Fair value (loss)/gain on financial BRAFEF AR VBEE
assets at FVTPL, net ATHE (F518) Was F58 (7,753) 7,973
Fair value loss on preferred shares BER 2 A FEEE (19,453) (38,800)
Impairment loss under expected B RBERREKREER
credit loss model on trade and EREHEEEBEEENXT
lease receivables, net 2 RIEEIEFEE (3,911) (8,632)
Reversal of impairment loss under %o HMEWEIE RERE
expected credit loss model on HRTEAEEBEEX T
deposit, other receivables and REEEREFEE
loan receivables, net 1,789 1,325
Fair value loss on promissory notes 7 3, Z 1% 7 A FEFE
(note 33) (MF5E33) (524) (3,236)
Rental income from sub-letting of SHEBEEEZHESKA
leased assets 52 164
Government grants (note) BT 8 (P ) 216 -
Service income BR AU A - 1,760
Sundry income FIEA 234 253
Written back of provision for 7 52 7 48 Hi o]
expenses - 9,522
Gain on lease modification MEBERz s 89 -
(31,479) (29,264)

Note:  Government grants mainly represent subsidies received in

Mt : BUSFIRLE BRMBBR AT

R BT R R RS E I HF
P U BR RO 7 BE © S% TR E S 7 BE
BB YR i A 1 S R B B
SR AR BS E R R B EUR
BiES - IRIBHWAIGRT A%
EERIBREETEHE
THES2BARINEET
B RZZEZ=F=A=1+—
B - A 2 O G AR B Y R
ERARIT RN EIR -

connection with the support from the Anti-epidemic Fund
of the Government of Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region. The purpose of the funding is to provide financial
support to enterprises to retain their employees who would
otherwise be made redundant. Under the terms of the
grant, the Group is required not to make redundancies
during the subsidy period and to spend all funding on
paying wages to the employees. At 31 March 2023, there
is no unfulfilled condition or contingencies relating to the
government grant.
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10.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are organised
by a mixture of both business lines (products and services) and
geographical delineation. In a manner consistent with the way in
which information is reported internally to the Group’s most senior
executive management, being the Directors, for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment, the Group has
presented the following two reportable segments. No operating
segments have been aggregated to form the following reportable
segments.

- the Oil and Liquefied Chemical Terminal segment represents
the business of the leasing of the Port and Storage Facilities
located in Shandong Province, the PRC and owned by
Shundong Port, and provision of agency services and
trading of oil and liquefied chemical products;

- the Insurance Brokerage Service segment represents the
business of providing insurance brokerage service in Hong
Kong.

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating segments
are the same as those described in the summary of significant
accounting policies.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the Directors monitor the results,
assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

Reportable segment assets include all tangible assets, intangible
assets and current assets with the exception of investment in an
associate, equity instruments at FVOCI, certain property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets, financial assets at FVTPL, certain
loan receivables and other corporate assets. Reportable segment
liabilities include all liabilities with the exception of certain other
borrowings, promissory notes, tax payables, lease liabilities and
other corporate liabilities.

10.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

10.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to sales generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments or which otherwise arise
from the depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to
those segments. Segment revenue and expenses do not include the
Group's share of profits or losses of the Group’s associate.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is earnings before
interest and income taxes. For the purpose of assessment by the
Directors, the finance costs of bank borrowings, other borrowings
and lease liabilities were not included in segment results while
certain of the corresponding liabilities have been included in the
segment liabilities.

Customers from Qil and Liquefied Chemical Terminal and Oil
Production segments are located in the PRC (place of domicile)
whereas customers from insurance brokerage service segment
are located in Hong Kong. Geographical location of customers is
based on the location at which the goods are delivered and the
contracts are negotiated and entered into with the customers.
No geographical location of non-current assets is presented as
substantial non-current assets are physically based in the PRC.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as provided
to the Directors for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance for the years ended 31 March
2023 and 2022 is set out below:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE
10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 10. 7 EER @)

Information about reportable segment profit or loss:

BREMmE D BERNER

Oil and
Liquefied Insurance
Chemical Brokerage
Terminal Service Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B R
R IRER RIS EE R @it
TR TR TR
For the year ended 31 March 2023 ~ BEZE-E-=£=f=1+—-H
LEE
Revenue from external customers RENPRP 2z 366,757 13 366,770
Reportable segment profit/(loss) RESEER/ (BE) 125,268 (520) 124,748
Interest revenue MEWE 78 - 78
Depreciation of property, plant and nE - BERLERTE
equipment (481) - (481)
Fair value gain of investment properties X &M EMAFE K 12,964 - 12,964
Fair value loss on preferred shares BEBRATFEER (19,453) - (19,453)
Interest expense on: THEEHFEHRT :
— bank and other borrowings —SRIREMER (13,554) - (13,554)
- lease liabilities -HEARE (16) = (16)
(13,570) - (13,570)
Impairment loss under expected credit loss 2 5 [ 4 55 3 I JE 7R &€
model on trade and lease receivables, net FIENEHEEBHEEA T2
HEBRFE (3.911) - (3.911)
Income tax expenses FrgfimY (26,889) - (26,889)
Impairment loss under expected credit loss &4 & £t e BN BHIEE
model on deposit and other receivables,  BEER T 2 REBREFE
net (334) = (334)
As at 31 March 2023 R-ZB-=F=A=+-H
Segment assets NEEAE 1,923,232 56 1,923,288
Additions to non-current assets ERFRBEERE
during the year 15,159 - 15,159
Segment liabilities NEEE (785,001) (2 (785,003)

RRERREZERERARA / —T——
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 10. Z2EER @
Oil and
Liquefied Insurance
Chemical Brokerage
Terminal Service Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B R
W I RIEE R LR Bt
THT THT FiET
For the year ended 31 March 2022 BE-Z-_-_f=R=1+-H
LEE
Revenue from external customers RENPEP 2 Wi 520,568 11 520,579
Reportable segment profit/(loss) REDERT/(BE) 107,694 (432) 107,262
Interest revenue B U 1,417 - 1,417
Depreciation of property, plant and % BERXENE
equipment (590) - (590)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TREEEME (80) - (80)
Fair value gain of investment properties B MEN L FEYNE 8,986 - 8,986
Fair value loss on preferred shares BERATESE (38,800) - (38,800)
Interest expense on: THIEBHOF SR :
— bank and other borrowings —RITREMER (8,909) - (8,909)
— amounts due to non-controlling — SRR R 508
shareholders (8,400) - (8,400)
— lease liabilities -HEBR ) - (7)
(17,316) - (17,316)
Impairment loss under expected credit B SEMERFNEHEEEE
loss model on trade receivable BTz REBE (8,632) - (8,632)
Income tax expenses gy (27,750) - (27,750)
Written back of provision for expenses B B 5% @ 9,522 - 9,522
As at 31 March 2022 R-ZBZZf=Zf=+-H
Segment assets NEEE 1,993,478 450 1,993,928
Additions to non-current assets during ~ FRIERBEERE
the year 22,828 - 22,828
Segment liabilities AHEERE (924,589) 2 (924,591)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 10. 7EER @
Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets, mEDENRE 1Bm - EE-BEREM
liabilities and other items: HE 2 #8R -
Revenue W 2
There was no inter-segment sale and transfer during the years RBEE_T_=ZFR_FT=__F=H
ended 31 March 2023 and 2022. =t —HIEFE  BESBREERER -
No reconciliation of reportable and operating segment revenue HRmEREE D BN A ERBGRE
is provided as the total revenue for reportable and operating Wes iR - R R R RS R E DK
segments is the same as Group’s consolidated revenue. 2 AR o
Profit or loss B
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E_= —E-=
FTER FHET
Total profit of reportable segments HWEDRLRRF 124,748 107,262
Finance costs B TS BAR (16,455) (25,531)
Other unallocated corporate income/ Hib RoBEEKRA
(expenses): (FAx):
— Interest revenue — ) B 3,905 7,540
— Administrative expenses —1THHX (18,876) (22,214)
— Reversal of impairment loss under —i&e EfERFRIER
expected credit loss model on ERERNBESEE
deposits, other receivables and loan EEEN T ZREEBE
receivables, net SR 2,123 1,325
— Net gain on derecognition of financial —RIERVBEER
assets and liabilities BEWEFE 63,010 -
— Gain on disposal of subsidiaries —HERBRRZ W 1,955 -
— Fair value (loss)/gain on financial assets —BAFEFAE®mZ
at FVTPL, net MBEENTE
(B18) Wz F 5 (7,753) 7,973
Fair value loss on promissory notes FEEBRATEER (524) (3,236)
Other corporate income less other corporate  E b 1b 2 W AR E b 1 55 2
expenses 1,019 660
Consolidated profit before income tax for FARFAEBHATARE R T
the year 153,152 73,779
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= by E S E kS

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

10.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. 7 8E&ER @)
Assets BE
2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$'000
—E-= - ——
FBT FET
Reportable segment assets BEDEEE 1,923,288 1,993,928
Right-of-use assets EREEE 1,033 8,556
Equity instruments at FVOCI BATER AR 2 ERAS
DI A - 203,890
Loan receivables JEWE - 3,099
Financial assets at FVTPL BRAFEFABRNMEEE 12,937 20,712
Other unallocated corporate assets: BEMARDBEREEE
— Property, plant and equipment - BERZRE 15 44
— Prepayments, deposits and other —TERIE - e REA
receivables FEU IR 60,195 117,230
— Cash and bank balances —B e RIRITEF 1,333 1,811
61,543 119,085
Consolidated total assets IREREE 1,998,801 2,349,270
Liabilities =L
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E_= —F=z =
FET FET
Reportable segment liabilities WmENLEEE 785,003 924,591
Other borrowings E Mg 10,652 12,480
Promissory notes R 5,138 137,269
Tax payables FEIBIIR 3,858 4,167
Other unallocated corporate liabilities: Hih RO BEEEEE -
— Trade and other payables —BHREMNER R
HAth &~ 5K IE 19,962 21,999
— Lease liabilities —HEAaE 1,049 8,896
21,011 30,895
Consolidated total liabilities LeBalE 825,662 1,109,402
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 10. 7EER @)
Other items HfbgH
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-= -z
FTER FHET
Interest revenue 2 Uk &=
Reportable segment total WED LA 78 1,417
Other corporate interest revenue Huh 2R S 3,905 7,540
Consolidated total Ra 4B 3,983 8,957
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BERRBITE
equipment
Reportable segment total WEN AR (481) (590)
Other corporate depreciation of property, EmrEnE  BER
plant and equipment wETE (17) (808)
Consolidated total e EE (498) (1,398)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets RAREEERE
Reportable segment total WED R - (80)
Other corporate depreciation of right-of-use £ 1 EHAREETE
assets (3.,485) (4,902)
Consolidated total RemEs (3,485) (4,982)
Interest expense FERX
Reportable segment total et rmsass (13,570) (17,316)
Interest on promissory notes O REBF B (1,877) (6,902)
Other corporate interest expense on: Hih dEFBRZ :
— bank and other borrowings —R1T R E A (716) (822)
— lease liabilities —HEa® (292) (491)
Consolidated total e R (16,455) (25,531)
(Impairment loss)/reversal of e HttEWRERERE
impairment loss under expected MRAEHEEFEREXTZ
credit loss model on deposits, other CREEBE) BESERD
receivables and loan receivables, net T
Reportable segment total e (334) -
Other corporate reversal of impairment loss £ 1 i EEERE 2,123 1,325
Consolidated total LRE1BEE 1,789 1,325
Income tax expenses FrigBim X
Reportable segment total WED AR (26,889) (27,750)
Other corporate income tax expenses H i b 2 SRR = (4,093)
Consolidated total AT (26,889) (31,843)
Additions to non-current assets during FRFERBEERE
the year
Reportable segment total WED AR 15,159 22,828
Other corporate additions HMZERE - 4
Consolidated total REEEE 15,159 22,832
HRERBREERERAR /| === —=FF#H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 10. Z2EER @
Revenue from major customers: KEFEEP ZWEH :
2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$'000
—Z—-= —E-=
FERT FHET
Derived From Oil and Liquefied FOIR o R Th
Chemical Terminal segment: WESE
— Customer A - BFA 157,472 156,290
— Customer B — BB - 355,404
— Customer C — BFC 135,077 -
— Customer D — BFD 66,146 -
358,695 511,694
11. FINANCE COSTS 1. BB
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
—=E-= —ZF-=
FERT FHET
Interest on bank and other 1T R E M E NS
borrowings 14,270 9,731
Interest on promissory notes AN EEF S (FEE33)
(note 33) 1,877 6,902
Interest on amounts due to non- JE A SEHE AR AR SR 5K I8 2 F1) B
controlling shareholders - 8,400
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEMNE 308 498
Interest expense on financial liabilities W 3E1EZ A FEFFABZH U B A E
not at fair value through profit or MERAX
loss 16,455 25,531
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSES 12. FIBHEX

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-=5F ==
F#ExT FHET
Current tax B AR A
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") — Bl EFTIER
([TEZEFREHED) - 4,093
Deferred tax — PRC EERTE—F
— Current year (note 34) —ARFE (M7E34) 26,889 27,750
Income tax expenses FriSHip 26,889 31,843

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required since the Group
has no assessable profit for the years ended 31 March 2023 and
2022.

Pursuant to rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands, the British
Virgin Islands (“BVI”) and Independent State of Samoa (“Samoa”),
the Group is not subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands,
BVI and Samoa.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC (the “PRC EIT Law"”) and Regulation
Implementation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries
of the Group is 25% for the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022.

Pursuant to the PRC EIT Law and other related regulations, PRC,
non-PRC resident enterprises are levied withholding tax at 10%, 6%
and various tax rate (unless reduced by tax treaties/arrangements)
respectively on interest receivable from PRC enterprises for income
earned since 1 January 2008. The Group has adopted withholding
tax rate of 10%, 6% and various tax rate on corporate income tax,
value-added tax and other taxes for PRC withholding tax purpose
during the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022.

AR AEERFBE TS - =FR_T -
FZA=+—HLFEVERRF R -
WBBERESFIST R -

REFESHE REREAHEES ((RBEK
He) REEDBIE ([EEE]) AR
RO AEEBARRERS  REBERE
KRS REBEDESERMAER -

RIEFBMEMESRE((RRECEMER
ED RTEEMSTEEREN  BEZF
—EFERZE__F=ZA=1+—HIFE -
AEBABMBRARZHREE25% °

AR 35 R B 1 P A5 B A I R B AL i 4 B 1%
Bl BZTZNF—A—HR FFEE
R 10378 5t B B B A 8 AR B 1 2 A F)
BEHRZ10% * 6% RZBTER X (RIE
BISIER ZHEEL THRIBRIN) B Ta
N -MEBE-_T_=FK T -_—F=
A=+—BLEE AEEGREATEE
HMEFEH10% * 6% R ZHETR B EH B
XS  EEDREMBIBABRE o
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued) 12.

The reconciliation between the income tax expenses and profit
before income tax is as follows:

e @

PS5 S ERR PSR M 2 SRR T

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-=H —=E-
FHET FAET
Profit before income tax B P15 370 Al a7 153,152 73,779
Tax at the applicable rate to profit LR AR ERR
in the tax jurisdictions concerned wAZ REGE 2 HIA 35,548 19,693
Tax effect of non-taxable income FERBBMA ZFRIGHE (12,511) (4,006)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TR 2 G 2 3,375 13,993
Tax effect of deductible temporary RERA NPT R EER
differences not recognised ks (53) 395
Tax effect of unrecognised tax losses RIERIAEIE 2 Bl s & 2,081 1,768
Tax effect of utilisation of tax loss BACAETIEREN
brought forward ik -% (1,551) -
Income tax expenses FS B X 26,889 31,843
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

13. FARBF

AEEFRBFENR, GIA) ATEE

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

The Group’s profit for the year is stated after charging/(crediting)

the following: %BHR -
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-=H —E -
FHET FHET
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 24 Bl 57 B 1,000 1,000
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEGFECEREE 200,779 353,328
Depreciation of property, plant and mE - WERZERE
equipment 498 1,398
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CHAREEENE 3,485 4,982
Gross rental income from investment WEYERSWALRTE
properties (157,472) (156,290)
Direct operating expenses arising from EERSBRAZKREYE
investment properties that generated EENEELERE
rental income 2,137 3,540
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BEMEBEBES
equipment 1 —
Expenses relating to short-term leases BRAGEMEE 2 X - 334
Staff costs (including Directors’ SIA (BIEESH) -
remuneration):
— Salaries, bonuses and allowances —¥r® - TEALROERG 12,563 16,353
— Retirement benefit scheme —RRABAIET IR
contributions 504 930
13,067 17,283
ERERRERRARAT | —F-— - =5F%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

13.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (continued)

The Group had no forfeited contributions under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme"”) and its retirement
benefits schemes in the PRC which may be used to reduce the
existing level of contributions during the year ended 31 March 2023
(2022: Nil). There were also no forfeited contributions available to
reduce future contributions at the end of the reporting period (2022:
Nil).

The Group operates a MPF Scheme for all qualifying employees in
Hong Kong. The assets of the schemes are held separately from
those of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees. The
retirement benefits scheme contributions charged to profit or loss
represent contributions paid or payable by the Group to the scheme
at 5% of each of the employees’ monthly relevant income capped
at HK$30,000 per month.

The employees employed in the PRC are members of the state-
managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the PRC
government. The subsidiary established in the PRC is required
to contribute a certain percentage of their basic payroll to the
retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits.

The only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefit schemes is to make the required contributions under the
schemes.

As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the Group had no significant
obligation apart from the contribution as stated above.
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15.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

14. KRE

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders of

the Company during the year ended 31 March 2023, nor has any
dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting period (2022:

Nil).

EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the

following profit attributable to owners of the Company and

weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding.

15.

HzE-_Z2-_=—F=-A=+—H

IEFE - I

BRARBEBRRERIRNREZRS
ERERNRENTEZZEARE (=ZF

TF ) o

BRER
(a) BREXEF

BREABNIRETIIAREH
B AR R R TSNS B

EPEGE -

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EBT=H T
Earnings B FET FHET
Profit for the year attributable ZN/NEIE RSN X )
to the owners of the Company F R ) 89,308 12,762
‘000 ‘000
Number of shares R EE T TR
(Restated)
(FeE751)
Weighted average number of AU EERERRFNZ
ordinary shares for the purpose gl RaskdiEEd)
of basic earnings per share (note) 720,563 720,563

Note :  The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
year ended 31 March 2022 has been restated to reflect
the effect of the share consolidation with effect from 15
September 2022 as if they happen on 1 April 2021 (note

35).

Miex: BE_ZE-_—_4#=H=+—H
LEFEEMTERMNEFSED
FTEY  URBE T _F
NA+THBBREBWEGD S G
(BUWERA—_ZT-_—FmAH—

BEE) M E (HEE35) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= by E S E kS

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 15. BRERN @
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) BREBRF
Diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31 March HE-_T-_=FR-_FT-—_F=A
2023 and 2022 were the same as the basic earnings per =+t—RAIEFE  SREERHTH
share, as the Company has no potential dilutive ordinary BRERZRAER - YRR T
shares. mEEEELER -
16. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS 16. EEM=
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the BB EE DTG E3BMIER DT (B
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies BEENEER ANFE2HHENES
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation e T :
are as follow:
For the year ended 31 March 2023: BHE_ZT_=F=A=+—RHIEFE:
Salaries, Contributions
allowances to retirement
Directors’  and benefits benefit
fees in kind schemes Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
& 28 BIREA
Notes 0k RENEA STEHR @t
ik TET TERT TET TET
Executive Directors BTES
Mr. Cao Sheng EREAE (i) - 355 18 373
Mr. Liu Yong EEE (ii) - 1,487 22 1,509
Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral BREELE - 1,032 18 1,050
Mr. Lan Yonggiang EoKREE (i) - 267 13 280
Mr. Shi Jun RELRE (iv) - 236 - 236
Mr. Yu Zhiyong FTHEELE (v) - 1 - 1
Independent non-executive BYFHTES
Directors
Mr. Tang Qingbin FERLAE 120 - - 120
Mr. Wang Jinghua FRELE 60 - - 60
Mr. Fung Nam Shan BEILEE 144 - - 144
Total for the year ended BE-_E-=%Z=H
31 March 2023 Z+-HLEERE 324 3,378 7 3,773
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

16. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (continued) 16.

For the year ended 31 March 2022:

EEME @
BE_Z-_—"F=RA=+—HILFE:

Salaries,  Contributions
allowances to retirement

Directors’ and benefits benefit
fees in kind schemes Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
e 2E RNEF
Notes ik REMEF AR wat
(o FTAT FAET FHET TET
Executive Directors B17ES
Mr. Cao Sheng EREE - 60 3 63
Mr. Lan Yonggiang Ekans - 272 11 283
Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral REBL4E - 1,610 18 1,628
Mr. Wang Feng TELEE (vi) - 172 9 181
Mr. Yu Zhiyong FTEBEE - 60 3 63
Dr. Lei Liangzhen EREET (vii) - 199 10 209
Independent non-executive BYFHTES
Directors
Mr. Tang Qingbin BE®EE 120 - - 120
Mr. Wang Jinghua FTRERE 60 - - 60
Mr. Fung Nam Shan BRElEE 144 - - 144
Total for the year ended BE-%2--%=h
31 March 2022 =+-HLEFELE 324 2,373 54 2,751
Notes: B
(i) Appointed as the Chairman with effect from 7 April 2022. (i) B _—FNALtHEEZTEERE -
(i) Appointed as the executive Director and chief executive officer with (i) B -__—FNA+tHREZEANT

effect from 7 April 2022.
(iii) Ceased as the Chairman with effect from 7 April 2022.
(iv) Appointed as the executive Director with effect from 7 April 2022.

(v) Resigned with effect from 7 April 2022.
(vi) Retired with effect from 18 January 2022.
(vii) Resigned with effect from 3 March 2022.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, there was arrangement
under which two Directors (2022: four Directors) waived or
agreed to waive emoluments with total amount of approximately
HK$606,000 (2022: HK$596,000).

During the year ended 31 March 2023, no emoluments were paid
by the Group to the Directors as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of office (2022: Nil).

BEERITHBE -
(iii) BE-_Z-__FNA+HETBEAERE -
(iv) BT —FNAtBEREZEANRT
£E-
(v) BT __—FMAtHREEE-
(vi) B -_—F—A+/\H#RE-
(vii) = et = Rl = Y2 S

HE_ZT_=F=-fA=+—HIEE &
MEEE(CE-—F: IEEF)HER
[{ = R E B & 42 58 49606,000/8 7T (= F
— — 4 :596,00087T) Z L HE °

HE_ZT_=—F=-A=+—HIEE &
SETEAEEINEANMSEASMASK
MARE B &0 ZE S ERBERRE (=
T _F ) e

BERERREERERAT / T —=FFRH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= by E S E kS

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

17.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2022:
one) Directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 16. The
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other three (2022:

17.

REFMAL

R &RSFHMALTH ML

— - —

= __

D EENHEMNME16KE - A=

(2T -4 M) ALz Bie@sEm

four) individuals were as follows: Nk
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E_= T4
FET FET
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e - fEAROERL 2,247 3,932

Contributions to retirement benefit RARE R FT S 3

schemes 36 51
2,283 3,983

The emoluments of three (2022: four) individuals with the highest

“fM(ZEZF O HEeaFMALZ

emoluments are within the following bands: BN FATEHE :
2023 2022
Number of Number of
employee employee
—E-=fF —E-
EBE A" BB AB
Below HK$1,000,000 T~ 1,000,000 7T 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 & 7T 2 1,500,000 7% T =

During the year ended 31 March 2023, no emoluments were paid
by the Group to the five highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of
office (2022: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND 18. ¥ BERIKBEREAEE
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS =3
(a) Property, plant and equipment () Y% BERR®E
Leasehold
improvements,
furniture,
office
equipment
and motor
vehicles
HK$'000
HEWME
BiE - R®M
FENSE
a2l
FET
At 1 April 2021 R=—B=—5mA—H 7,250
Cost PN (5,535)
Accumulated depreciation and impairment REtin&E MRE 1,715
At 1 April 2021, net of accumulated R=-TB=-—FM™AE—H "
depreciation and impairment HKREFHERRE 1,715
Additions NE 584
Exchange differences EHZR 101
Depreciation e (1,398)
At 31 March 2022, net of accumulated R-ZE-=-ZH=H=+—8"
depreciation and impairment HKREFHERRE 1,002
As at 31 March 2022 R-E-_—F=H=+—H
Cost DN 7,914
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ZEHITE MRE (6,912)
Carrying amount IREE 1,002
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND 18. V% BERRBREAESR
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued) = )
(a) Property, plant and equipment (Continued) () W% BERRE @)
Leasehold
improvement,
furniture,
office
equipment
and motor
vehicles
HK$'000
HEWE
®1E - FHE
F N
kA=
F#ExT
At 1 April 2022, net of accumulated R-ZB--_FM™ABE—H "
depreciation and impairment HRETTHERRE 1,002
Additions = 5,237
Exchange differences MW =5 (78)
Depreciation e (498)
Disposal & (11)
At 31 March 2023, net of accumulated R-ZB-=F=A=+—8"
depreciation and impairment HBRRFTERBE 5,652
As at 31 March 2023 R=-ZBE-Z=5=ZA=+—H
Cost B AR 12,819
Accumulated depreciation and impairment EETITE MBE (7,167)
Carrying amount REE 5,652
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND 18. V¥ BERREREAES

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued) = (#)
(b) Right-of-use assets (b) EARAEEE
Leased Motor
properties vehicles Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HEME ARE Bt
TAET TET TET
As at 31 March 2023 R-E-=5=A=+—H
Carrying value REE 1,033 - 1,033
As at 31 March 2022 R-ZBZZF=ZA=+-H
Carrying value KA 8,556 - 8,556
For the year ended BE-E-=f=ZHA=t-H
31 March 2023 LEE
Depreciation charge HEER 3,485 - 3,485
For the year ended BE-_ZT-_—_f=HA=1+-H
31 March 2022 LEE
Depreciation charge HEER 4,902 80 4,982
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= by E S E kS

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND 18. V¥ BERREREAESE

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)
(b) Right-of-use assets (Continued)

The analysis of expenses items in relation to lease recognised
in profit or loss is as follows:

= (4#%)

EREEE ®)

RIBREANERNEERBEMASTIEER
DITEAT :

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E== —ZE-=

F#&xT FHT

Expenses relating to short-term HEHHEERENAE
leases - 334
Termination of right-of-use assets BILEREEE = (478)
Total cash outflow for leases (note) HER ML A5 (W) (3,713) (5,831)
Addition to right-of-use assets RETHEEE - 6,984

Note:  Amount includes payments of principal and interest portion
of lease liabilities, short-term leases and payments of lease
payments on or before lease commencement date. These
amounts was presented in operating or financing cash
flows.

The Group leases various office premises. Lease agreements
are typically made for fixed periods of 2 years (2022: 2 to
5 years). Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants and
the leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

19. BREWE

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-= T

FERT FHET

FAIR VALUE ATE
At beginning of year REY) 1,666,170 1,574,454
Additions NE 9,922 15,264
Fair value adjustment N EHE 12,964 8,986
Exchange adjustments EH A (123,557) 67,466
At end of year RER 1,565,499 1,666,170

The investment properties held by the Group represents the oil and
liquefied chemical terminal located in Shandong Province, the PRC.

The Group leases out investment properties under operating leases.
The leases typically run for an initial period of 2.38 years (2022:
2.38 years), All leases are on a fixed rental basis and do not include
variable lease payments.

The investment properties have been pledged to secure bank

borrowings (note 29) as at 31 March 2023 and 2022.

The details of fair value measurement of investment properties are
set out in note 7.

AEBEFANREMEELNTEILRE
B fa MR Rt T iS58 o

REBRBCEMOLBEREYE - ¥
B —MA238F (T4 :2.38
F) FMEMNKREEHSEE T8
AEREMNK -

NZE—=FR-_FT-_—_F=A=+—H"
WEMECEET  AERURTTHE R (K
729) °

RAMRZ A EFEFBHRNHET -
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

20. GOODWILL 20. B8
HK$'000
FHT
Cost AR
At 1 April 2021, 31 March 2022, RZZ_—FWHA—H-
1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023 T ZF=RA=+—8"
R FNPA—BR
—E-=%=A=+—H 1,440
Accumulated impairment losses 25 EEEE
At 1 April 2021, 31 March 2022, RZFE_—FMA—AH-
1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023 T ZF=A=+—8"
T FNA—ABR
—EC=F=ZH=+—H 1,440

Carrying amount BREE
At 31 March 2023 RZE-Z=F=FA=+—H
At 31 March 2022 R F=A=+—H

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at
acquisition, to the cash generating units that are expected to benefit
from that business combination. The carrying amount of goodwill
had been allocated to Insurance Brokerage Service segment (the
“Insurance CGU").

In year 2019, the financial performance of the Insurance CGU,
as a consequence of the intense competition from surrounding
competitors in the market, did not meet Directors’ expectations.
The Directors performed impairment assessments of the Insurance
CGU to which goodwill had been allocated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 21. RBERQTNRE
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EBT=HF T
FE T FHET
Share of net assets, including goodwill on DREEFE
acquisition BIEBBEENEGE - -
An associate is accounted for using the equity method in the BE AR AERERNGEMBRETAA
consolidated financial statements. R o
The Group has injected 30% equity interest in SLFIZRIBEEHER R=ZFE—NF  AEB AR 3,500,000
A a] (“SLFIfE "), a company established and domiciled in the PRC, E/iﬁ)ﬂﬂfﬁﬁﬁ%iﬁﬁﬁ (M9 F=] -
at an amount of RMB3,500,000 in year 2019. —ERPREKIWAZEAEE 2 AR
30% X °
During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group disposed of 30% BHE_ZT-_=%= ﬁ = +— HIEFE &
equity interest in gLF4# through disposal of its holding company, EEBRANEEERAT(EBERA
namely Precious New Limited. Details of the disposal are disclosed 7)) RS F %E’\BO%HX% BRERLE
in note 43(d). FIH 7 FA BRI 43(d) HE -
Financial information of ZLFI4E for the year ended 31 March 2022 JFEHE—T_—F=A=+—HILF
was disclosed as below: EHMBBERBEERLT
2022
HK$'000
—T &
FHT
Revenue Uz 5,609
Loss and total comprehensive expense EiEkEEAS R (47,878)
2022
HK$'000
S
FHBT
The unrecognised share of loss of an associate for the year — FRIER D 14 F N H & A &) E1E 14,363
Cumulative unrecognised share of loss of an associate SERER L E R RBE 30,865
HRERBREERERAR /| === —=FF#H
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mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

22.

EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

22. MAFEFAHMZERA

HiEZTHE

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
—g=-= B
FEx Fi&TT
Equity instruments at FVOCI RATFEFARMER
WARERTA - 203,890

Reference to the announcement of the Company dated 21 October
2019, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company entered into an
acquisition agreement with an independent third party to purchase
the entire interests in Ever Rosy Ventures Limited (the “Ever Rosy”)
for a consideration of nominal value of RMB224 million which shall
be settled by way of issuance of promissory notes by the Company
(the "Promissory Note A") (note 33). Ever Rosy is an investment
holding company and directly owned 40% equity interest of
Supreme Success, an investment holding company and directly
owned entire interest of Weichenghui Trading (Shenzhen) Company
Limited. Weichenghui Trading (Shenzhen) Company Limited is an
investment holding company and directly owned 70% of Tai'an
Wanyue. Tai'an Wanyue's principal activity is property development
in Tai'an City, Shandong Province, the PRC. The investment
essentially represent 28% of effective interest in Tai'an Wanyue's
property development business.

After completion, the financial and operational performance of
Tai'an Wanyue was under-performed as compared to the Group’s
expectation, as the property project experienced construction delay
due to the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic. Without proceeding to
completion and pre-sales to the extent and timetable as scheduled,
the dividend income expected to be derived by the Group from
Tai'an Wanyue was not materialised. In September 2021, the
Group commenced legal action in the High Court of Hong Kong
against (inter alia) the vendor (the “Litigation”) to apply for (inter
alia) an order to have the acquisition agreement set aside and any
consideration already paid to be fully refunded. On 17 June 2022,
the vendor surrendered the promissory notes in the aggregate face
value of RMB110,500,000 to the Group for cancellation, thereby
reducing the consideration of the acquisition. Upon this surrender
of promissory notes, the Group was discharged and released from
current liabilities in the amount of HK$128,048,000 upon the
surrender of the abovementioned promissory notes on 17 June
2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (continued)

On 24 June 2022, a settlement proposal (the “Settlement
Proposal”) was reached between the Group and the vendor in
respect of the acquisition of Ever Rosy, involving (inter alia): (i) the
immediate repayment by the vendor of RMB33,500,000 (the “First
Installment Payment”) to the Group; (ii) the repayment by the
vendor of RMB80,000,000 together with interest accruing at the
rate of 5.5% per annum (the “Balance Payment”) on or before 31
March 2023; (iii) the waiver of all interests on the promissory notes
in favour of the Group; (iv) the immediate transfer back of shares
of Ever Rosy to the vendor; and (v) pledge of shares of Ever Rosy
in favour of the Group to secure the vendor’s payment obligations
in respect of the Balance Payment. On 27 June 2022, the Group
received the First Installment Payment of RMB30,000,000 (or
equivalent to approximately HK$39,188,000) from the vendor.

Further on 29 March 2023, a supplemental settlement proposal (the
“Supplemental Settlement Proposal”) was reached between the
Group and the vendor in respect of the settlement of the Balance
Payment, involving (inter alia): (i) the repayment by the vendor of
RMB30,000,000 on or before 31 March 2023; (i) the repayment by
the vendor of RMB 10,000,000 each on or before 30 April 2023, 31
May 2023, 30 June 2023 and 31 July 2023 respectively; and (iii) the
repayment by the vendor of RMB10,000,000 together with interest
accruing at the rate of 5.5% per annum on or before 15 September
2023. On 30 March 2023, the vendor repaid RMB30,000,000
(or equivalent to approximately HK$34,146,000) to the Group.
Subsequent to the reporting period, the vendor repaid in an
aggregate amount of RMB30,000,000 to the Group in accordance
with the repayment schedule.

Upon the surrender of promissory notes by the vendor to the
Group, and reaching the Settlement Proposal between the Group
and the vendor, the Group derecognised the equity instruments
at FVOCI, the Promissory Notes A-i, A-iii and A-iv (as defined in
note 33), resulting a net gain of approximately HK$63,010,000
recognised in the consolidated income statement during the
year ended 31 March 2023. In addition, fair value through other
comprehensive income reserve of approximately HK$28,274,000
was released and transferred to retained earnings.

22.

RRERREZERERARA / —T——

BRAFEFTAHMEEZEWA
HNEZT R @

RZE-_—FRNA-_+WNH AEEERE
T3 Sh U Sk B B3R E RN AR U & ([ R 7
B HERASR(EPRE) O)EFTL
Bl A £ Bl (88 A R 33,500,000 7T ([ 5
—HNZD  MEIRZTEZ=F=A4
=+—HzzH{EE AR 80,000,0007T
HERFFES55% T EMFE ([
) (VAR EE BT = AR AR ER
BIATA FILE + (iv) 37 A1 A5 K 2 8145 % {7 &5 [a]
B &MM$E@EX = NEHOKEE
B MRBE S BBESRN RN RE
T-R-_E-_—_FA-++tH £&£H
8= 7 WA E — BT 5 A K% 30,000,000
7T (SR E 7 #739,188,000/87T) °
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10,000,000 7T i [A 2 & F £ 5.5% 5T &
FE - RZEZ=F=A=+H EAiM
$El {38 A R #30,000,000 7T (KEE

R #)34,146,000% 70) - RE R - B
EE&ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ$E@Eﬁm%AE
# 30,000,000 7T 2 FIA ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

22.

23.

EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (continued)

Further details of the Litigation, the adjustment of consideration
and the Settlement Proposal were set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 17 June 2022 and 24 June 2022 respectively.

The Company did not have any significant influence in Tai‘an
Wanyue as the Group has no representative on the board of
Supreme Success as well as its subsidiaries and therefore, the
Directors concluded that there is no significance influence over
Tai'an Wanyue, and the investment on Tai'an Wanyue was classified
as equity instruments at FVOCI as at 31 March 2022.

Details of the fair value measurement of equity instruments at
FVOCI are set out in note 7.

TRADE, BILLS AND LEASE RECEIVABLES

22.

23.

BRAFEFAEMZEKWA
NEZT R @

Fen - REABRANBHARNE —FFE
HERARARBHIINAZT__FA
+“:E|&—?——¢/\)E] +EEE’J Wﬁ“

FR 7 N £2 (8] 37 £ Supreme Success M E [ B
RAMESGRE  WARAHELEE
WHRAERNERNZED Bt EFRAR
RERLEETETHNEATEN kR
T CF =A==+ HYERRERZER
B BEAERAFEFAEMEEBARN
ERIE-

BAFEH AL 2 ERAN ST A
AFEEORFRRHET -

EZEWRM - &
WHEE IR

SERE

2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$'000
—E-o=5F T

FHET FHET

From independent third parties, net of loss REBLE=T7 (NBREE

allowance )
— Trade receivables from contracts —-REBFPEHZES

with customers JRE U5 B 3K 163,437 155,635
— Bills receivables —EWEIE - 1,234
— Lease receivables —FEWAEFIA 26,901 -
190,338 156,869

As at 1 April 2021, trade receivables from contracts with customers
net of allowance for credit losses amounted to nil.

The Group normally allows a credit period up to 90 days to its
established customers. Each customer has a maximum credit limit.
For certain customers with good past repayment history, a longer
credit period may be granted. Trade receivables are non-interest
bearing. All of the trade receivables are expected to be recovered
within one year.
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23.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

BB - ERRBRE

TRADE, BILLS AND LEASE RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

As at the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade,
bills and lease receivables based on the invoice date and net of loss
allowance, is as follow:

23.

U8 & X8 (7)

RIEHIR - BN R B L NER R B
BONE RN  BUEEREKEE

FORHFRE D ATE ST -

2023 2022

HK$°000 HK$'000

—E-=E —E-F

FHET FET

0-90 days 0£ 90k 164,538 104,078
91-180 days 91 £ 180K 25,605 52,791
181-365 days 181 £ 365K 195 -
190,338 156,869

As at the end of the reporting period, the analysis of trade and bills
receivables that were past due but not impaired, based on past due
date, are as follows:

TR ERHERRENE ZEK
R MBS RBEER BB RN -

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000

—E-=F —E-—
FERT FATT
0-30 days past due #HR0-30 H 25,605 52,791
Over 90 days past due BEI90 H A £ 195 =
25,800 52,791
As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the Group did not hold any RZEBZ=FR-E-__F=R=+—8
collateral over these balances. Details of the Group’s credit policy AEBEVWERZSEARTREAMETR -
and impairment assessment on trade, bills and lease receivables for HEZZT - =FR-_F-_F=A=1+—

the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022 are set out in note 6(a).

BLEFEE AEENEERRELRESHRK
BRAK - RR B M WR S 5B 2 RUERT
A EE N 6®) -

BERERREERERAT / T —=FFRH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

24.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

24. ANFRE - BREREMEBRR

RECEIVABLES b= |
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E_=F -
FEx FExT
Current BN ER
Prepayments for repair and maintenance (note iii) W5 I 4 7E 2 FEAS FOE (BT sEii) 57,135 -
Sundry prepayments SEANE 22 6,791 14,302
Prepayment to a supplier m—REERENRIE - 55,539
Deposits b 724 18,530
Advances to staff BHFET 153 185
Value-added tax (“VAT") receivables (note ii) NG ER (/) (FIEEi) 12,642 11,892
Other receivables H U R 1,804 26,330
Receivables from recession of contract (note iv) FRBRA K 2 EYGRIE (M EEiv) 61,001 -
140,250 126,778
Non-current FEENE
Deposits (note i) Ze (WD - 97,093
VAT receivables (note i) NG ER (BT aE i) - 7,186
- 104,279

Notes:

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group entered into an
acquisition agreement (the “2021 Acquisition Agreement”) with an
equity holder of Shundong Port (the “2021 Vendor”) in relation to
acquire 9.92% registered capital of Shundong Port (the “Relevant
Shares”) and a refundable deposit of RMB82,000,000 (equivalent of
HK$93,833,000) was paid to the 2021 Vendor.

On 17 June 2022, the Group has entered into the termination
agreement (the “Termination Agreement”) with the 2021 Vendor
to mutually agree to terminate the 2021 Acquisition Agreement.
The Relevant Shares carry a fixed rate dividend of 8% per annum
(the “Fixed Rate Dividend"”) payable by Shundong Port calculated by
reference to the original issue price of the Relevant Shares, subject
to the availability and sufficiency of the reserve of accumulated
distributable profit of Shundong Port. Pursuant to the Termination
Agreement, the 2021 Acquisition Agreement shall be rescinded,
and the consideration in the amount of RMB82,000,000 shall be
fully repaid on or before 19 July 2022, and any Fixed Rate Dividend
payable by Shundong Port on the Relevant Shares attributable
to the period from 20 July 2021 to 19 July 2022 shall belong to
the Group. The Termination Agreement has taken effect upon its
signing on 17 June 2022.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the 2021 Vendor settled the
refundable deposit of RMB82,000,000 to the Group.

Details of the Termination Agreement are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 24 June 2022.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

ANRE  REREMERRK

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(ii) Other receivables comprises VAT recoverables of approximately
HK$12,642,000 (2022: HK$19,078,000), of which an amount of
approximately HK$12,642,000 (2022: HK$11,892,000) will be used
to offset output VAT within one year and hence is accounted for as
a current asset whereas the remaining VAT recoverables of nil (2022:
HK$7,186,000) is classified as a non-current asset.

(iii) The prepayment of approximately HK$57,135,000 was made to an
independent third party for the purpose of repair and maintenance
of the Group’s investment properties in the PRC. The said repair
and maintenance work was in progress subsequent to the reporting
period.

(iv) As at 31 March 2023, the entire shares of Ever Rosy were pledged
in favour of the Group to secure the receivable of approximately
HK$61,001,000. Details of the pledge are stated in note 22.

Subsequent to the reporting period, the Group further collected
RMB30,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$34,281,000),
which represented the repayments in accordance with the
repayment timetable set forth in the Supplemental Settlement
Proposal. Details of such are set out in note 22.

(v) Details of impairment assessment on deposits and other receivables
are set out in note 6(a).

LOAN RECEIVABLE

The balance as at 31 March 2022 represent loan to an independent
third party which bear fixed interest rate at 10% per annum and is
repayable within one year.

Except for those which had been determined as credit-impaired or
there is significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
the Group applied 12-month ECL basis to measure the ECL of
these balances. During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group
recognised a reversal of impairment loss on loan receivable of
approximately HK$7,418,000.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group disposed of the
entire balance of loan receivable through disposal of the relevant
subsidiary of the Group. Details of the disposal of subsidiaries are
disclosed in note 43(d).

Details of impairment assessment on loan receivables are set out in
note 6(a).

24,

25.

I8 (1)

BiaE : (&)

(ii) Hofth JE Y R IR B A @ B

#4912,642,000 T (Z & ==

19,078,000 % 7T) + A A 4912,642,000
11,892,000 7T) #
AREHE —FREIEGETR - FLdIER
BRBEE MHATAIKEEERS (=
T~ —4F 17,186,000 7T) D EAIER

B (T

(iif) FE T FRIE 957,135,000 78 7T TY 5t 4 1E K
HEAEERTRMNREMEMmMRA—4
o RIREHARI - it

BALE =T {EH
BERGEETIEEEETESD -

(iv)

w3

B - AREMISEN MR 22

R BEE - AEEE—SREAR
¥ 30,000,000 7T (48 & 1A 4934,281,000
BIT) HARBRAMNB A RMEE
FEBERNER - BHEFBEHRMHFE

22

v) e R H s UG 2 R B R = B

MR 6(a) ©

FE W & =X

R-T - —F=A=+—HZ&EHBREHBE
VYEZARBZEZ  ZEEFHNE10%

FHRYAR—FRERE -

BREEREEREXNIERAREE
AEEER
REAEREEBREEFEZZTHER
MEREEEE RBEE_T-_F=A
=t —BILFE  AEEREREWEFR

2 B K W 488 0 ) 5% 5 A RS

EE R[4 7,418,000/ 7T °

BE-_ZT_=F=A=+—HIEFEE 'K
SEERLEASEEBHNBARHENE
WERZzE2BEH FHEEHEHRBARZ

BT TE43(d) 2 5 -

FEUW & 5K 2 BB R4 R IF R MY st 6(a) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= by E S E kS

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 26. RAFESFTAERZHEE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS i3
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
—EC—=F —E-=
FET FET
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, REETTHERZES
at fair value EZATE 12,937 20,712
The above financial assets are classified as current as the LU BEESBARDEE  EREE
management expects to realise these financial assets within twelve BiasrER RS AMEE T @A NEIERZ
months after the reporting period. EMBEE -
27. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 27. BERBITET

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates.

As at 31 March 2023 and 2022, the Group performed impairment
assessment on bank balances and concluded that the probability of
defaults of the counterparty banks are insignificant and accordingly,
no allowance for credit losses is provided.

At 31 March 2023, conversion of approximately HK$81,779,000

(2022: approximately HK$56,203,000) into foreign currencies is
subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 28. BEFEMNERARAEMENR
18

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
—s=-= ==
FET FAET
Trade payables (note i) B SRR () - 12,773
Construction cost payables JET LA 27,741 35,882
Amounts due to shareholders (note ii) JE 1 AR R SR IE (K&t i) 6,995 6,152
Amounts due to Directors (note ii) JEE =B (Kt i) 820 4,680
Other tax payables H e IR 3,676 3,966
Deposits received e 4 4
Accruals FEET IR 9,617 7,752
Other payables Hith B FRIE 5,911 5,294
54,764 76,503
All trade and other payables are expected to be settled or 28 5 EMN RN A EN AR
recognised as income within one year or are repayable on demand. R—FRNEESTIERBRA RN IRERE
Notes: Mt sk -
(i) An aged analysis of trade payables based on the invoice date at the (i) B REAERNMERRENEZAHEH
end of the reporting period is as follows: WERER DTN T -
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-= —E_-—
F#ExT T
0 to 90 days 0E90:k - 12,773
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are AEEBGENERZEEEDNUAR
denominated in RMB. BeEtE o
(i) These are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. (i) ZEFABERT R ERIREREE -

BERERREERERAT / T —=FFRH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= by E S E kS

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE
29. BANK BORROWINGS

The Group’s bank borrowings are analysed as follows:

29. SRITER

REBHRITEROHTMT

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E=-= —E-=
FHET FHET
Fixed rate borrowings: ERMER:
— secured —BHEH 154,265 172,788
— unsecured and guaranteed by independent —EmERRBBIE=FTER
third parties 20,569 125,889
174,834 298,677
Carrying amount repayable:* FEEEERTE(E « *
— Within one year —-R—FR - -
— After two years but within five years —MERERAFA 20,569 22,216
20,569 22,216
Carrying amount of bank borrowings that BERERETERZ
contain a repayment on demand clause RATEFEREE (PR
(shown under current liabilities) EJR=RED)
— Repayable within one year —-R—FRNEE 154,265 276,461
174,834 298,677
Less: Amounts due within one year and shown & : I —F R EHIX 5 &
under current liabilities mENBEZHKIE (154,265) (276,461)
Amount shown under non-current liabilities P RIEREBE 2 RIE 20,569 22,216
Interest rate F & 4.8%-4.9% 4.8%-4.9%
* The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out * S ENRERNER BE 2 BTE

in the loan agreements.
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30.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 29. SRITER @)
All of the non-current portion of bank borrowings are carried ﬁETﬂﬁﬁE’Jﬁﬁﬁ?Fumiﬂ B 45 HR SR AR
at amortised cost. None of the non-current portion of bank o B AEIER B RITERTEH KR —F
borrowings is expected to be settled within one year. W/EME °
The following assets and their respective carrying values as at the THEERESAZREBERRERARE
end of the reporting period are pledged to secure the Group’s WA GRS BB EIRRITER
secured bank borrowings:
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
—=E_= —E-
FHET FHET
Investment properties (note 19) "EYE (F:E19) 1,565,499 1,666,170
OTHER BORROWINGS 30. HER
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
—=E=-= —E-_HF
F#ExT FHT
Unsecured fixed rate other borrowings IR E B A E K 10,652 12,480
Carrying amount repayable:* [EERREE : *
— Within one year —-R—FR - 1,828
— After two years but within five years —MERERFRA 10,652 10,652
10,652 12,480
Less: Amounts due within one year and shown & : i —F R E| B 5| &R EN &
under current liabilities (EPa e = (1,828)
Amount shown under non-current liabilities Y AEEREABE KA 10,652 10,652
Interest rate F) & 7% 3.0%-7.0%
* The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out b E'Jﬁﬁéﬁﬁ)'ﬁ@});‘?ﬁﬁf‘g K ik 2 TAE B
in the loan agreements. AHHEE -
All of the non-current portion of other borrowings are carried Ffr 75 3E 7 B B 15 SR IR B S A AN AR o

at amortised cost. None of the non-current portion of other
borrowings is expected to be settled within one year.

Wﬁ#mu@ﬁﬁﬂa IR —F W/EJ (ERE

BERERREERERAT / T —=FFRH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

31.

PREFERRED SHARES 31. BER
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
—EC-=F T
FET FAT
Preferred shares (=Ftb 378,234 387,539

In prior years, Shundong Port, an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, has issued a series of preferred shares
(“Preferred Shares”) to two independent third parties. They are
accounted for as financial liabilities at FVTPL.

The key terms of the Preferred Shares are summarised as follows:

Dividend rights

The holders of the Preferred Shares are entitled to special dividend
based on 8% of the issuance price when the following conditions
are satisfied in a particular year: (i) Shundong Port made a
distributable profit which is more than the special dividend for the
year; and (ii) Shundong Port has accumulated distributable profit
which is more than the special dividend for the year. Both profit
for the year and accumulated distributable profit are determined in
accordance with the PRC accounting standards.

Liquidation preferences

(i) If the assets and funds available for distribution are less
than the total contributions from preferred shareholders
and ordinary shareholders of Shundong Port, the entire
assets and funds legally available for distribution shall be
distributed ratably among the preferred shareholders and
ordinary shareholders in proportion to the contribution
amount each such holder contributed to Shundong Port;
and

(i) If the assets and funds available for distribution are in excess
as compared to the total contributions from preferred
shareholders and ordinary shareholders of Shundong Port,
the distributions to preferred shareholders would be limited
to the contributions made by the preferred shareholders to
Shundong Port, plus the amount of dividends entitled by
the preferred shareholders but not yet paid. The remaining
assets and funds shall be distributed ratably among holders
of ordinary shares of Shundong Port.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

PREFERRED SHARES (continued)

Other features

The Preferred Shares do not have any redemption feature or
conversion feature.

The Group applied the discounted cash flow method to determine
the underlying equity value of Shundong Port to determine the
fair value of the Preferred Shares. The Directors considered that
fair value changes of the Preferred Shares that are attributable to
changes of credit risk of these instruments are not material. The
details of the fair value measurement of Preferred Shares are set out
in note 7.

31.

Bl @
Hi4s®

18 52 R 458 A 1T B [0 455 sk B A 5 4 o

AEERAYRARSRBEETIRRER
MR AEE  UNEEBEBRNAFE-
EERRGEANZETIAEERAREEM
H2BEBRAFTEEDHITEKN - GHE
SR A FEFENFBEHNMET

BERERREERERAT / T —=FFRH

181



182

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= by E S E kS

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

32. LEASE LIABILITIES

32. HE&AE

Present Present
Lease Lease value of lease value of lease
payments payments payments payments
2023 2022 2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HEMR HERR | HEARZERE | BERNFHCRE
—ECCF —E-CF —EC-=E —g-=
TER T TER THL

Within one year —FR 1,190 4,895 1,160 4,496

In the second to fifth years, indusive E-_ZFRAF (REEEMTF) 528 5,445 401 4,994

After five years F#E 5,020 5,564 1,732 1,783
5,548 11,009 2,133 6,777
6,738 15,904 3,293 11,273

Less: Future finance charges BRREEER (3,445) (4,631)

Present value of lease liabilities HEBE/HE 3,293 11,273

Less: Amount due for settlement BT ZEARESEE

within 12 months (shown FE (5 R
under current liabilities) REBREET) (1,160) (4,496)
Amount due for settlement +ZEAREBEETE
after 12 months 2,133 6,777
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

PROMISSORY NOTES 33. AHEE
Promissory Promissory Promissory Promissory
Note A-i Note A-iii Note A-iv Note B Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RAREAT  AEREAGT AREBA REZEB @it
FAEL FHL FAL FHL THL
At 1 April 2021 W-E-—%FMA—H 40,373 42,354 34,396 12,279 129,402
Repayment during the year FREH - - - (1,000) (1,000)
Fair value change (note 9(b)) ATEZE (M) - 3,236 - - 3,236
Effective interest expenses (note 1) EEFISFL (MzE11) 3172 - 3,257 473 6,902
Interest paid during the year FREFFE - - - (496) (49)
Exchange difference ERZE (248) 271) (256) = (775)
At 31 March 2022 R-F--#=f=1-H 43,297 45,319 37,397 11,256 137,269
At 1 April 2022 WZE-ZFNA—H 43,297 45,319 37,397 11,256 137,269
Repayment during the year FREX - - - (6,000) (6,000)
Fair value change (note 9(b) ANEEZE (HFb) - 524 - - 524
Effective interest expenses (note 1) B F 852 (Fi:11) 754 - 801 32 1877
Interest paid during the year FREMFE - - - (440) (440)
Derecognition upon recission of REER & AR FERR (58 22)
contracts (note 22) (44,034) (45,831) (38,183) - (128,048)
Exchange difference EHEE (17) (12) (1) = (44)
At 31 March 2023 RZBZ=FE=A=1-H - - - 5,138 5,138
Represented by: R&:
At 31 March 2023 RZFZ=FZA=1-A
- Current portion —HEE - - - 5,138 5,138
At 31 March 2022: RZE--F=fA=1-H:
- Current portion —-HEHH 43,297 45,319 37,397 11,256 137,269
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—=FFR

183



184

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

33.

PROMISSORY NOTES (continued)
Promissory Note A

The purpose for issuance of the Promissory Note A was related
to the acquisition of equity instruments at FVOCI, for a nominal
consideration of RMB224,000,000 which was satisfied by the
Company'’s issue of Promissory Note A to vendor (note 22).

The Promissory Note A can be early redeemed by the Company at
all or part of the outstanding principal amount of the Promissory
Note A.

The Promissory Note A comprised of two parts, (i) the unconditional
promissory note with nominal value of RMB149,000,000
(approximately HK$165,554,000) carrying interest of 5% per
annum and maturing on 18 December 2022 (the “Promissory
Note A-i”); and (ii) the conditional promissory note with nominal
value of RMB75,000,000 (approximately HK$83,333,000) carrying
interest of 5% per annum and maturing on 18 December 2022 (the
“Promissory Note A-ii”). Conditions for the Promissory Note A-ii
included release of financial guarantee provided by Tai'an Wanyue
on facility of a third party and full recoverability from certain debtors
of Tai'an Wanyue.

The Promissory Note A-i was early redeemed by the Company
partially amounted to approximately HK$28,333,000 resulting in
a loss on early redemption of approximately HK$1,788,000 during
the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

PROMISSORY NOTES (continued)
Promissory Note A (Continued)

During the fifteen months ended 31 March 2021, condition relating
to full recoverability from certain debtors of Tai‘an Wanyue had
been fulfilled and the Company spun off the Promissory Note A-ii
on 28 August 2020 into (i) the conditional promissory note with
nominal value of RMB43,000,000 maturing on 18 December 2022
(the “Promissory Note A-iii”) and (ii) the unconditional promissory
note with nominal value of RMB32,000,000 carrying interest of 5%
per annum and maturing on 18 December 2022 (the “Promissory
Note A-iv").

At issue date, the fair value of the Promissory Note A, Promissory
Note A-iii and Promissory Note A-iv is determined at date of
issuance with reference to valuation performed by APAC Asset
Valuation and Consulting Limited.

For the fair value measurement of Promissory Notes A-iii, please
referred to note 7.

During the year, the Promissory Note A-i, A-iii and A-iv were
surrendered by the holder upon the recission of relevant contracts,
of which the details are set out in note 22.

Promissory Note B

The purpose for issuance of the Promissory Note B is for the
settlement of the amount due to an independent third party.

The Promissory Note B was partially repaid by the Group in the
amount of HK$6,000,000 (2022: HK$1,000,000).
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

34. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 3. EEBEARE
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised by the TRARNSEERNEZELERIEARE
Group.

Fair value

adjustment

on investment

properties

HK$'000

REWE

AP ERAE

FHET

At 1 April 2021 N-BE-——&mA—H 146,989
Charged to profit or loss (note 12) =k (FFE12) 27,750
Exchange difference E X ZE% 6,755
At 31 March 2022 RZEBE-__F=R=+—H 181,494
At 1 April 2022 R-E-__FPmWA—H 181,494
Charged to profit or loss (note 12) BEEMER (MHEE12) 26,889
Exchange difference M H 5 (13,494)
At 31 March 2023 RZEZ=F=HA=+—H 194,889

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 4(q),
the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
unused tax losses of approximately HK$139,556,000 as at 31
March 2023 (2022: approximately HK$140,532,000) as it is not
probable that future taxable profits against which the tax losses
can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and
entity. The unused tax losses of approximately HK$85,954,000
(2022: HK$99,489,000) will be expired by 2028 (2022: 2027)
under current tax legislation, and the remaining unused tax losses
of approximately HK$53,602,000 (2022: HK$41,043,000) will be
carried forward indefinitely. The unused tax losses of the Group
have not yet been agreed by respective authorities.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

SHARE CAPITAL 35. BR=A
Number
of shares Amount
‘000 HK$'000
BB EE &5
F i FAT
Authorised: EIE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each BREBE.IEBITHEER
at 1 April 2021, 31 March 2022, RZZEZ—FWA—H-
1 April 2022 —E-_—#%#=fA=+—8"
—E-_FA—H 15,000,000 1,500,000
Share consolidation (note (i) & o (FREG)) (13,500,000) =
Share sub-division (note (iii)) % 1 37 48 (BT = Gii)) 148,500,000 =
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FREEO.01BILH LB
at 31 March 2023 RZBE-_=ZF=ZA=+—H 150,000,000 1,500,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each BREBE.IEBITHEBER
at 1 April 2021, 31 March 2022 and RZZE-_—FWMA—AQ8 "
1 April 2022 —E--F=A=+—HEK
—E-_FA—H 7,205,629 720,563
Share consolidation (note (i) & o (FRE)) (6,485,066) =
Share reduction (note (ii)) R 13 Bk (B 2 (i) - (713,357)
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREMEOC.01E LT ER
at 31 March 2023 RZBE-_=ZF=ZA=+—H 720,563 7,206
Notes: M eE
On 13 September 2022, special resolutions were passed at a special general RZZEZZFhA+=0 RBRREEFIARE L

meeting as follows:

(i) To consolidate every 10 issued and unissued existing ordinary shares
of par value of HK$0.1 each (the “Existing Share”) in the share
capital of the Company into 1 consolidated share of par value of
HK$1.00 each (the “Consolidated Share” and collectively the “Share

Consolidation”).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

35.

36.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(ii) To reduce the share capital of the Company through a cancellation
of (a) any fractional Consolidated Share in the share capital of the
Company that may arise as a result of the Share Consolidation in
order to round down the total number of Consolidated Shares to
a whole number; and (b) the paid-up capital of the Company to
the extent of HK$0.99 on each of the issued Consolidated Share
such that the par value of each issued Consolidated Share shall be
reduced from HK$1.00 each to HK$0.01 each, resulting a new share
of par value of HK$0.01 each (the “New Share” and collectively the
“Capital Reduction”).

The credit of approximately HK$713,357,000 arising from
the Capital Reduction will be applied towards offsetting the
accumulated losses of the Company and the balance of any such
credit remaining after offsetting the accumulated losses of the
Company be transferred to a distributable reserve account (i.e.
the Capital Reserve) of the Company which may be applied by the
Company in any manner as permitted under the applicable laws and
the Memorandum and Articles.

(iii) To sub-divide each of the authorised but unissued Consolidated
Share into 100 New Share, so that the par value of each unissued
Consolidated Share shall be reduced from HK$1.00 each to
HK$0.01 each (the “Share Sub-division”).

The Share Consolidation was completed and effective on 15 September
2022.

The Capital Reduction and the Share Sub-division were completed and
effective on 19 December 2022.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company has a share option scheme, which was adopted
by the shareholders on 24 June 2013 (the “Scheme”) and unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years
from the date of adoption. Eligible participants of the Scheme
include the Directors, independent non-executive Directors, other
employees of the Group, suppliers of goods or services to the
Group, customers of the Group, any person or entity that provides
research, development or other technological support to the Group
and any non-controlling shareholder in the Company’s subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the extraordinary general meeting passed on 24
June 2013, the general scheme limit of the Scheme is set to
1,746,849,000 shares, which have been adjusted to 174,685,000
shares pursuant to the share consolidation in 2014, representing
10% of the Company’s issued share capital on the date of meeting,
with the passing of ordinary resolution, which allows the Company
to grant further options carrying the rights to subscribe for a
maximum of 174,685,000 shares. The general scheme limit is
further adjusted to 17,468,500 shares after the completion of share
consolidation on 15 September 2022, which allows the Company to
grant further options carrying the rights to subscribe for a maximum
of 17,468,500 shares. This is also the maximum unexercised share
options currently permits to be granted under the Scheme at any
time.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (cContinued)

Maximum number of shares issuable under share options to each
eligible participant in the Scheme within any 12-month period, is
limited to 1%, of the shares of the Company in issue at any time.
Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
Directors. In addition, share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non- executive Director, or to any
of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time or with aggregate value (based on the price of
the Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5
million, within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’
approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
14 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period
of the share options granted is determinable by the Director, and
commences after a certain vesting period and ends on a date which
is not later than 10 years from the date of the offer of the share
options or the expiry date of the Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
Directors, but may not be less than the higher of:

(€)] the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares
on the date of the offer of the share options;

(b) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s
shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of the offer; and

(0) the nominal value of the shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

There has been no share option granted or exercised since the
Scheme was adopted in June 2013. As at 31 March 2023 and
2022, the Group has no outstanding share option.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 37. ARAHMBERRAREREES
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY )

(a) Statement of financial position of the (a) A2BFHBEMRRK
Company
2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$'000
—E_=HF —E -
FBT FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BB MR 15 38
Interests in subsidiaries NI EPNGILE ok Fa 600,428 644,549
600,443 644,587
Current assets REEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables ~ F{I 5 1E ~ #& &
HAth pE W R E 1,923 869
Financial assets at fair value through EAFEFABERZZ
profit or loss s EE 12,937 20,712
Cash and bank balances Re RIRITHET 1,059 1,051
15,919 22,632
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables and accruals H b FE A 5RI8 I FE AT R 15,212 15,050
Amount due to a subsidiary JEAS — R B A R FE 273 1,118
Other borrowings HihfE R - 1,828
Promissory notes A HEE 5,138 11,256
20,623 29,252
Net current liabilities REBAEFE (4,704) (6,620)
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERRBERE 595,739 637,967
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Other borrowings HAbE R 10,652 10,652
Net assets BEE 585,087 627,315
Capital and reserves EERHE
Share capital Ax R 7,206 720,563
Reserves ] 577,881 (93,248)
Total equity mER 585,087 627,315
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 37. XATFHMBERREREREES

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY B
(Continued)
(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) EATREEH
Share Capital  Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RAEE BRfifE 23t ER E2h
FHET FAET FAT TAT
At 1 April 2021 RZE--FNA—A 3,087,641 157,960 (3,326,457) (80,856)
Loss and total comprehensive FRBEBRREAERTAE
expenses for the year - - (12,392) (12,392)
At 31 March 2022 i —c s R sl 3,087,641 157,960 (3,338,849) (93,248)
At 1 April 2022 RZE-_—F#WNA—A 3,087,641 157,960 (3,338,849) (93,248)
Loss and total comprehensive FRBERZERTEE
expenses for the year - - (42,228) (42,228)
Share premium reduction (note 38()) {72 (B AU (Fi 5 38()) (3.087,641) - 3,087,641 -
Share reorganisation (note 35) ffn E48 (M3 35) - 451,697 261,660 713,357
At 31 March 2023 RZEZ=F=R=1—H - 609,657 (31,776) 577,881
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE
38. RESERVES

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Share premium
Share premium mainly arose from:

- the difference between the combined net asset
value of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the
Group reorganisation in 2001, over the nominal
value of the share capital of the Company issued in
exchange therefor;

- the premium arising from the capitalisation issue in
the previous years;

- issue of shares of the Company at a premium net of
transaction costs associated with the issue of shares;
and

- amount transferred from other equity reserves
upon exercise of share options and conversion of
convertible bonds.

On 13 September 2022, an ordinary resolution was passed
at an extraordinary general meeting on the reduction of the
share premium account of the Company to nil and to apply
such amount towards offsetting the accumulated losses of
the Company (the “Share Premium Reduction”).

The Share Premium Reduction was completed and effective
on 15 September 2022.

(ii) Capital reserve
Capital reserve mainly arose from the Company’s capital

reorganisation in 2005 and represented the reduction of
share capital of the Company.

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2022/23

38. f#f#&

REMEEREDN

(@)

(i)

B &E
BOBEXTBELER

- BEAEBEN-_TZET—F
CEMEAWBEZNBARZ
AHBEFEBEARF
MR MBETZRAEE
ZER

- BEFEENCBITEL

2 fE

- ARBAEE (BEHKRET
BRI B ) BT
R

- P17 {62 8 B 4 N 4 R AT 3
BESHLEEbESER
BRZ A -

R-_E-_—_FhA+=8 RE=E
FRARELBRALTBRAER  NE
BRI AR R R ERERES
THEESFEANKERAFNER
sTEE (TRRMDEEEIRE]) -

BiEEHRER - T - —FNHA
THHEFTRRER -

BXEE
EARFBIZREARANR_-TE

RFETHNEAERLIERNR A
ZHIR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

38. fHfE@)

38. RESERVE (continued)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Exchange reserve

Exchange differences arising from the translation of the
net assets of the Group’s foreign operations from their
functional currencies to the Group’s presentation currency
(i.e. HK$) are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in exchange reserve. The reserve
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy of
foreign currencies set out in note 4(t).

Revaluation reserve

Changes arising on revaluation of properties held for own
use are generally dealt with in other comprehensive income
and are accumulated separately in equity in the revaluation
reserve.

Fair value through other comprehensive income
reserve

Fair value through other comprehensive income reserve
mainly arose from fair value change on equity instrument at
FVOCI during the reporting period.

Other reserve

Other reserve mainly arose from the adjustment made to
the amount of controlling and non-controlling interests
arising from the capital injection by non-controlling interests
resulting in a change in the Group’s ownership interests in
non-wholly-owned subsidiary.

REMEER BN @

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

39.

40.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure the entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balances. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which include
bank borrowings (note 29), other borrowings (note 30), preferred
shares (note 31) and promissory notes (note 33) and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share
capital, reserves and retained earnings/accumulated losses.

The Directors review the capital structure on a regular basis. As part
of this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with the capital. The Directors balance its overall capital
structure through payment of dividends, issuance of new shares
and share buy-backs as well as the raising of new debts, if required.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
As lessor

The entire of investment properties held by the Group for rental
purposes have committed leases for the next 0.13 year (2022: 1.13

39.

40.
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Undiscounted lease payments receivable on the lease are as follows: Az EYCRAERBEENFAOT ¢
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000

—E-= —E-—

FEx FHBT
Within one year —FR 21,290 169,844
After one year but within two years —FHREMFEA - 22,995
21,290 192,839
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

41. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS 41.

The Group’s capital and other commitments at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

BEARRHMARE

REBNBRERR 2 ER L EMARELNT :

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
B =8 —E -
FHET FHET
(a) Capital commitments in respect of: @ ATEEZERALE:
— construction of oil and liquefied — i &R ES
chemical terminal {t TRISSEER 113,199 3,548
113,199 3,548
(b) Other commitments in respect of: (b) BRI T ZIEAH M #IE -
— acquisition of target companies — KB EEAF - 5,245
— investment costs in associates —-RBERFZ’E
DN - 42,580
- 47,825
113,199 51,373
HRERBREERERAR /| === —=FF#H
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to those related party transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group has no other transaction with its related parties.

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Directors as disclosed in note 16, is

42,

FEEALRS
B A B IS SRR A b 5 T B IR A

TRG REHIN ARELEEMEAEA
25 -

TEEBABZHM

AEBTEEEABZHM (BIEME 16
PR BN EREFIA) M

as follows:
2023 2022
HK$°000 HK$'000
—E-= —E-_F
FET FET
Short-term benefits EEAE A 3,702 2,697
Post-employment benefits BRI 1218 A 71 54
3,773 2,751

The remuneration of Directors and key executives is determined
by the board of Directors (upon the recommendation of the
remuneration committee) having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.
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43.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 43. RBRAZRE
(@)  The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries (a) UTHEREHIN-_T_=F=A
which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected —t+—HEERATEFELEH
the results, asset or liabilities of the Group as at 31 March ¥E EEXBBENWERRFE:
2023:
Particulars of
Place of issued share
incorporation/ capital and
establishment and registered Proportion of
Name of the companies operation capital ownership interest Principal activities
AL/ BRIKAR .
ARER ﬁi“&‘“éﬂﬁ%ﬁ AfEREE FERERLH IEER
Held by the
The Group's Held by the Company’s
effective interest Company subsidiaries

FEEERER HALH ﬁﬁ BALIHELDRE

Treastre Tone Limited Hong Kong HKS1 100% - 100% Investment holding
(2022: HK$1) 2022: 100%) (2022:) (2022: 100%)
ERBARAT 3 187 100% - 100% REZR
(ZF22f: (:?:: (ZF2ZF: (ZFZ2F100%)
1[%7]:/ 0%/ _\)
Mission Achiever Limited Samoa US$1 100% - 100% Investment holding
» 2022: US$1) (2022: 100%) (2022:-) (2022: 100%) )
Mission Achiever Limited BEEZ . 157 . %9% ( - : 0% RESR
kS (F2C (Z322%: kit
1%7) 100%) -) 100%)
Mid-Ocean Hong Kong Investment Hong Kong HK$1 100% - 100% Investment holding
 Limited ("Mid-Ocean") ) (2022: Hk$1) (2022: 100%) (2022:-) (2022: 100%) ]
FEEERABRAA (RS &% o 1ERm 100 - 0% REER
(ZF22f: \:%::E (ZF22f: (ZF=2f:
17 100%) -) 100%)
Shundong Port* The PRC RIMBA403,040,036 55.17% - 55.17% Leasing of of and liquefied
) (2022: RMB403,040,036) (2022: 46.67%) (2022:-) (2022: 46.67%) chemical terminal, the PRC
JER AR hE AEMa 00367 55.17% - 55.17% REpRRERY IREE
o (“FF: (Z3=2%: (Z3=2%: !
AEW(B 040 03670) 46.67%) =) 46.67%)
IECO Financial Consulting Limited Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 100% - 100% Insurance Brokerage Service,
("ECO Fmanclal ) ) (2022: HK$3,000,000) (2022: 100%) (2022:-) (2022: 100%) Hong Kong
ZERYERARD 3] 3000, W0ET 100% - 100% 1%»#% W (3
(=28 e ( 2::& (ZF22f: (ZF=2f:
300000%7) 100%) -) 100%)
Cheerful Dragon Limited BV US$1 100% 100% - Investment holding
N (2022: US$1) (2022: 100%) (2022: 100%) (2022:-) }
lEARAT £BRuHE 157 o oo - REHR
(Z5-cf: (Z5-cf: (ZB=zf: (ZB=c%:
1%7) 100%) 100%) -)
* This company is a sino-foreign owned enterprise established in the o AR AREFBIK P ING BB -
PRC.
# It included paid-up capital of preferred shares of RMB180,000,000, i R-EBE-=FR-_FE-_—_F=A=+—
and together with the excess paid-up capital of RMB90,000,000, H EBREERZBRBREAARKE
it formed the principal amount of preferred shares of 180,000,000 7T # [F] #A 58 A1 B IR AN A R
RMB270,000,000 at 31 March 2023 and 2022 (see Note 31). # 90,000,000 7T * AEKBERASHE
AR 270,000,000 7T (RHTFE31) °
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of Fr A KB A RN F R ERTEME
the year. 7 e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= by E S E kS

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

43. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 43. RBARZRE @)
(b) Particulars of the wholly-owned entities de-consolidated (b) B-Z-ZEETEHAAEZZ
since 2010 are as follows: BEEEFBOT
Particulars of
Place of issued share
incorporation/ capital and
establishment and registered Proportion of
Narme of the companies operation capital ownership interest Principal activities
AL/ BEARAR
ARER RIREERY AftEnzs EERESLA EEE
Held by the
The Group's Held by the Company's
effective interest Company subsidiaries
AEEERER BAAERE AALANEARER
QHFSMI (note 2(a))* The PRC HK$40,000,000 100% - 100% Exploration of mine, the PRC
(2022: (2022: 100%) (2022:-) (2022: 100%)
HK$40,000,000)
EERE (M) G 40,000,000 %7 100% - 100% BEHE HE
(ZBzzE: (ZB-zE: (zB--E: (zB-zE:
40,000,000 7 100%) -) 100%)
IMFSMI (note 2(a))* The PRC Nil 100% - 100% Not yet commenced business
(2022: Nil (2022: 100%) (2022:-) (2022: 100%)
WA 2a) P i 100% - 100% HARREZEH
g 100%) -) 100%)
3 These companies are wholly-owned foreign enterprises # ZERBRNFBEKZHING
established in the PRC. BEMRE -
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43. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(9]

The following table lists out the information of Shundong
Port that have material non-controlling interests (“NCI") to
the Group. The summarised financial information represents

amounts before inter-company elimination.

(9]

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

43. RMB AT ZRE (#)

TRINEBEHAEEBEKNNIE
TR (PR ER]) MIER
BHEER - MBEERBEREQRNR

B AR -

Name Shundong Port
Z% JIE 3R 78 7%
2023 2022
—EBT=HF —E-—
Principal place of business/ FEEEMD PRC/PRC PRC/PRC
country of establishment B ST PTE BT K HEHE B,
% of ownership interests/ EEREREAERN

voting rights at board of
directors held by NCI

Non-current assets
Current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Net assets

Net assets attributable to NCI

mEEERD NEFEZ

%= %

BEEFE

FEREREEEEFE

RRERREZERERARA / —T——

44.83%/33.33%

53.33%/33.33%

HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET
1,571,135 1,674,314
250,147 319,164
(547,437) (766,474)
(595,825) (593,483)
678,020 633,521
304,025 337,920

—=FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

43. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 43. RBELR R Z2RE @
(c) (Continued) (c) #&)
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EB-=fF —Fq -
THERT FET
Revenue Wz 366,757 520,568
Profit for the year F M5 ) 74,498 54,769
Total comprehensive income for the year 4 2 T Ut A 4258 44,499 70,161
Profit attributable to NCI FE1% B B 2 B (5 i A 36,955 29,214
Total comprehensive income attributable  JE {22 A% %5 & 1 2 H WA 4258
to NCI 20,611 37,424

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating & & EBFTSEREE RN

activities Omib) 2% 118,784 (93,885)
Net cash (outflow)inflow from investing & & EBEERE (Rd),/

activities mAHE (25,448) 17,228
Net cash (outflow)inflow from financing B & EBEERS (Rd),/

activities MAFEE (55,333) 132,335
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

43. RMB AT ZRE (#)

43. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(d)

Disposal of subsidiaries

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company
entered into a sale and purchase agreement with a
company which is an independent third party to the
Group (the “Purchaser”), pursuant to which the Group
had conditionally agreed to sell and the Purchaser had
conditionally agreed to purchase the entire equity interest
of Precious New Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Precious New Group”), for a consideration of
HK$1,600,000. The disposal was completed on 12 January
2023.

The net assets of the abovementioned the Precious New
Group at the disposal date were as follows:

(d)

HEHE QR

BE-_Z-_=F=A=+—HI%F
B ARBH QA (AAER
WBYE=F)(BFDITLES
i B AREEREREL
EMEFBKRHEREREEEGR
AFREMBAR (KB BAEE
B ) /2 EpakE - R4 1,600,000
B ZHEFEBEER T -=F
—BA+-BA%EK -

BPREREENHEAHHFEE
LA

Precious
New Group
BEEEE
HK$'000
TR
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control sk = HliE > BE K B BEDIT
was lost:
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 2,651
Investment in an associate REE N NERE -
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TETRIE ~ S I H b FE W RIE 2,260
Loan receivable U E R 1,658
Cash and bank balances BRe RIRITHER 8
Other payables H e 5RE (3,355)
Lease liabilities HEBE (2,892)
Net assets disposed of EHEFEE 330
Reclassification of cumulative exchange reserve REEREFN DB RAE L HEE
upon disposal (685)
Gain on disposal & U E 1,955
Total consideration REERE 1,600
Satisfied by: BNAR
Cash RE 1,600
Analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash FALHEEEEEZHeR
equivalents in respect of disposal of Precious REFEEBERAFEIN
New Group:
Cash consideration RENRE 1,600
Less: Cash and cash equivalents balances W EHEREMREEE
disposed of 18 B #5848 (8)
1,592
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

43,

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(e)

Change in ownership interest in a
subsidiary

For the year ended 31 March 2023

The Group acquired additional 8.5% interest in Shundong
Port at a consideration of RMB86,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$99,846,000). The interest of Shundong
Port attributable to the Company increased from 46.67% to
55.17% thereafter.

An amount of approximately HK$45,340,000 (being
the difference between the consideration paid and the
proportionate share of the carrying amount of the net assets
of Shundong Port) has been debited to the other reserve.

For the year ended 31 March 2022

The Group acquired additional 12% equity interest in iECO
Financial at a consideration of HK$37,000. The equity
interest of iECO Financial attributable to the Company
increased from 88% to 100% thereafter.

An amount of approximately HK$99,000 (being the
difference between the consideration paid and the
proportionate share of the carrying amount of the net assets
of iECO Financial) has been credited to the other reserve.

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2022/23

43. RBRARZERE @)

(e)

R-—ENBARZHERRE
Em2E

BE-—E-_=—fF=-H=+—HIFE
E

REBE K E ARMS6,000,000
7T (#8 & 7 #799,846,00078 7T) I
BB ER B T5EIN8.5% M HE 25 o it
% ARQEEGIBRER 2 i m
46.67% B 5517% °

4 %E #745,340,000% 7T (BN 2 4%
BEEMLEREHFEERAEN
ez MR ERE) Bt AR -

BE-—E-—fF=ZH=+—HIF
E

7N £ B LA R {8 37,000 78 7T U B8 25
IR EEON12% HOBRAE o 1K1 © AR
N A ERZE 2 3B B 2 B A B 88%
HZE100% °

£ %8 %799,0007%8 7T (BIE AT (8 8
DIEES R FEEREEMNL A
ZEER) B AL MR -



44,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 44,

OF CASH FLOWS

Changes in liabilities arising from financing

activities

e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 EiZE — T —_=F=A=+—HBILtFE

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from

financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.

Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash

flows were, or the future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s

consolidated cash flows from financing activities.

mERTREBRME

METBHRELENEEED

TREIAEEREREETDHABZEDY
HIE - ERRS MRS EY - KARME
ABNAEBENEEREIRKADRER
EDRAEERERET ZHEARRTR
BrzafE-

Total

Amounts liabilities

due to non- from

Bank Other lease  Promissory controlling  Preferred  financing

borrowings  borrowings  liabilities notes  shareholders shares  activities

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

JEff R

FERRR HEEEZ

ffR HtER  HEEE  ANEE e BER BoE

T TiEn Thn Tt Tk T Tk

At 1 April 2021 RZE--ENA-A 176,387 22,969 9214 129,402 120,541 333832 792,345

Changes in financing cash flows RERERERD 104773 (12,486) (5,497) (149)  (131863) = (46,569)
Non-cash changes 54488

Addition of lease liabities HERERRE - - 6,984 = = = 6,984

Modification of lease Eyig - - (209) = = = (209)

Fair value loss of promissory notes EAERLTEEE - - = 3236 = = 3236

Fair value loss of preferred shares BERATEESR - - - - - 38,800 38,800

Interest expenses (note 11) MEFR (1) 7,990 1,741 498 6,902 8,400 - 25,531

Exchange difference EREE 9,527 256 283 (775) 2922 14,907 27,120

At31 March 2022 RZBZZE=f=+-H 298677 12,480 1273 137,269 - 387,539 847238

At 1 April 2022 RZE--FNA-H 298,677 12,480 1,213 137,269 - 387,539 847,238

Changes in financing cash flows RERSTERD (115,397) (2,544) 3713) (6,440) - - (128,009)
Non-cash changes 54588

Modification of lease ByRE - - (1,102) - - - (1,102)

Fair value loss of promissory notes FAZELTEEE - - - 524 - - 524

Fair value loss of preferred shares BERATEES - - - - - 19453 19,453

Interest expenses (note 11) MEFx (1) 13,554 716 308 1877 - - 16,455

Derecognition upon recission of contracts RERANEE R (WH2)

(note 22) - - - (128,048) - - (128,048)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 43(d) HERBAR (M) - - (2,89) - - - (2,89)
Exchange difference ERER (22,000) - (581) (44) - (28,758) (51,383)
AL31 March 2003 Rog-z#=fA=1-A mAgH 062 328 5138 - ST
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2023 ##Z—T—_=F=A=+—BItFE

45,

46.

COMPARATIVE FIGURE

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to confirm with
current period presentation.

EVENT AFTER REPORTING DATE

On 28 April 2023, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with a company (the “Subscriber”), pursuant to which
the Subscriber conditionally agreed to subscribe for, and the
Company conditionally agreed to allot and issue, 360,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company at the subscription price of
HK$0.416 per subscription share for a total consideration of
approximately HK$149.8 million in cash. The Subscriber is legally
and beneficially owned as to 50% by Mr. Cao Sheng and 20% by
Mr. Liu Yong, who are the executive Directors of the Company.
Consequently, the above mentioned subscription constitutes a
connected party transaction to the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

The subscription shares will be allotted and issued under the specific
mandate to be obtained from the independent shareholders at
the extraordinary general meeting of the Company while such
extraordinary general meeting is yet to hold up to the date of this
report.
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45.

46.

e B 7

ETHRETE FTUEH DB - LABEZRE
25— -

HEHRREER

RZEZ=FWA=Z+N\B AQRHE—
MA T(M\B%ADJAWEB%TM% Bt
REABEREGRAERABESRIAER
B0.4168 TREM AR _JEMFFHE\@E
B B 1 3eoooooooﬂx$/‘ﬂﬂf%ﬂﬁv
RIEHLEEL B £ 149,800,000 7T ° &
Eﬁ/\EEg%?EHE&%U%%HE(ﬁwZ%ZK
BHTEE) DA EEZEAS0% K&
20% ° AL - ARIE ETARRIFE 14AE - £
MREEEEXARANEEALRS -

BB SRIEN AL FREH AR L
BB R EREN SR BREERET

EAHEABABREERIAR MK
817 -
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